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Exhibit 1 



To: Kozora, Matthew @SEC.GOV] 
From: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Sent: Thur 8/2/2012 2:00:36 PM 
Importance: Normal 
Subject: RE: question 

Dear Matt, 

I don't have time to discuss these issues right now, but I do think that we should have 
further discussions before the proposal is published. I can't say whether we will close 
the gap on our opposing viewpoints, but I think it is vital that I have a better 
understanding of your position. 

Keith 

From: Kozera, Matthew @SEC.GOV] 
Sent: Thursday, August 02, 2012 11 :57 AM 
To: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Subject: RE: question 

Dear Keith, 

There is a fundamental difference between price variation and the risk investors bear. 
For instance, prices may not change over a given period of time but yet investors might 
still bear much risk. There will also be problems with respect to measuring price 
variation with respect to illiquid securities or securities that are not traded very often 
(muni bonds, structured products, real estate). You are also treating systematic risk 
with idiosyncratic risk equally. Literature tells us (Sharpe ( 1964 ), Lintner ( 1965)) that 
such risks are not the same and should be treated much differently. 

I understand you want to measure returns due to the psychology literature, however, I 
am quite concerned your benchmarks based on ex-post price variation will make such 
comparisons have very little economic meaning and thus no value to consumers. I am 
also concerned as to the intent of the measure itself. Do you want to "weed out" bad 
providers of advice by reporting performance measures? Or do you want to "protect 



participants from conflicts of interest" as proposed rule suggests? Those are two 
separate and different intents. 

If/when you have a formal rule proposal that you want comments on, I will be 
more than happy to share my thoughts and views. Otherwise, I think we just 
have two opposing viewpoints on the matter. 

Matt 

From: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA @dol.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 4:15 PM 
To: Kozera, Matthew 
Subject: RE: question 

I would be happy to have a phone conversation to discuss the purpose of the 
rule, the purpose of the exemption conditions and distinctions between the two. 
don't think I want to try to have that conversation via email. I might have some 
time tomorrow, but I'm at a conference Thursday and Friday and then on 
vacation next week. 

From: Kozera, Matthew lYL(~~~~ll 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 3:43 PM 
To: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Subject: RE: question 



I apologize if I have overstepped my boundaries. This is a difficult topic for sure, 
and I was under the impression that my opinion was a. helpful and b. wanted. 

I am also now utterly confused as to what the purpose of the proposed DOL rule 
is then, if not to limit advisor conflicts when providing retirement advice? 
Considering that my prior is that the DOL wants to reduce advisor conflicts, it just 

seems logical to me that the end result should measure advisory conflicts. 

Good luck with your rulemaking. 

Matt 

From: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA @_t;!Qh~!J 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 3:23 PM 
To: Kozora, Matthew 
Subject: RE: question 

See my responses below. We have now gone far beyond the point where your 
input was helpful to me. You keep circling back to the same statements, many of 
which are unsupported conjectures on your part, and most of which I have 
addressed even before you brought them up. Yet, your statements do not seem 
to even acknowledge the points that I already made (with supporting evidence) in 
the document we sent. If you have nothing new to bring up, please stop emailing 
me about this topic. 

From: Kozora, Matthew l §!JYU~il;;J~~Ll 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 2:14 PM 
To: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Subject: RE: question 



It is easier to determine if your advisor is working in your best interest with just 
(Cost) than with (Return - Cost). I'm not trying to ask anyone to determine if their 
advisor is working in their best interest. One measure is dependent solely on the 
products sold, whereas the other is dependent on market conditions, differences 
between industries, etc. 

Also, one has to ask what returns investors are chasing. Would it not be in the 
best interests of advisers to take on excessive risk one period to reap the 
rewards from of high returns the following period? No, because then they would 
be bumped into a different return volatility category and compared to other 
advisors who took similar risk. That is one of the key components of the 
proposal. You might then say that the returns will be benchmarked or 
categorized to some extent. That is fine, but using my experience working on 
advertising issues, properly benchmarking or categorizing returns is almost an 
impossible task. I completely agree with this sentiment. That is why we want to 
have a public disclosure. So that an average of other peoples' returns (with 
similar risk) is the benchmark. Using variance of returns also goes against about 
50 years of academic and practitioner thought and likely to be gamed just as 
easily. This appears to be your main issue with my proposal, yet you have not 
presented a case for how this measure would be gamed. 

I also have to wonder whether a retail investor observing their own cost is one 
thing, but then being able to compare costs across advisors is another. This 
seems to be an argument against what you have proposed. 

Matt 

From: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA t;!Qh~!J 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 20121:50 PM 
To: Kozera, Matthew 
Subject: RE: question 



Well, I hate to break it to you, but you're wrong. People do not respond to fees or 
any other costs, but they do chase returns. This and our other reasons for 
choosing the disclosure that we have developed are laid out in the document that 
we've already sent over to you (attached). You might try reading the paragraph 
labeled "Portfolio Returns" on page 4. And do look into the references. They are 
very convincing. 

From: Kozora, Matthew l Y'.!J~il;;J~~£1 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 20121:38 PM 
To: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Subject: RE: question 

I would think retail investors would respond more greatly to costs. People might 
have difficulty understanding the magnitude of returns but less problem 
understanding how much they are paying someone. 

An adviser can argue that they cost more because they provide better advice. 
That is why the measure has to relate to kickbacks for selling a security, and not 
what an advisor charges directly to the consumer. 

Matt 

From: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA ;l.QL.~!J 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 1:19 PM 
To: Kozora, Matthew 
Subject: RE: question 



But would IRA holders and plan participants respond to information on conflicts of 
interest? Couldn't an advisor argue that they take more kickbacks (charge higher 
prices) because they provide better advice? 

From: Kozora, Matthew UY!J~~~~ll 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 20121:08 PM 
To: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Subject: RE: question 

But returns are based on MUCH more than just conflicts ... why not try to measure 
(as close as you can) just the level of conflicts? 

Matt 

From: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA llilQYl 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 12:55 PM 
To: Kozora, Matthew 
Subject: RE: question 

Another way to state that is that we are worried about diminished returns that 
result from conflicted advisory relationships. Therefore, we need to measure 
advisors based on returns. 

From: Kozora, Matthew [§UY!J~~~~ll 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 12:46 PM 
To: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Subject: RE: question 

Okay, how about then the weighted average of all kickbacks for all assets (not 
just new) managed by an advisor where recurring loads will be measured each 
year, and the front-end loads plus back-end loads of all new asset sales (in other 



words back-end loads will be "expensed" in the year of the asset sale)? 

From what I understand, y'all are worried about advisory conflicts of interest 
(wrong/right???). You therefore need to measure advisors based on the amount 
of conflicts of interest they might have. 

Matt 

From: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA @_t;!Qh~!J 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 12:22 PM 
To: Kozera, Matthew 
Subject: RE: question 

Then front-end and back-end loads would look bad and recurring loads would 
look good. Unless you included multiple years worth of the loads into the 
calculations, but how many years would you include? 

From: Kozera, Matthew !]!MJ~~~~ll 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 12:15 PM 
To: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Subject: RE: question 

What happens if the measure takes into consideration back-end loads? 

Matt 



From: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA tl~!QL~!J 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 11 :52 AM 
To: Kozora, Matthew 
Subject: RE: question 

In that case, I could see a lot of new products developing that would not have any 
kickbacks in the year they are sold, but then high kickbacks in subsequent years. 
Back-end load products would immediately become popular. Front-end load 
products would look really bad by this measure. 

From: Kozora, Matthew !MJ~il;;J~~Ll 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 11 :45 AM 
To: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Subject: RE: question 

I am assuming the income from kickbacks/front-end loads would relate only to 
the new sales. 

Ex. 

In year 1, I sell two products (of equal amount) with 1 % kickbacks ... my measure 
of Col is 1% 

The following year I sell two products (again of equal amount) with one product 
having 1 % kickback and the second with 0% kickback. My measure for year 2 is 
0.5%. 



Matt 

From: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA ;!Qh~!J 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 11 :40 AM 
To: Kozora, Matthew 
Subject: RE: question 

The denominator seems problematic. The advisor is rewarded handsomely by 
this measure for new sales and penalized severely for old sales. If sales were 
constant over time, this wouldn't be a big deal, but sales are not constant. Let's 
say a new entrant has a good sales year selling securities that give him 1 % 
kickbacks every year. His ratio will be about 1 % . Com pare that to an advisor 
who gets 0.5% per year kickbacks, but has had constant sales for the last 20 
years. His ratio would be about 10% (0.5% * 20). Now the new guy look 
REALLY, REALLY good! So he has the endorsement of a government 
generated statistic and using that selling point he quadruples his sales the next 
year. His statistic rises to only 1.2%. He still has amazingly low income by this 
statistic and has proven to be a major up-and-comer in the market. Sales 
quadruple every year and his statistic continues to remain incredibly low. 
Whereas, the advisor who actually had the better rates (0.5%) starts losing 
business because his statistic is high. But because he loses business his 
statistic keeps getting worse and worse until he's forced to find another line of 
business. Unless of course everyone just ignores the statistic, which may be the 
best case scenario for the common investor. 

Am I missing something here? 

From: Kozora, Matthew fi~~~~~ll 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 11 :02 AM 
To: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Subject: RE: question 



No ... the measure would be 

(Income from Kickbacks/front-end loads) I (Total Value New Security Purchases) 

Matt 

From: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA ill~tQl~!J 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 10:59 AM 
To: Kozera, Matthew 
Subject: RE: question 

I'm still having a hard time understanding exactly what your measure is and how 
it would be calculated. From your discussion immediately below, it sounds like 
you would just take the total income of an advisor for the year and divide by the 
total amount of assets they directed to particular investments. Is that how you 
would calculate it? 

From: Kozera, Matthew §~~il;;J~~Ll 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 10:48 AM 
To: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Subject: RE: question 

The measure would be at the adviser level. Therefore, a one-time kickback may 
be washed out among all client assets. Furthermore, as more information 
becomes available over time, that one-time kickback will become less and less 
significant. 



Performance measures have the same drawback. Consider the case of fund 
manager Bill Miller of Legg Mason. He beat the S&P 500 for 13 straight years (or 
so) but then decided to invest in financials prior to the financial crisis. His 
performance for 2008 was not very good. 

Matt 

From: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA l~tQl~!J 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 10:44 AM 
To: Kozora, Matthew 
Subject: RE: question 

So how would the measure compare for an advisor who receives a one-time 5% 
commission through a front-end load versus an advisor who gets a 1 % per year 
kickback? 

From: Kozora, Matthew [§~~~~~ll 
Sent: Monday, July 30, 2012 3:21 PM 
To: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Subject: RE: question 

I don't take days off. 

My measure of conflicts of interest would be the reciprocal of your performance 
measure, publicly disclosed and comparable across advisors. The measure 
would be equal to the amount of kickback for each dollar of assets under 
management. 



The measure would 

a. Not be dependent on a measure of risk 

b. Applicable to all asset classes 

c. An important indicator as to whether the advisor is working in the best 
interests of the client 

As an investor I might not quite understand why my portfolio performed the way it 
did (asset selection, exogenous events, etc.), but I can see how much I am 
paying my advisor and how much of that pay might have led to portfolio 
composition. Public disclosure would require advisors to justify how much 
kickbacks they receive especially in the face of potentially low returns. 

Matt 

From: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA il~tQl~!J 
Sent: Monday, July 30, 2012 3:03 PM 
To: Kozera, Matthew 
Subject: RE: question 

Matt, 

I wouldn't characterize returns as a measure of advisor ability. To be sure, 
advisor ability may be one component of returns, but there are many other 
factors that affect returns, e.g. the degree of conflicts of interest. I think of 
returns much more literally as an outcome measure associated with receiving 
advice from the advisor. I don't see how a measure of conflicts of interest would 
be a substitute for this. How would the measure be used? Would it be disclosed 



to plan participants and IRA holders? Disclosed publicly? I think that ultimately, 
investors are more concerned about maximizing their returns (for a given risk 
level) than about whether there is a conflict of interest. Disclosing conflicts of 
interest may not help investors make better decisions and in fact may make 
matters worse (see attached paper). This all assumes that it would be possible 
to measure degrees of conflicts of interest. There are many different ways in 
which advisors are conflicted. How would you construct the measure? 

Keith 

P.S. When did you send me this email? I have a time-stamp that says I got it at 
8:46 AM on a Saturday. 

From: Kozera, Matthew M!~il;;J~~£1 
Sent: Saturday, July 28, 2012 8:46 AM 
To: Bergstresser, Keith - EBSA 
Subject: question 

Dear Keith, 

Instead about trying to measure returns as a measure of advisor ability, may it 
not be better to develop a measure of conflicts-of-interest? That is, some 
measure that relates to how much a particular "advisor'' gets paid for the products 
and investments they recommend? 

Just a thought. 

Matt 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 2 



To: Nallengara, Lona @SEC.GOV] 
Cc: Hauser, Timothy - EBSA @dol.gov] 
From: Block, Sharon I - OSEC 
Sent: Fri 1/9/2015 4:18:36 PM 
Importance: Normal 
Subject: EBSA responses to SEC comments 

Lona - It was great to finally meet you in person this week. Following up on our bosses' 
conversation, attached please find a chart that details the most recent comments on the 
draft that we've received from Jen Porter and her team and our responses. I've copied 
Tim Hauser, who leads our reg drafting team and who has been working with Jen, in 
case Jen has any follow up questions. Thanks, Sharon 

Sharon Block 

Senior Counselor to the Secretary 

US. Depattment of Labor 

 



 

 

Document Title: EBSA Responses to Recent SEC Comments 1-9-15.docx



EBSA Responses to SEC Comments -- January 8, 2015 

SEC comment EBSA response 

Clarification and coordination. (Item 1) Make sure the SEC We have edited the language based on our conversations 
is comfortable with all references to their views and the with SEC staff. 
coordination process. 

Ongoing obligation. (Item 2) Consider clarifying the extent Draft language in preambles for contract and principal 
to which fiduciary duties and impartial conduct standards transaction exemption clarify that the parties are free to 
apply at transactional level or on ongoing basis. determine the long-term or transactional nature of their 

relationship based on the terms of the contract and their 
course of conduct. 

Breadth of exemption - assets. (Item 3) Consider clarifying As drafted, we have not imposed a requirement that the 
the breadth of application of the contract exemption (e.g., contract broadly cover advice to the client that doesn't 
all client assets? Just IRA assets?) relate to retirement assets. 

Meaning of "Recommendation". (Item 4) Consider The preambles to the regulation and contract exemption 
clarifying what counts as a "recommendation" in fiduciary now reference FINRA guidance in Policy Statement 01-23 
definition and exemptions. and Regulatory Notice 11-02. (The preamble discussion 

mirrors a similar discussion in the draft proposed 
regulation). 

Meaning of "Best Interest". (item 5) Consider adding more Our preamble discussion focuses on ERISA/trust 
about what "best interest" means. background, and best interest is expressly defined in the 

regulatory and exemption text. We would prefer to see 
what commenters say before adding any additional 
explanatory language. 

Material Conflicts of Interest. (Item 6) Consider limiting Our intent had been to capture only material conflicts in 
the contract exemption's disclosure requirements with our definition. We've clarified this by adding "Material" to 
respect to "conflicts" to "material" conflicts? Alternatively the defined term throughout the document. 
should we solicit comments on that point? 

Breadth of exemption - fee practices. (Item 7) Consider We have added additional language clarifying the broad 
clarifying what fee practices are addressed by what scope of the relief for fiduciaries receiving a wide range of 
exemption. compensation and also noting that more specific class 

exemptions, apart from the contract exemption, also 
remain available. 

Compliance with law. (Item 8) The contract exemption In the contract and principal transaction exemptions, we 
requirement of compliance with all fed/state laws could have moved the provision about complying with applicable 
result in loss of exemption for trivial breaches. Consider law from the Impartial Conduct Standards to the 
continuing to impose the condition as a feature of the Warranties; as a result, failure to comply with law will not 
contract, but make it clear that the exemption isn't blown disallow the exemption, but contractholders may bring 
for de mini mis breaches? suit under the contract when a violation of law is 

sufficiently significant to make recovery likely. We have 
also noted that a significant legal violation could rise to the 
level of a violation of the best interest standards. 

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 



SEC comment 

Limited Menus. (Item 9) Consider more specificity about 
what is meant by "sufficiently broad range of products" 
Also, consider companies that restrict menus based on 
considerations other than third party 
payments/proprietary products. 

Disclosure - reliance on third parties. (Item 10) Where 
accuracy of disclosure hinges on statements from third 
parties, consider including good faith reliance provision. 

Definitions for disclosure and document retention. (Item 
11) To the extent the definitions in the disclosure and 
document retention provisions are unclear, data received 
may be incomplete or insufficiently comparable from 
company to company. Consider express references to 
SEC/Fl NRA definitions. 

Document Retention. (Item 12) How long do the firms 
have to keep the data under the document retention 
provisions? Does the period of time match SEC retention 
periods? 

Large plan exclusion. (Item 13) Considering adding 
explanatory material in the contract exemption preamble 
on why we are excluding large plans. 

EBSA response 

The preamble and operative text now clarify that all 
companies that restrict menus so that the adviser cannot 
recommend a sufficiently broad range of investments to 
meet the plan or IRA's needs (regardless of reason for 
restriction) must notify retirement investors and describe 
the asset classes that are offered. Additional conditions 
also remain applicable to companies that restrict menus 
based on third party payments, proprietary status, or 
otherwise, including: i) making a finding that the 
limitations do not prevent advisers from giving advice that 
is in the investor's best interest or otherwise adhering to 
the impartial conduct standards, and ii) notifying the 
investors of the specific limitations placed on the 
investments available for recommendation. 

The preamble now explains that in providing disclosures, 
advisers and financial institutions may rely in good faith on 
information from third parties, as long as those parties are 
not close affiliates (i.e., entities in control relationships 
with the adviser/financial institution, or employees, 
officers or directors of the adviser/financial institution). 

The preamble now requests comment as to whether the 
terms used and definitions are sufficient so that the 
information received will be reasonably comparable across 
different financial institutions. 

The data must be retained for 6 years, which lines up with 
ERISA's statute of limitations, but is slightly longer than 
some SEC timelines. 

We have added preamble language making it clear that 
the exemption is aimed at retail investors, such as plan 
participants and small plan sponsors, who currently 
receive too little impartial and unconflicted fiduciary 
advice. The preamble now also explains that we do not 
believe similar relief is necessary for larger institutional 
investors, which are already accustomed to operating in a 
fiduciary environment and within the framework of 
existing exemptions and that, for such investors, the 
contract exemption could have the undesirable 
consequence of reducing protections provided under 
existing law, without offsetting benefits. It also notes that 
the seller's exception is available for arm's length non­
fiduciary transactions involving such investors. 

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 



Former underwriters. (Item 14) Consider whether the The preamble and operative text now clarify that the 
principal transaction's exemption should be available to exemption is not available for a principal transaction 
Financial Institutions (and Affiliates) who are no longer involving a debt security that, at the time of the 
doing the underwriting even if they formerly did. transaction, is underwritten by the Financial Institution or 

an Affiliate. 

Limitations on eligible debt securities. (Item 15) Consider We have included these standards of creditworthiness as 
specifying what is meant by the general conditions for alternatives to minimum credit ratings requirements, as 
eligible debt securities (e.g. "reasonably short period of required by the Dodd-Frank Act. The same standards have 
time," "no greater than moderate credit risk", etc.) in the been used in SEC regulatory pronouncements as well - so, 
principal transactions exemption. although they are not as objective as a credit rating, we 

think they will be familiar to the industry. We footnoted 
an example of an SEC regulation with the same standards. 

Execution Price. (Item 16) Clarify price permitted in The preamble and operative text now clarify that the 
principal transaction in relation to agency transactions. principal transaction must be executed at a price that the 

Adviser and Financial Institution believe is at least as 
favorable to the Plan or IRA as would be available in a 
transaction that is not a principal transaction. 

Inter-dealer market. (Item 17) Consider clarifying what is We have deleted references to the inter-dealer market 
meant by inter-dealer market in the principal transaction throughout. 
exemption. 

Meaning of "mark-up". (Item 18) Consider clarifying what The preamble now clarifies the terms mark-up and mark-
is mean by mark-up and mark-down? down, referencing FINRA Regulatory Notice 14-52. 

Add "mark-up" or "mark-down" to price comparison In further discussions, the SEC clarified that this additional 
reguirement in Section lll{d) of principal transaction language would be necessary if the adviser could rely on a 
exemption (Email comment). The suggested language riskless principal transaction for the price comparison. 
would read: "When evaluating the price offered by the Our intent had been to have the price comparison involve 
counterparties referred to in (2), the Adviser and Financial agency transactions only, so that added language was not 
Institution may take into account the resulting price to the necessary. We clarified in the document that the 
Plan or IRA, including commission or markups or comparison could involve agency transactions only. 
markdowns." 

Double check with SEC on coordinating swap language We are confident that the language in the regulation lines 
(Item 19) up with the SEC and CFTC language, but are reaching out 

to the SEC regulatory team responsible for their swap 
regulation to make sure. 

Discuss possible costsLrisks of adverse impact on amount These issues are addressed in RIA, but we are reviewing to 
of advice and of firms choosing to switch to registered see if there is anything more we need to say on the topic. 
investment adviser, rather than broker, model (Item 21) In addition, we have added some additional discussion on 

mutual funds to the affected entities and benefits sections. 
We may make additional edits after getting feedback from 
OMB. 

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 



Better ex~lain logic behind $30 billion estimate based on We have made clear that the quantitative analysis behind 
front end load mutual funds {in ~articular, what we are the $30 billion estimate assumes that the rule will be fully 
assuming about the rule's efficac~) (Item 22) effective in eliminating the harms caused by this one 

category of conflict of interest, and we will acknowledge 
the possibility of imperfect compliance. At the same time, 
we stress that the $30B estimate remains conservative 
because it reflects just one category of conflict in one 
small part of the market; accordingly, this remains a very 
low-end estimate. 

Consider guantif~ing the costs and benefits of all the We think this would be extraordinarily difficult and would 
alternative a~~roaches we considered and rejected (Item appreciably delay the project for very little return. The 
23) extensive qualitative descriptions of the bases for rejecting 

the alternatives included in the current RIA effectively 
explain the bases for rejecting the alternative approaches. 
We would prefer to get feedback from OMB before 
undertaking any additional quantitative analyses. 

Meaning of "Investment Adviser". (Item 24) Consider In describing the term "Adviser," the preamble now 
replacing term "investment adviser" with "investment specifies that this term is not limited to registered 
advice fiduciary" so that readers will not mistakenly read investment advisers, but may include representatives of 
the term as limited to "registered investment adviser." banks, insurance companies and broker-dealers. 

Cite the relevant literature or dro~ discussion of how We have added cites, which were taken directly from the 
disclosure can exacerbate conflicts in the ~reamble to the RIA. We will also make clear that lack of fiduciary status 
regulation; also moderate discussion on lack of ~rotections means no accountability under ER/SA or the Code, so that 
in absence of ERISA fiduciar~ status (Item 25). there is no inference that we are suggesting that the 

securities laws don't include protections. 

Disclosure. (Item 26) Consider incorporating requirements The operative text now clarifies that providing the 
of SEC Rule lOb-16 for disclosure requirements in the disclosure described SEC Rule lOb-16 would satisfy the 
credit exemption. written disclosure requirements of the exemption. (This 

had been in the preamble but we put it in the operative 
text for ease of use.) 

Fee disclosures. (Item 27) Consider making fee The preamble now requests comment on whether it would 
disclosures in the contract exemption a little easier for the be more feasible or less costly to provide some of the 
industry by expressly permitting narrative statements. disclosures in a narrative statement. 

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 
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To: Nallengara, Lona @SEC.GOV] 
Cc: Hauser, Timothy - EBSA @dol.gov]; Porter, Jennifer R. @SEC.GOV] 
From: Block, Sharon I - OSEC 
Sent: Mon 1/26/2015 7:40:58 PM 
Importance: Normal 
Subject: RE: EBSA responses to SEC comments 

Thanks Lona. We appreciate all the time your team has put in and their thoughtful 
comments. 

From: Nallengara, Lona @SEC.GOV] 
Sent: Monday, January 26, 2015 7:37 PM 
To: Block, Sharon I - OSEC 
Cc: Hauser, Timothy - EBSA; Porter, Jennifer R. 
Subject: RE: EBSA responses to SEC comments 

Sharon, 

Thank you for sending the chart showing your responses to SEC staff comments on the 
rule package that we discussed with you in December. 

We asked the staff to review the chart and below are a few additional thoughts from the 
staff on several of the items that you can consider as you prepare your proposal (the 
staff has identified their comments using the item numbers in your chart). 

I would also like to note that although the chart shows that several changes were made 
to the proposal to address the potential concerns that we have discussed regarding the 
complexity of the proposal, we continue to believe that commenters are likely to raise 
concerns that the proposal may result in reduced pricing options, rising costs and limited 
access to retirement advice, particularly for retail investors. Commenters also may 
express concerns that broker-dealers, as a practical matter, may be unlikely to use the 
exemptions provided and may stop providing services because of the number of 
conditions imposed, likely compliance costs, and lack of clarity around several 
provisions. 

We hope these comments will continue to be helpful to you as you finalize the proposed 



rules. 

Lona 

Comments on the Chart 

Item 3: Based on the draft that we reviewed, some conditions appear to be 
written to apply to ANY retirement assets, while others apply specifically to the 
"Assets" defined (funds, etc). If that distinction is intended, it may be useful to 
add clarifying language or some discussion where this distinction is made to 
make the intent clear. 

Item 4: Consider referencing FINRA Regulatory Notices 12-25 and 12-55. 
Notably, FAQ No. 2 in FINRA Reg. Notice 12-25 discusses the term 
"recommendation" and cites various resources that explain FINRA's guiding 
principles for analyzing whether a communication constitutes a recommendation. 
Also we would refer to what you called "Policy Statement 01-23" as "NASO 
Notice to Members 01-23." 

Item 8: 

- The chart stated failure to comply with law will not disallow the exemption 
because the provision about complying with applicable law was moved from the 
Impartial Conduct Standards to the Warranties. Section ll(a) in the last draft of 
rule text we reviewed said advisers and financial institutions have to comply with 
the "terms required by Section ll(b)-(e)," which included the contract warranties. 
Consider changing this section as well if that is the intended result. 

- We note that the liability standards under the federal securities laws for a 
private right of action by an investor differ from what is described in the chart. As 
a general matter, if customers of broker-dealers bring claims in FINRA arbitration, 
they are not limited by substantive law (federal or state) as to the type of claims 
that they can bring against brokers (i.e., FINRA arbitrations are decisions in 
equity and arbitrators are not bound by the substantive law that governs litigation 
in court). However, the chart stated "contractholders may bring suit under the 



contract when a violation of law is sufficiently significant to make recovery likely." 
Please consider whether you intend to limit customers' claims against brokers in 
connection with FINRA arbitration (which may result in a conflict between DOL 
rules and federal securities laws, including SRO rules), and the interplay of this 
above-quoted requirement and state law for alleging breach of contract claims. 

Item 18: FINRA Reg. Notice 14-52 is a request for comment. Consider 
referencing FINRA Rule 2232, the rule that the request for comment would 
ultimately amend, and recognizing that 14-52 is a request for comment. 

From: Block, Sharon I - OSEC :!!:J:l~ 
Sent: Friday, January 09, 2015 4:19 PM 
To: Nallengara, Lona 
Cc: Hauser, Timothy - EBSA 
Subject: EBSA responses to SEC comments 

Lona - It was great to finally meet you in person this week. Following up on our 
bosses' conversation, attached please find a chart that details the most recent 
comments on the draft that we've received from Jen Porter and her team and our 
responses. I've copied Tim Hauser, who leads our reg drafting team and who 
has been working with Jen, in case Jen has any follow up questions. Thanks, 
Sharon 

Sharon Block 

Senior Counselor to the Secretary 

US. Depattment of Labor 
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To: 'Hauser, Timothy - EBSA @dol.gov)' @dol.gov] 
From: Porter, Jennifer R. 
Sent: Thur 9/4/2014 3:55:55 PM 
Importance: Normal 
Subject: Disclosure and Audit Cites 

Tim, 

Below is a list of provisions and rules under the federal securities laws that we 
discussed on our call on Tuesday. Please note that this list reflects those rules that the 
staff believes to be most relevant, based on the staff's understanding of DOL staff's 
current approach with respect to the General Exemption, including the types of assets 
that would be covered. Additional provisions or rules may be relevant, should the DOL 
staff change its approach. 

Generally 

See the SEC Staff Section 913 Study ("Study") for an overview of disclosure, 
supervision and other broker-dealer and investment adviser obligations, available at: 

Note that some of the 
FINRA/NASD rules cited in the study have been amended or replaced with FINRA rules 
since publication, including the rules relating to supervision/audit. Where relevant, the 
new rules are cited below. The FINRA/NASD rules cited in the Study, and links to new 
rules, are available through FINRA's manual at:.:...:.=~=~~~::.:..===.:..:.· 

Disclosure and Data Retention Provisions and Rules 

Form ADV, part 2A (particularly items 4-6, 8, 10-12, 14, 16, 17), available at: 

Form N-1A (registration form used by registered open-end investment companies, 
including mutual funds), available at: tl'lli!I!J:Y:t/J:'!:!'~'~fil~~~!Q[!!l§ll!QIT!lfr:J~2Q! 

Advisers Act Rule 204-2 (books and records rule) 

Securities Act Rule 421 (regarding the use of plain English) 

Exchange Act Rule 1 Ob-5 



Exchange Act Rule 1Ob-10 

Exchange Act Rule 1 Ob-16 

Exchange Act Rules 15c1-5 and 15c1-6 

Exchange Act Rules 15g-1 through 15g-6, 15g-9 

Exchange Act Rule 17a-3(a)(1 )-(3), (5) 

Exchange Act Rule 17a-4 

FINRA Rule 2124 

FINRA Rule 2232 

FINRA Rule 2262 

FINRA Rule 2269 

FINRA Rule 2310 

FINRA Rule 2360(b)(12) 

FINRA Rule 4524 

FINRA Rule 5110(c)(2) 

FINRA Rule 5121 

FINRA Rule 5122 

NASO Rule 2340 

NASO Rule 2830 

Form SSOI, available at: 

MSRB Rule G-15 

MSRB Rule G-22 



Audit (Supervision) Provisions and Rules 

Advisers Act Sec. 203(e)(6) 

Exchange Act Section 15(b )( 4 )(E) and 15(b )(6) 

Exchange Act Section 17 (b) 

Exchange Act Rule 17 a-4 (in particular paragraph ( e )(7)) 

FINRA Rule 1250 

FINRA Rule 3110 (generally, and in particular paragraphs (a), (b)(6), (c)(1 ), 
(c)(2), and (c)(3)(A)) 

FINRA Rule 3120 

FINRA Rule 3130 

FINRA Rule 4511 

FINRA Rule 8210 

FINRA Regulatory Notice 14-10 (discussing FINRA's new consolidated 
supervision Rules 3110, 3120, 3150 and 3170), available at: 

Please let me know if you have any questions or need anything else on this. 

Regards, 

Jen 

JENNIFER R. PORTER 

Senior Advisor to the Chair 

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 



100 F Street NE 
Washington DC 20549 
Phone I  
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To: 'Hauser, Timothy - EBSA' @dol.gov] 
From: Porter, Jennifer R. 
Sent: Wed 10/8/2014 10:34:40 AM 
Importance: Normal 
Subject: RE: Follow-up from 9/26 call with SEC/DOL/Treasury 

Tim, 

Here are some additional links to certain NASD/FINRA materials we have mentioned 
during our recent calls. We thought these might be helpful in case you have not seen 
some of these items. 

Certain FINRA rules pertaining to arbitration and class actions, as well as a 
related FINRA decision: 

0 

o FINRA's Board of Governors' decision from April 24, 2014 concerning FINRA's rules 
related to class actions: t!f '~"Y.,~J2S~[.Q~~~!QIJU~~2IL 

Certain materials discussing, among other things, the interplay between FINRA's 
suitability rule and FINRA's exemption for certain categories of educational material: 

§tllli~~illl~~lliilllfilYJ~r@U~ 

§~~~LlQJ~[Q§ill!Jll:Q 

§ FINRA Regulatory Notices: 

0 



Again, please let us know how we can provide further assistance to you. 

Regards, 

Jen 

JENNIFER R. PORTER 

Senior Advisor to the Chair 

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 

100 F Street NE 
Washington DC 20549 
Phone I  

From: Hauser, Timothy - EBSA @dol.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 30, 2014 12:41 PM 
To: Porter, Jennifer R. 
Cc: Hauser, Timothy - EBSA 
Subject: RE: Follow-up from 9/26 call with SEC/DOL/Treasury 

Thanks. That's terrific. I'll pass your email along to everybody on the meeting 
list. 

Tim 
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DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

Employee Benefits Security Administration 

29 CFR Parts 2509 and 2510 

RIN 1210-AB32 

Definition of the Term "Fiduciary" 

Conflict oflnterest Rule - Retirement Investment Advice 

AGENCY: Employee Benefits Security Administration, Labor. 

COi EBSA PASS BACK 
DRAFT- 410812015 

ACTION: Notice of proposed rnlemaking and withdrawal of previous proposed rnle. 

SUMMARY: This document contains a proposed regulation defining who is a "fiduciary" of an 
employee benefit plan under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) as 
a result of giving investment advice to a plan or its participants or beneficiaries. The proposal 
also applies to the definition of a "fiduciary" of a plan (including an individual retirement 
account (IRA)) under section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (Code). If adopted, the 
proposal would treat persons who provide investment advice or recommendations to an 
employee benefit plan, plan fiduciary, plan participant or beneficiary, IRA, or IRA owner as 
fiduciaries under ERISA and the Code in a wider array of advice relationships than the existing 
ERISA and Code regulations, which would be replaced. The proposed rnle, and related 
exemptions, would increase consumer protection for pla_n_ s_p_o11s_o!s_, Ad~1~i_a~i~s, Pl1rt~cip_a11~s~ ______ -
beneficiaries and IRA ownersl This document also withdraws a prior proposed regulation __ -
published in 2010 (2010 Proposalf concerning this san1e s11b]ect rr!attei. -In -conne-ction w1th-this - -
proposal, elsewhere in this issue of the Federal Register, the Department is proposing new 
exemptions and amendments to existing exemptions from the prohibited transaction rnles 
applicable to fiduciaries under ERISA and the Code that would allow certain broker-dealers, 
insurance agents and others that act as investment advice fiduciaries to continue to receive a 
variety of common fom1s of compensation that would otherwise would be prohibited as conflicts 
of interest. 

DATES: The proposed rnle published October 22, 2010 (75 FR 65263) is withdrawn as of 
[INSERT DATE OF PUBLICATION IN THE FEDERAL REGISTER]. Submit written 
comments on the proposed regulation on or before [INSERT DATE THAT IS 75 DAYS AFTER 
PUBLICATION IN THE FEDERAL REGISTER]. 

ADDRESSES: To facilitate the receipt and processing of written comment letters on the 
proposed regulation, EBSA encourages interested persons to submit their comments 
electronically. You may submit comments, identified by RIN 1210-AB32, by any of the 
following methods: 

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 

Comment [Al]: 
ESSA: We disagree with this edit. We believe the 
emphasis should be placed on the positive effect 
the rule will have on plans, participants and 
beneficiaries and lRA owners so they should remain 
in the first part of the sentence. 

Comment [A2]: Okay, but affect makes it sound 
like you are regulating them rather than 
protecting/helping them. 
EBSA Response: A statement of who is "affected" 
by the rule is pretty standard summary text for a 
Federal Register notice, but we revised to address 

1 this comment. Federal Register may reject because 
\ it prohibits using the summary uto prove a point or 
\ argue a case." 

Deleted: as \vell as providers of investment and 
investment advice related services to such plans and 
IRAs 
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Federal eRulemaking Portal: { HYPERLINK "http://www.regulations.gov" 1- Follow 
instrnctions for submitting comments. 

E-mail: { HYPERLINK "mailto:e-ORI@dol.gov" l. Include RIN 1210-AB32 in the subject 
line of the message. 

Mail: Office of Regulations and Interpretations, Employee Benefits Security Administration, 
Attn: Definition of Fiduciary, Room N-5655, U.S. Department of Labor, 200 Constitution 
Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20210. 

Hand Delivery/ Courier: Office of Regulations and Interpretations, Employee Benefits 
Security Administration, Attn: Definition of Fiduciary, Room N-5655, U.S. Department of 
Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20210. 

Instrnctions: All comments received must include the agency name and Regulatory Identifier 
Number (RIN) for this rnlemaking (RIN 121 O-AB32). Persons submitting comments 
electronically are encouraged not to submit paper copies. All comments received will be made 
available to the public, posted without change to http://www.regulations.gov and 
http://www.dol.gov/ebsa, and made available for public inspection at the Public Disclosure 
Room, N-1513, Employee Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, 200 
Constitution Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20210, including any personal infom1ation 
provided. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 

For Questions Regarding the Proposed Rule: Contact Luisa Grillo-Chope or Fred Wong, Office 
of Regulations and Interpretations, Employee Benefits Security Administration (EBSA), (202) 
693-8500. 

For Questions Regarding the Proposed Prohibited Transaction Exemptions: Contact Karen 
Lloyd, Office of Exemption Detem1inations, EBSA, 202-693-8554. 

For Questions Regarding the Regulatory Impact Analysis: Contact G. Christopher Cosby, Office 
of Policy and Research, EBSA, 202-693-8425. (These are not toll-free numbers). 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

I. EXECUTIVE SUl\iMARY 

A. Purpose of the Regulatory Action 

Under ERISA and the Code, a person is a fiduciary to a plan or IRA to the extent that he or she 
engages in specified plan activities, including rendering "investment advice for a fee or other 
compensation, direct or indirect, with respect to any moneys or other property of such plan .... " 
ERISA safeguards plan participants by imposing trnst law standards of care and undivided 
loyalty on plan fiduciaries, and by holding fiduciaries accountable when they breach those 

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 
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obligations. In addition, fiduciaries to plans and IRAs are not pem1itted to engage in "prohibited 
transactions," which pose special dangers to the security of retirement, health, and other benefit 
plans because of fiduciaries' conflicts of interest with respect to the transactions. Under this 
regulatory strncture, fiduciary status and responsibilities are central to protecting the public 
interest in the integrity of retirement and other important benefits, many of which are tax­
favored. 

In 1975, the Department issued regulations that significantly narrowed the breadth of the 
statutory definition of fiduciary investment advice by creating a five-part test that must, in each 
instance, be satisfied before a person can be treated as a fiduciary adviser. This regulatory 
definition applie§. to both ERISA and the Code. The Department created the test in a very 
different context, prior to the existence of participant-directed 401 (k) plans, widespread 
investments in IRAs, and the now commonplace rollover of plan assets from fiduciary-protected 
plans to IRAs. Today, as a result of the five-part test, many investment professionals, 
consultants, and advisers1 have no obligation to adhere to ERISA's fiduciary standards or to the 
prohibited transaction rnles, despite the critical role they play in guiding plan and IRA 
investments. Under ERISA and the Code, if these advisers are not fiduciaries, they may operate 
with conflicts of interest that they need not disclose and have limited liability under federal 
pension law for any ham1s resulting from the advice they provide. Non-fiduciaries may give 
imprndent and disloyal advice; steer plans and IRA owners to investments based on their own, 
rather than their customers' financial interests; and act on conflicts of interest in ways that would 
bepr_o_hjb_i!e~_if!h~ _siune_ pe_r_s()nB_\,Ve_r~ _fi_d~1c_il1r_ie_s~ }11 Ji_g!i! ()f_t!ie_ ~r_el1~t!i_al1~ jnte_nt_of~!ZI~~- ____ - -{~o_e_le_t_ed_:_fl_at_IY _________ ~ 
and the Code's statutory definition, the growth of participant-directed investment arrangements 
and IRAs, and the need for plans and IRA owners to seek out and rely on sophisticated financial 
advisers to make critical investment decisions in an increasingly complex financial marketplace, 
the Department believes it is appropriate to revisit its 1975 regulatory definition as well as the 
Code's virtually identical regulation. With this regulatory action, the Department proposes to 
replace the 197 5 regulations with a definition of fiduciary investment advice that better reflects 
the broad scope of the statutory text and its purposes and better protects plans, participants, 
beneficiaries, and IRA owners from conflicts of interest, imprndence, and disloyalty. 

The Department has also sought to preserve beneficial business models by separately proposing 
new exemptions from ERISA's prohibited transaction rnles that will broadly pem1it fim1s to 
continue f <Hn111011_ fe_e_ ~u1d_ c_o_n~R_ep~a_t~o~1 _p_n1c!i~e_s_, l1~ lopg _a~ !hey _ar_e_ \Villi11g !o_ adhe_r_e _t() ~ljs_ic_ _ 
standards aimed at ensuring that their advice is in the best interest of their customers. Rather 
than create a highly prescriptive set of transaction-specific exemptions, the Department instead is 
proposing a set of exemptions that flexibly accommodate a wide range of current business 
practices, while minimizing the ham1ful impact of conflicts of interest on the quality of advice. 

1 By using the term "adviser," the Department does not intend to limit its use to investment advisers registered 
under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 or under state law. For example, as used herein, an adviser can be an 
individual or entity who can be, among other things, a representative ofa registered investment adviser, a bank or 
similar financial institution, an insurance company, or a broker-dealer. 

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 

- Comment [A3]: 
EBSA: We would reject changes. Not all fee 

\\ \ practices will be permitted by the exemptions. By 
l, \ deleting "all" we slightly soften this by leaving it at 

11 \ #common fee and compensation practices., .11 

\I \ ?=================< 
\I 
\I 

\I 

\I 

\I 

\I 

\I 

\I 

\I 

Comment [A4]: Okay, but this is the phrasing we 
used in the previous fact sheet so we will need to 
keep using itthere and in other materials like the 
FAQs. 
EBSA Response: OK, but I think EBSA has 
commented on the other documents suggesting 
that "all" be deleted or the sentences be revised. 
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In particular, the Department is proposing a new exemption (the "Best Interest Contract 
Exemption") that would provide conditional relief for common compensation such as _ ~ 
commissions and revenue ]sharing], that an adviser and the adviser's en1ploytng fim1 might - - - - - - __ - Comment [AS]: 

receive in connection with investn1ent advtce-to retail retiren1ent -invesfors~ T In order fo-prote(.£ - - ESSA: We would reject adding word "all." 

the interests of plans, participants and beneficiaries, and IRA owners, the exemption requires the 
fim1 and the adviser to contractually acknowledge fiduciary status, commit to adhere to J:i.~J_i_c,;, ______ - l Deleted: fundamental 

'----------------~ standards of impartial conduct, adopt policies and procedures reasonably designed to minimize 
the ham1fol impact of conflicts of interest, and disclose basic infom1ation on their conflicts of 
interest and on the cost of their advice. Central to the exemption is the adviser and fim1's 
agreement to meet fondamental obligations of fair dealing and fiduciary conduct - to give advice 
that is in the customer's best interest; avoid misleading statements; receive no more than 
reasonable compensation; and comply with applicable federal and state laws governing advice. 
This standards-based approach aligns the adviser's interests with those of the plan participant or 
IRA owner, while leaving the adviser and employing fim1 with the flexibility and discretion 
necessary to detem1ine how best to satisfy these basic standards in light of the unique attributes 
of their business. The Department is similarly proposing to amend existing exemptions for a 
wide range of fiduciary advisers to ensure adherence to these basic standards of fiduciary 
conduct In addition, the Department is proposing a new exemption,fur_"principal transactions" __ -1 Deleted: facilitating 

in which advisers sell certain debt securities to plans and IRAs out oftheir own tnventory,-as - - - - '---------------~ 
well as an amendment to an existing exemption that would pem1it advisers to receive 
compensation for extending credit to plans or IRAs to avoid failed securities transactions. In 
addition to the Best Interest [Contract Exemptioq, the Department is also seeking public comment 
on whether it should issue a separate streamlined exen1pt1on-that-wo1lid allow advisers to-receive -
otherwise prohibited compensation in connection with plan, participant and beneficiary accounts, 
and IRA investments in certain high-quality low-fee investments, subject to fewer conditions. 
This is discussed in greater detail in the Federal Register notice related to the proposed Best 
Interest Contract Exemption. 

This broad regulatory package aims to enable advisers and their fim1s to give advice that is in the 
best interest of their customers, without disrnpting common compensation arrangements under 
conditions designed to ensure the adviser is acting in the best interest of the advice recipient 
The proposed new exemptions and amendments to existing exemptions are published elsewhere 
in today's edition of the Federal Register. 

B. Summary of the Major Provisions of the Proposed Rule 

The proposed rnle clarifies and rationalizes the definition of fiduciary investment advice subject 
to specific Cfil\lto_-ouu;_for particular types of communications that are best understood as non-
fiduciary i; natur~. ~ Q~4e! !~e~ 4efip!t[op: ~ p~r~~~ ~ep~~r~ }~V:e~tfi!ep! ~4V:i~e~ ~y~ (l) p~o~v14i~g ~ ~ ~ 

2 _For purposes of the exemption, retail investors include (1) the participants and beneficiaries of participant-directed 
Plans, (2) IRA owners, and (3) the sponsors (including employees, officers, or directors thereof) of non participant­
directed Plans with fewer than 100 participants to the extent it acts as a fiduciary with respect to plan investment 
decisions. 
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Comment [A6]: Flagging that need to update 
this to Best Interest Contract Exemption 
throughout. 
EBSA Response: OK 

Comment [A7]: 
EBSA: Leaving out the concept that there are 
limitations to the definition of investment advice 
under the rule does not accurately summarize the 
construct of the rule. That is, the rule is in two parts 

basically. Part one of the rule is the definition of 

investment advice and part two, limitations on that 
definition. 

Comment [AS]: As discussed, would search and 
replace all references to limitations and limits with 
#carve-outs" or "exceptions". 

EBSA Response: OK 
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investment or investment management recommendations or appraisals to an employee benefit 
plan, a plan fiduciary, participant or beneficiary, or an IRA owner or fiduciary, and (2) either (a) 
acknowledging the fiduciary nature of the advice, or (b) acting pursuant to an agreement, 
arrangement, or understanding with the advice recipient that the advice is individualized to, or 
specifically directed to, the recipient for consideration in making investment or management 
decisions regarding plan assets. When such advice is provided for a fee or other compensation, 
direct or indirect, the person giving the advice is a fiduciary. 

Although the new general definition of investment advice avoids the weaknesses of the current 
regulation, standing alone it could sweep in some relationships that are not appropriately 
regarded as fiduciary in nature and that the Department does not believe Congress intended to 
cover as fiduciary relationships. Accordingly, the proposed regulation includes a number of 
specifiq:afV'e_ ()ll_ts_ !o_ t}i~ g~1!e!a_l _d_efi11i!i911._ f ()f_ ~x_a1lipJe, !~e_r_eg11h1ti()1! c1r_a\,\'_s _lll1 J1!1P()rta_n! ______ -1 Deleted: limitations and 

distinction between fiduciary investn1ent advice and non-fiduciary investn1ent or retiren1ent ---------------~ 
education. Similarly, under the "seller's carve,-out"3 l t~e_2r9p()s_a1 \,\'()l1lsl _n_o! !r~a_t _____________ - Comment [A9]: As discussed, would change all 

recommendations made to a plan in an am1 's length transaction where there is generally no 1 references 10 the exception to seller's exception, 
but fine with continuing to use word counterparty 

expectation of fiduciary investment advice, provided that the fa_ry~-()l1t~ s_ s_p_e~ifi_c _C()1lcli!i()l1S_ a_r~ _ _ 1~ 1 when describing what it does. 

met. In addition, the proposal includes specific carve outs for advice rendered by employees of 1 1 1 >==EB~S~A~R~es~p~on~s~e:~O~K---------­
the plan sponsor, platfom1 providers, and persons who offer or enter into swaps or security-based 
swaps with plans. All of the n1le 's carve outs are subject to conditions designed to draw an Deleted: counterparty seller's exceptionlimitation 

appropriate line between fiduciary ~nd non-ftdt1ciary-conlnlllllicattons,-consisten(with the -text - - -, , 
11 Deleted: limitation's 

and purpose of the statutory provisions. ' ir=D~e~l~et~e~d~: ~lirm~.~ta~ti~on~s~an~d-------===; 

Finally, in addition to the new proposal in this Notice, the Department is simultaneously 
proposing a new Best Interest Contract Exemption, revising other exemptions from the 
prohibited transaction rnles of ERISA and the Code and is exploring through a request for 
comments the concept of an,f!_cl-cli!i()JJQL]()~-_f~e_ ~x_e1lip!i()l1, _____________________________ -1 Deleted: alternative 

~--------------~ 

C. [Costs, .Benefits and Transfers 1 ____________________________________ _ 

3 Although referred to herein as the "seller's carve-out." we note that the carve out provided in paragraph (b)(l)(i) of 
the proposal is not limited to sales and would apply to incidental advice provided in connection with an arm's length 

Comment [AlO]: Am not re-adding prior 
comments here per the highlighted note below. 
Tend to think it should mention the 100bps 

estimate somewhere. 

Deleted: IEBSA HAS NOT INCLUDED 
RESPONSES TO OMB COJ'l'.IMENTS IN THIS 
SECTION. EBSA SEPARATELY RESPONDED 
TO THE SAME ISSUES RAISED IN THE FULL 
RIA. ONCE RESOLVED IN THE FULL RIA 
CORRESPONDING CHANGES WILL BE 
MADE HERE.l'lf 

sale purchase loan or bilateral contract between a-12lan investor with financial expertise and the adviser. _________ - -{ Deleted: sophisticated 
~--------------~ 
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that IRA holders receiving conflicted investment advice can expect their investments to 
underperfom1 bY an average of 100 basis points per year over the next 20 years. The 
underperfom1ance associated with conflicts of interest - in the mutual funds segment alone -
could cost IRA investors more than $210 billion over the next 10 years and nearly $500 billion 
over the next 20 years. Some studies suggest that the underperformance of broker-sold mutual 
funds may be even higher than 100 basis points. possibly due to loads that are taken off the top 
and/or poor timing of broker sold investments. If the true underperfonnance of broker-sold 
funds is 200 basis points IRA mutual fund holders could suffer from underperformance 
amounting to $430 billion over 10 years and nearly $1 trillion across the next 20 years. While 
the estimates based on the mutual fund market are large the total market impact could be much 
larger. Insurance products Exchange Traded Funds CETFs) individual stocks and bonds and 
other products are all sold by brokers with conflicts of interes~. _______________________ _ 
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Comment [All]: Comments in previous pass­
backs have suggested that we should 1) delete 
passages such as this that focus on the larger issue 
at hand (as opposed to the benefits that the rule 
with deliver) and 2) revise summaries of the analysis 
{such as in this section l.C) to achieve a more 
balanced description of the effects of the rule. 

DOL: We disagree with these suggestions. This 

passage and others in the summary speak to the 

Need For Regulatory Action in this space. The Need 
For Regulatory Action is not only required by 

Circular AA, but especially important to 

demonstrate in this case because it was heavily 

disputed following the 2010 proposal. We believe 
that the discussion in this summary and others is 

appropriately balanced between need for regulatory 

action, gains to investors, and compliance costs. 



TABLf I.-Partial Gains to fm·esrors and \011111/iance \ows .~cc01111rim;; Tahle 

Primary Low High YeJrr 
Category Estimate Estimate Estimate Dollar 
Partial Gains to 

Annualized. S4,243 S3.830 2015 
Moneti?ed 
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Discount Period 
Rate Covered 

2017-2026 

(Srnillions 1vear) S5J 70 S4.666 2015 3% 2017-2026 
!Notes: The proposal is expected to deliver large gains for retirement investors. Because of data 
constraints only some of these gains can be quantified with confidence. The estimates in this table 
cautiously focus only on how load shares paid to brokers affect the size ofloads IRA investors holding 
load funds pay and the returns they achieve. These estimates assume that the rule will eliminate (rather 
than just reduce) underperformance associated with the practice of incentivizing broker 
recommendations through variable front-end-load sharing· if the rule's effectiveness in this area is 
substantially below 100 percent. these estimates may overstate these particular gains to investors in the 
front-load mutual fund segment of the IRA market. This very cautious approach to the economic 
analysis accounts for only a fraction of potential conflicts associated losses and affected retirement 
assets. The total gains to IRA investors attributable to the rule may be much higher than the guantified 
gains alone. The proposal is expected to yield large, additional gains for IRA investors. including 
potential reductions in excessive trading and associated transaction costs and timing errors (such as 
might be associated with return chasing) improvements in the performance of IRA investments other 
than front-load mutual funds. and improvements in the perfonnance of DC plan investments. As noted 
above. under current rules. adviser conflicts could cost IRA investors as much as $410 billion over 10 
years and $1 trillion over 20 years. so the potential additional gains to IRA investors from this proposal 
could be very large.I 
TI1e partial gains estin1ates are disc-our1ted-tl~ Decert1ber 3 f 2015.- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Compliance Costs 

Annuali?ed. 2016-2025 
Moneti?ed 
(Smillionsivear) S331 S667 2015 3% 2016-2025 
1\'otes: lfhe compliance costs of the current proposal including the cost of compliance reviews. 
comprehensive compliance and supervisory system changes. policies and procedures and training 
programs updates insurance increases disclosure preparation and distribution and some costs of 
changes in other business practices. ' ___________________________________________ _ 

Annualized 
Moneti?ed 

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 

2016-2025 

Comment [A12]: Does the table have to 
structured this way? Seems repetitive and hard to 
read. 

DOL: Yes, we realize that this is repetitive with 
respect to the text above. However, tables can 
easily be removed from text and taken out of 
context. The context is extremely important here 
because we are able to quantify only a fraction of 
the gains to investors that the rule will achieve. 

Comment [A13]: Should 11tigation costs be 
included here? Or does the RIA assume that all 
litigation costs are covered by insurance per the 
next row? 

DOL: The RIA assumes that all litigation costs are 
covered by insurance. Part of the insurance 
premium increase is included in the Compliance 
Costs row and part is included in the Insurance 
Premium Transfers row. 
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A. Rulemaking Background 
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Deleted: \Vhen the Department promulgated the 
1975 rule, 401(k) plans did not exist, IRAs had only 

1 
just been authorized, and the majority ofretirement 

1 plan assets \Vere managed by professionals, rather 
1 than directed by individual investors. Today. 
1 individual retirement investors have much greater 

1 
responsibility for directing their o\vn investments. 

1 but they seldom have the training or specialized 
1 expertise necessary to prudently manage retirement 

1 

assets on their o\vn. As a result, they often depend 

1 
on investment advice for guidance on hmv to 

1 manage their hard-earned savings to achieve a secure 
1 retirement. In the current marketplace for retirement 

investment advice, hmvever, advisers commonly 
have direct and substantial conflicts of interest. 
\vhich encourage investment recommendations that 
generate higher fees for the advisers at the expense 
of their customers and often result in lmver returns 
for customers even before fees. ,-

f 
A \vide body of economic evidence supports a 
finding that the impact of these conflicts of interest 
on investment outcomes is large and, from the 
perspective of advice recipients, negative. As 

detailed in the Regulatory Impact Analysis at { 
HYPERLINK 

"http://v .. '\v\v.dol.gov/ebsa/xxxxxxxxxxx" l, the 
supporting evidence includes, inter alia, statistical 
analyses of conflicted investment channels. 
experimental studies, government reports 
documenting abuse, and basic economic theory on 
the dangers posed by conflicts of interest and by the 
asymmetries of information and expertise that 
characterize interactions bet\veen ordinary retirement 
investors and conflicted advisers. A careful revie\v 
of this data, \vhich consistently points to a substantial 
failure of the market for retirement advice, suggests 
that IRA holders receiving conflicted investment 
advice can expect their investments to underperform 
exchange advisers. ,-

f 
The proposal \Vould narrmv performance gaps 
attributable to adviser conflicts of interest and 
promote ERISA compliance. As a result, the 
Department is confident that the proposed rule would 
achieve a substantial reduction of the $160 to $320 
billion ofunderperforrnance that IRA mutual fund 
assets affected by conflicted advice could othenvise 
suffer over the next 10 years. Over the same ten­
year period, the Department estimates that the costs 
of the current proposal, including the cost of 
compliance, insurance, and some changes in 
business practices, \Vill total about $2.6 billion. This 
estimate does not account for market improvements 
in cost effectiveness or the ne\v proposal's positive 
contribution to such improvements. Costs could be 
substantially lmver if, as expected, ne\ver and more 
cost-effective business models gain market share. 
As detailed in the Regulatory Impact Analysis, the 
size of the performance gap caused by conflicts of 
interest, and the likely costs, benefits and transfer 
impacts of the rule are all subject to uncertainty. ,­
Due to a lack of comprehensive data that \vould 
allmv for a more precise calculation of the total 
benefit of the rule and the inherent uncertainties of 
such forecasting, the Department has taken the 
approach of specifically quantifying benefits related 
only to one category of investments and fee practices 
(front-end-load mutual funds) and one portio ... 1 
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The market for retirement advice has changed dramatically since the Department first 
promulgated the 197 5 regulation. Individuals, rather than large employers and professional 
money managers, have become increasingly responsible for managing retirement assets as IRAs 
and participant-directed plans, such as 40l(k) plans, have supplanted defined benefit pensions. 
At the same time, the variety and complexity of financial products have increased, widening the 
infom1ation gap between advisers and their clients. Plan fiduciaries, plan participants and IRA 
investors must often rely on experts for advice, but are unable to assess the quality of the expert's 
advice or effectively guard against the adviser's conflicts of interest. This challenge is especially 
trne of small retail investors who typically do not have financial expertise and can ill-afford 
lower returns to of their retirement savings caused by conflicts. As baby boomers retire, they are 
increasingly moving money from ERISA-covered plans, where their employer has both the 
incentive and the fiduciary duty to facilitate sound investment choices, to IRAs where both good 
and bad investment choices are myriad and advice that is conflicted is commonplace. Such 
"rollovers" will total more than $2 trillion over the next 5 years. These trends were not apparent 
when the Department promulgated the 1975 rnle. At that time, 40l(k) plans did not yet exist and 
IRAs had only just been authorized. These changes in the marketplace, as well as the 
Department's experience with the rnle since 1975, support the Department's efforts to reevaluate 
and revise the rnle through a public process of notice and comment rnlemaking. 

On October 22, 2010, the Department published a notice in the Federal Register (75 FR 65263) 
(2010 Proposal) proposing to amend 29 CFR 2510.3-2l(c) (40 FR 50843, Oct. 31, 1975), which 
defines when a person renders investment advice to an employee benefit plan, and consequently 
acts as a fiduciary under ERISA section 3(2l)(A)(ii) (29 U.S.C. 1002(2l)(A)(ii)). In response to 
this proposal, the Department received over 300 comment letters. A public hearing on the 2010 
Proposal was held in Washington, DC on March 1 and 2, 2011, at which 38 speakers testified. 
The transcript of the hearing was made available for additional public comment and the 
Department received over 60 additional comment letters. In addition, the Department has held 
more than three dozen meetings with interested parties. 

A number of commenters urged consideration of other means to attain the objectives of the 2010 
Proposal and of additional analysis of the proposal's expected costs and benefits. In light of 
these comments and because of the significance of this rnle, the Department decided to issue a 
new proposed regulation. On September 19, 2011 the Department announced that it would 
withdraw the 2010 Proposal and propose a new rnle defining the tem1 "fiduciary" for purposes of 
section 3(2l)(A)(ii) ofERISA. Today's notice in the Federal Register folfills that 
announcement in publishing both a new proposed regulation and withdrawing the 2010 Proposal. 
Consistent with the President's Executive Orders 12866 and 13563, extending the rnlemaking 
process will give the public a foll opportunity to evaluate and comment on the revised proposal 
and updated economic analysis. In addition, we are simultaneously publishing proposed new 
and amended exemptions from ERISA and the Code's prohibited transaction rnles designed to 
allow certain broker-dealers, insurance agents and others that act as investment advice fiduciaries 
to nevertheless continue to receive common fom1s of compensation that would otherwise be 
prohibited, subject to appropriate safeguards. The existing class exemptions will otherwise 
remain in place, affording flexibility to fiduciaries who currently use the exemptions or who 
wish to use the exemptions in the fohire. The proposed new regulatory package takes into 
account robust public comment and input and represents a substantial change from the 2010 
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proposal; balancing long overdue consumer protections with flexibility for the industry in order 
to minimize disrnptions to current business models. 

In crafting the current regulatory package, the Department has benefitted from the views and 
perspectives expressed in public comments to the 2010 Proposal. For example, the Department 
has responded to concerns about the impact of the prohibited transaction rnles on the 
marketplace for retail advice by proposing a broad package of exemptions that are intended to 
ensure that advisers and their firn1s make recommendations that are in the best interest of plan 
participants and IRA In response to 
commenters, the Department has also detern1ined not to include, as fiduciary in nature, appraisals 
or valuations of employer securities provided to ESOPsJITJQ,fe_1!aj11 c_o_lle_c!i\'e_ ~nve_s_t111e_11t_ fi111~s __ ~ ~ ~ Deleted: .. [and has limited?as well as restricted 

holding assets of plan investors" On a more technical point, the Departn1ent also followed the fiduciary treatment of appraisals [to those of'] 
,.___ provided to 

recommendations that it not auton-latically-assign fi<l11ciary-statl1s to-investn1ent advisers l.u1der - - ~~ ~ ~ 
\ Comment [A14]: EBSA revised to address OMB 

the Advisers Act, but instead follow an entirely functional approach to fiduciary status. In light 
of public comments, the new proposal also makes a number of other changes to the regulatory 
proposal. For example, the Department has addressed concerns that it could be misread to 
extend fiduciary status to persons that prepare newsletters, television commentaries, or 
conference speeches that contain recommendations made to the general public. Similarly, the 

\ edits suggesting th is clause was confusing. 

i Deleted: and a plan or IRA 

rnle,p~aJ<e_s_ c_le_l1r_tiiat_tiiat _fi_d~1c_i~l"Y_ S!l1~1s_ ~o_e_s _n9! e_x_te_11d_ t9 _i11te_f11_al c_on12a_ny _pe_]'"s91111e_l ~h_o ___ J ~ ~ 1 Deleted: 
give advice on behalf of their plan sponsor as part of their duties, but receive no con1pensation --------------~ 
beyond their salary for the provision of advice. The Department is appreciative of the comments 
it received to the 2010 Proposal, and more fully discusses a number of the comments that 
influenced change in the sections that follow. In addition, the Department is eager to receive 
comments on the new proposal in general, and requests public comment on a number of specific 
aspects of the package as indicated below. 

The following discussion summarizes the 2010 Proposal, describes some of the concerns and 
issues raised by commenters, and explains the new proposed regulation, which is published with 
this notice. 

B. The Statute and Existing Regulation 

ERISA (the "Act") is a comprehensive statute designed to protect the interests of plan 
participants and beneficiaries, the integrity of employee benefit plans, and the security of 
retirement, health, and other critical benefits. The broad public interest in ERISA-covered plans 
is reflected in the Act's imposition of stringent fiduciary responsibilities on parties engaging in 
important plan activities, as well as in the tax-favored status of plan assets and investments. One 
of the chief ways in which ERISA protects employee benefit plans is by requiring that plan 
fiduciaries comply with fi.mdamental obligations rooted in the law oftrnsts. In particular, plan 
fiduciaries must manage plan assets prndently and with undivided loyalty to the plans and their 
participants and beneficiaries.4 In addition, they must refrain from engaging in "prohibited 
transactions," which the Act,d_oics_ rio_t_p_e1111iS JJe_cai.u;e_ o_f_tlie_ slii11g_e!s_ t9 _tlie_ ip!e_re_s!s_ o_f_tlie_ p~a11 __ -~~~1 Deleted: forbids 

--------------~ 

4 
ERISA section 404(a). 
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and IRA posed by the transactions. 5 When fiduciaries violate ERISA 's fiduciary duties or the 
prohibited transaction rnles, they may be held personally liable for any losses to the investor 
resulting from the breach.6 In addition, violations of the prohibited transaction rnles are subject 
to excise taxes under the Code. 

The Code also protects individuals who save for retirement through tax-favored accounts that are 
not generally covered by ERIS A, such as IRAs, through a more limited regulation of fiduciary 
conduct. Although ERISA's general fiduciary obligations ofprndence and loyalty do not govern 
the fiduciaries of IRAs and other plans not covered by ERISA, these fiduciaries are subject to the 
prohibited transaction rnles of the Code. In this context, however, the sole statutory sanction for 
engaging in the illegal transactions is the assessment of an excise tax enforced by the Internal 
Revenue Service (IRS). Thus, unlike participants in plans covered by Title I ofERISA, IRA 
owners do not have a statutory right to bring suit against fiduciaries under ERISA for violation of 
the prohibited transaction rnles and fiduciaries are not personally liable to IRA owners for the 
losses caused by their misconduct. 

Under this statutory framework, the detern1ination of who is a "fiduciary" is of central 
importance. Many ofERISA's and the Code's protections, duties, and liabilities hinge on 
fiduciary status. In relevant part, section 3(21 )(A) of ERISA provides that a person is a fiduciary 
with respect to a plan to the extent he or she (i) exercises any discretionary authority or 
discretionary control with respect to management of such plan or exercises any authority or 
control with respect to management or disposition of its assets; (ii) renders investment advice for 
a fee or other compensation, direct or indirect, with respect to any moneys or other property of 
such plan, or has any authority or responsibility to do so; or, (iii) has any discretionary authority 
or discretionary responsibility in the administration of such plan. Section 4975( e )(3) of the IRC 
identically defines "fiduciary" for purposes of the prohibited transaction rnles set forth in Code 
section 4975. 

The statutory definition contained in section 3(2l)(A) deliberately casts a wide net in assigning 
fiduciary responsibility with respect to plan assets. Thus, 'ianY Ja~1!h~~i!y_ o_r_c~1ltr()r _oy~r_p_hu1 _____ - Comment [A15]: Is this emphasis added? 1t so, 

assets is sufficient to confer fiduciary status, and any person who renders "investment advice for ' , would acknowledge or not include it. 
EBSA Response: OK 

a fee or other compensation, direct or indirect" js an investment advice fiduciary,. regardless of ' ;;=~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
whether they have direct control over the plan's-assets~ and regardle-ss of thetr -stah1s_a_s -an - - - - - ~\' ~ 
investment adviser and/or broker under the federal securities laws. The statutory definition and ' 
associated fiduciary responsibilities were enacted to ensure that plans can depend on persons 
who provide investment advice for a fee to provide recommendations that are prndent, loyal, and 
untainted by conflicts of interest. In the absence of fiduciary status, persons who provide 
investment advice would neither be subject to ERISA's fi.mdamental fiduciary standards, nor 
accountable under ERISA or the Code for imprndent, disloyal, or tainted advice, no matter how 
egregious the misconduct or how substantial the losses. Plans, individual participants and 
beneficiaries, and IRA owners often are not financial experts and consequently must rely on 
professional advice to make critical investment decisions. The statutory definition, prohibitions 

ERISA section 406. The Act also prohibits certain transactions between a plan and a "party in interest." 

ERISA section 409; see also ERISA section 405. 
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on conflicts of interest, and core fiduciary obligations of prndence and loyalty, all reflect 
Congress' recognition in 197 4 of the fundamental importance of such advice to protect savers' 
retirement nest eggs. In the years since then, the significance of financial advice has become still 
greater with increased reliance on participant-directed plans and self-directed IRAs for the 
provision of retirement benefits. 

In 1975, the Department issued a regulation, at 29 C.F.R. 2510.3-2l(c)(l975) defining the 
circumstances under which a person is treated as providing "investment advice" to an employee 
benefit plan within the meaning of section 3(21 )(A)(ii) of ERIS A (the "1975 regulation"), and 
the Department of the Treasury issued a virtually identical regulation under the Code. 7 The 
regulation narrowed the scope of the statutory definition of fiduciary investment advice by 
creating a five-part test that must be satisfied before a person can be treated as rendering 
investment advice for a fee. Under the regulation, for advice to constitute "investment advice," 
an adviser who is not a fiduciary under another provision of the statute must - ( 1) render advice 
as to the value of securities or other property, or make recommendations as to the advisability of 
investing in, purchasing or selling securities or other property (2) on a regular basis (3) pursuant 
to a mutual agreement, arrangement or understanding, with the plan or a plan fiduciary that ( 4) 
the advice will serve as a primary basis for investment decisions with respect to plan assets, and 
that (5) the advice will be individualized based on the particular needs of the plan or IRA. The 
regulation provides that an adviser is a fiduciary with respect to any particular instance of advice 
only ifhe or she meets each and every element of the five-part test with respect to the particular 
advice recipient or plan at issue. 

As the marketplace for financial services has developed in the years since 1975, the five-part test 
may now undem1ine, rather than promote, the statutes' text and purposes. The narrowness of the 

The 1975 regulation provides in relevant part: 
(c)(l) Investment advice. (1) A person shall be deemed to be rendering "investment advice" to an employee 
benefit plan, within the meaning of section 3(21)(A)(ii) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act 
of 1974 (the Act) and this paragraph, only if: 
(i) Such person renders advice to the plan as to the value of securities or other property, or makes 
recommendation as to the advisability of investing in, purchasing, or selling securities or other property; 
and 
(ii) Such person either directly or indirectly (e.g., through or together with any affiliate)-
(A) Has discretionary authority or control, whether or not pursuant to agreement, arrangement or 
understanding, with respect to purchasing or selling securities or other property for the plan; or 
(B) Renders any advice described in paragraph ( c)(l)(i) of this section on a regular basis to the plan 
pursuant to a mutual agreement, arrangement or understanding, written or otherwise, between such person 
and the plan or a fiduciary with respect to the plan, that such services will serve as a primary basis for 
investment decisions with respect to plan assets, and that such person will render individualized investment 
advice to the plan based on the particular needs of the plan regarding such matters as, among other things, 
investment policies or strategy, overall portfolio composition, or diversification of plan investments. 

40 FR 50842 (Oct. 31, 1975). The Department of Treasury issued a virtually identical regulation, at 26 CFR 
54.4975-9( c), which interprets Code section 4975(e)(3). 40 FR 50840 (Oct. 31, 1975). Under section 102 of 
Reorganization Plan No. 4of1978, 5 U.S.C. App. 1 (1996), the authority of the Secretary of the Treasury to 
interpret section 4975 of the Code has been transferred, with certain exceptions not here relevant, to the Secretary of 
Labor. References in this document to sections ofERISA should be read to refer also to the corresponding sections 
of the Code. 
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1975 regulation allows advisers, brokers, consultants and valuation firn1s to play a central role in 
shaping plan and IRA investments, without ensuring the accountability that Congress intended 
for persons having such influence and responsibility. Even when plan sponsors, participants, 
beneficiaries, and IRA owners clearly rely on paid advisers for impartial guidance, the regulation 
allows many advisers to avoid fiduciary status and disregard ERISA's fiduciary obligations of 
care and prohibitions on disloyal and conflicted transactions. As a consequence, these advisers 
can steer customers to investments based on their own self-interest (e.g., products that generate 
higher fees for the adviser even ifthere are identical lower-fee products available), give 
imprndent advice, and engage in transactions that would otherwise not be J;J_~nJ_i_tt_e_~_]Jy !l!e_ ~C:t _____ -1 Deleted: categorically prohibited 

and the Code without fear of accountability under either ERISA or the Code. 

Instead of ensuring that trnsted advisers give prndent and unbiased advice in accordance with 
fiduciary norn1s, the current regulation erects a multi-part series of technical impediments to 
fiduciary responsibility. The Department is concerned that the specific elements of the five-part 
test - which are not found in the text of the Act or Code - now work to frustrate statutory goals 
and defeat advice recipients' legitimate expectations. In light of the importance of the proper 
management of plan and IRA assets, it is critical that the regulation defining investment advice 
draws appropriate distinctions between the sorts of advice relationships that should be treated as 
fiduciary in nature and those that should not. In practice, the current regulation appears not to do 
so. Instead, the lines drawn by the five-part test frequently pern1it evasion of fiduciary status and 
responsibility in ways that undern1ine the statutory text and purposes. 

One example of the five-part test's shortcomings is the requirement that advice be famished on a 
"regular basis." As a result of the requirement, if a small plan hires an investment professional or 
appraiser on a one-time basis for an investment recommendation or valuation opinion on a large, 
complex investment, the adviser has no fiduciary obligation to the plan under ERISA. Even if 
the plan is considering investing all or substantially all of the plan's assets, lacks the specialized 
expertise necessary to evaluate the complex transaction on its own, and the consultant folly 
understands the plan's dependence on his professional judgment, the consultant is not a fiduciary 
because he does not advise the plan on a "regular basis." The plan could be investing hundreds 
of millions of dollars in plan assets, and it could be the most critical investment decision the plan 
ever makes, but the adviser would have no fiduciary responsibility under the 197 5 regulation. 
While a consultant who regularly makes less significant investment recommendations to the plan 
would be a fiduciary ifhe satisfies the other four prongs of the regulatory test, the one-time 
consultant on an enorn1ous transaction has no fiduciary responsibility. 

In such cases, the "regular basis" requirement, which is not found in the text of ERIS A or the 
Code, fails to draw a sensible line between fiduciary and non-fiduciary conduct, and undern1ines 
the law's protective purposes. A specific example is the one-time purchase of a group annuity to 
cover all of the benefits promised to substantially all of a plan's participants for the rest of their 
lives when a defined benefit plan tern1inates or a plan's expenditure of hundreds of millions of 
dollars on a single real estate transaction with the assistance of a financial adviser hired for 
purposes of that one transaction. Despite the clear importance of the decisions and the clear 
reliance on paid advisers, the advisers would not be plan fiduciaries. On a smaller scale that is 
still immensely important for the affected individual, the "regular basis" requirement also 
deprives individual participants and IRA owners of statutory protection when they seek 
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specialized advice on a one-time basis, even ifthe advice concerns the investment of all or 
substantially all of the assets held in their account (e.g., as in the case of an annuity purchase or a 
roll-over from a plan to an IRA or from one IRA to another). 

Under the five-part test, fiduciary status can also be defeated by arguing that the parties did not 
have a mutual agreement, arrangement, or understanding that the advice would serve as a 
primary basis for investment decisions. Investment professionals in today's marketplace 
frequently market retirement investment services in ways that clearly suggest the provision of 
tailored or individualized advice, while at the same time disclaiming in fine print the requisite 
"mutual" understanding that the advice will be used as a primary basis for investment decisions. 

Similarly, there appears to be a widespread belief among broker-dealers that they are not 
fiduciaries with respect to plans or IRAs because they do not hold themselves out as registered 
investment advisers, even though they often market their services as financial or retirement 
planners. The import of such disclaimers - and of the fine legal distinctions between brokers and 
registered investment advisers - is often completely lost on plan participants and IRA owners 
who receive investment advice. As shown in a sh1dy conducted by the RAND Instih1te for Civil 
Justice for the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), consumers often do not read the 
legal documents and do not understand the difference between brokers and registered investment 
advisers particularly when brokers adopt such titles as "financial adviser" and "financial 
manager."8 

Even in the absence of boilerplate fine print disclaimers, however, it is far from evident how the 
"primary basis" element of the five-part test promotes the stah1tory text or purposes of ERIS A 
and the Code. If, for example, a plan hires multiple specialized advisers for an especially 
complex transaction, it should be able to rely upon all of the consultants' advice, regardless of 
whether one could characterize any particular consultant's advice as primary, secondary, or 
tertiary. Presumably, paid consultants make recommendations - and retirement investors pay for 
them - with the hope or expectation that the recommendations could, in fact, be relied upon in 
making important decisions. When a plan, participant, beneficiary, or IRA owner directly or 
indirectly pays for advice upon which it can rely, there appears to be little stah1tory basis for 
drawing distinctions based on a subjective characterization of the advice as "primary," 
"secondary," or other. 

In other respects, the current regulatory definition could also benefit from clarification. For 
example, a number of parties have argued that the regulation, as currently drafted, does not 
encompass advice as to the selection of money managers or muhml fonds. Similarly, they have 
argued that the regulation does not cover advice given to the managers of pooled investment 
vehicles that hold plan assets contributed by many plans, as opposed to advice given to particular 
plans. Parties have even argued that advice was insufficiently "individualized" to fall within the 

8 Angela A. Hung, Noreen Clancy, JeffDominitz, Eric Talley, Claude Berrebi, Farrukh Suvankulov, Investor and 
lndust1y Perspectives on Investment Advisers and Broker-Dealers, RAND Institute for Civil Justice, commissioned 
by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, 2008, at { HYPERLINK 
"http://www.sec.gov/news/press/2008/2008- l _randiabdreport.pdf' l 
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scope of the regulation because the advice provider had failed to prndently consider the 
"particular needs of the plan," notwithstanding the fact that both the advice provider and the plan 
agreed that individualized advice based on the plan's needs would be provided, and the adviser 
actually made specific investment recommendations to the plan. Although the Department 
disagrees with each of these interpretations of the current regulation, the arguments nevertheless 
suggest that clarifying regulatory text could be helpfol. 

Changes in the financial marketplace have enlarged the gap between the 1975 regulation's effect 
and the Congressional intent of the statutory definition. The greatest change is the predominance 
of individual account plans, many of which require participants to make investment decisions for 
their own accounts. In 1975, private-sector defined benefit pensions --- mostly large, 
professionally managed fonds --- covered over 27 million active participants and held assets 
totaling almost $186 billion. This compared with just 11 million active participants in individual 
account defined contribution plans with assets of just $74 billion.9 Moreover, the great majority 
of defined contribution plans at that time were professionally managed, not participant-directed. 
In 1975, 40l(k) plans did not yet exist and IRAs had just been authorized as part ofERISA's 
enactment the prior year. In contrast, by 2012 defined benefit plans covered just under 16 
million active participants, while individual account-based defined contribution plans covered 
over 68 million active participants -- including 63 million participants in 40l(k)-type plans that 
are participant-directed. 10 

With this transfom1ation, plan participants, beneficiaries and IRA owners have become major 
consumers of investment advice that is paid for directly or indirectly. By 2012, 97 percent of 
40l(k) participants were responsible for directing the investment of all or part of their own 
account, up from 86 percent as recently as 1999 and XX in 1975 when ERISA was enacted. 11 

Also, in 2013, more than 34 million households owned IRAs. 12 

Many of the consultants and advisers who provide investment-related advice and 
recommendations receive compensation from the financial institutions whose investment 
products they recommend. This gives the consultants and advisers a strong bias, conscious or 
unconscious, to favor investments that provide them greater compensation rather than those that 
may be most appropriate for the participants. Unless they are fiduciaries, however, these 
consultants and advisers are free under ERISA and the Code, not only to receive such conflicted 
compensation, but also to act on their conflicts of interest to the detriment of their customers. In 

9 
U.S. Department of Labor, Private Pension Plan Bulletin Historical Tables and Graphs, (Dec. 2010), at { 

HYPERLINK "http://www.dol.gov/ebsa/pdf/historicaltables.pdf" 1-
10 U.S. Department of Labor, Private Pension Plan Bulletin Abstract of 2008 Form 5500 Annual Reports, (Dec. 

2010), at { HYPERLINK "http://www.dol.gov/ebsa/PDF/2008pensionplanbulletin.PDF" 1-
11 U.S. Department of Labor, Private Pension Plan Bulletin Abstract of 1999 Form 5500 Annual Reports, Number 
12, Summer 2004 (Apr. 2008), at { HYPERLINK "http://www.dol.gov/ebsa/PDF /1999pensionplanbulletin.PDF" 1-
12 Brien, Michael J., and Constantijn W.A. Panis. Analysis of Financial Asset Holdings of Households on the United 
States: 2013 Update. Advanced Analytic Consulting Group and Deloitte, Report Prepared for the U.S. Department 
of Labor, 2014. 
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addition, plans, participants, beneficiaries, and IRA owners now have a much greater variety of 
investments to choose from, creating a greater need for expert advice. Consolidation of the 
financial services industry and innovations in compensation arrangements have multiplied the 
opportunities for self-dealing and reduced the transparency of fees. 

The absence of adequate fiduciary protections and safeguards is especially problematic in light 
of the growth of participant-directed plans and self-directed IRAs; the gap in expertise and 
infom1ation between advisers and the customers who depend upon them for guidance; and the 
advisers' significant conflicts of interest. 

When Congress enacted ERISA in 1974, it made a judgment that plan advisers should be subject 
to ERIS A's fiduciary regime and that plan participants, beneficiaries and IRA owners should be 
protected from conflicted transactions by the prohibited transaction rnles. The wisdom of that 
judgment is amply supported by the economic analysis set forth herein. More fi.mdamentally, 
however, the statutory language was designed to cover a much broader category of persons who 
provide fiduciary investment advice based on their fi.mctions and to limit their ability to engage 
in self-dealing and other conflicts of interest than is currently reflected in the five-part test. 
While many advisers are committed to providing high:quality advice and always put their 
customers' best interests first, the 197 5 regulation makes it far too easy for advisers in today's 
marketplace not to do so and to avoid fiduciary responsibility even when they clearly purport to 
give individualized advice and to act in the client's best interest, rather than their own. 

C. The 2010 Proposal 

In 2010, the Department proposed a new regulation that would have replaced the five-part test 
with a new definition of what counted as fiduciary investment advice for a fee. At that time, the 
Department did not propose any new prohibited transaction exemptions and acknowledged 
uncertainty regarding whether existing exemptions would be available, but specifically invited 
comments on whether new or amended exemptions should be proposed. The proposal also 
provide~carve-outs for _ccn1duc! !h~! \V()l11~ _n~! I"e~11l! in_ fi<!t~cia_ry ~t~!t1S:_ J!i~ g~~e_ra1 _d_efi11i!i~11 __ ~ ~ ~ -{~o_e_le_t_ed_: __________ ~ 
included the following types of advice: (1) appraisals or fairness opinions concerning the value 
of securities or other property; (2) recommendations as to the advisability of investing in, 
purchasing, holding or selling securities or other property; and (3) recommendations as to the 
management of securities or other property. Reflecting the Department's longstanding 
interpretation of the 197 5 regulations, the 2010 proposal made clear that investment advice under 
the proposal includes advice provided to plan participants, beneficiaries and IRA owners as well 
as to plan fiduciaries. 

Under the 2010 Proposal, a paid adviser would have been treated as a fiduciary if the adviser 
provided one of the above types of advice and either: ( 1) represented that he or she was acting as 
an ERISA fiduciary; (2) was already an ERISA fiduciary to the plan by virtue of having control 
over the management or disposition of plan assets, or by having discretionary authority over the 
administration of the plan; (3) was already an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers 
Act of 1940 (Advisers Act); or (4) provided the advice pursuant to an agreement or 
understanding that the advice may be considered in connection with plan investment or asset 
management decisions and would be individualized to the needs of the plan, plan participant or 
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beneficiary, or IRA owner. The 2010 Proposal also provided that, for purposes of the fiduciary 
definition, relevant fees included any direct or indirect fees received by the adviser or an affiliate 
from any source. Direct fees are payments made by the advice recipient to the adviser including 
transaction-based fees, such as brokerage, nrnhml fund or insurance sales commissions. Indirect 
fees are payments to the adviser from any source other than the advice recipient such as revenue 
sharing payments from a muhml fund. 

The 2010 Proposal included specific carve-outs for the following actions that the Department __ - -{ Deleted: limitations or exceptions 

believed should not result in fiduciary stah1s. In particular~ a person wo11ld-not have -becon1e a ---
fiduciary by-

1. Providing recommendations as a seller or purchaser with interests adverse to the plan, its 
participants, or IRA owners, ifthe advice recipient reasonably should have known that 
the adviser was not providing impartial investment advice and the adviser had not 
acknowledged fiduciary stah1s. 

2. Providing investment education infom1ation and materials in connection with an 
individual account plan. 

3. Marketing or making available a menu of investment alternatives that a plan fiduciary 
could choose from, and providing general financial inforn1ation to assist in selecting and 
monitoring those investments, if these activities include a written disclosure that the 
adviser was not providing impartial investment advice. 

4. Preparing reports necessary to comply with ERISA, the Code, or regulations or fom1s 
issued thereunder, unless the report valued assets that lack a generally recognized market, 
or served as a basis for making plan distributions. 

The 2010 Proposal applied to the definition of an "investment advice fiduciary" in section 
4975(e)(3)(B) of the Code as well as to the parallel ERISA definition. These provisions apply to 
both certain ERISA covered plans, and certain non-ERISA plans such as individual retirement 
accounts. 

In the preamble to the 2010 Proposal, the Department also noted that it had previously 
interpreted the 197 5 regulation as providing that a recommendation to a plan participant on how 
to invest the proceeds of a contemplated plan distribution was not fiduciary investment advice. 
Advisory Opinion 2005-23A (Dec. 7, 2005). The Department specifically asked for comments 
as to whether the final rnle should include such recommendations as fiduciary advice. 

The 2010 Proposal prompted a large number of comments and a vigorous debate. As noted 
above, the Department made special efforts to encourage the regulated community's 
participation in this rnlemaking. In addition to an extended comment period, the Department 
held a two-day public hearing. Additional time for comments was allowed following the hearing 
and publication of the hearing transcript on the Department's website and Department 
representatives held numerous meetings with interested parties. Many of the comments 
concerned the Department's conclusions regarding the likely economic impact of the proposal, if 
adopted. A number of commenters urged the Department to undertake additional analysis of 
expected costs and benefits particularly with regard to the 2010 Proposal's coverage ofIRAs. 
After consideration of these comments and in light of the significance of this rnlemaking to the 
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retirement plan service provider industry, plan sponsors and participants, beneficiaries and IRA 
owners, the Department decided to take more time for review and to issue a new proposed 
regulation for comment. 

D. The New Proposal 

The new proposed rnle makes many revisions to the 2010 Proposal, although it also retains 
aspects of that proposal's essential framework. The new proposal broadly updates the definition 
of fiduciary investment advice, and also provides a series of carve:outs from tlie_ fi~t!cjary ________ - -{~D_e_l_et_e_d_: _1i_m_it_at_io_ns_o_n _______ ~ 
investment advice definition for communications that should not be viewed as fiduciary in 
nature. The definition generally covers the following categories of advice: (1) investment 
recommendations, (2) investment management recommendations, (3) appraisals of investments, 
or ( 4) recommendations of persons to provide investment advice for a fee or to manage plan 
assets. Persons who provide such advice fall within the general definition of a fiduciary if they 
either (a) represent that they are acting as a fiduciary under ERIS A or the Code or (b) provide the 
advice pursuant to an agreement, arrangement, or understanding that the advice is individualized 
or specifically directed to the recipient for consideration in making investment or investment 
management decisions regarding plan assets. 

The new proposal includes several carve:out§..[o_r p~r_scn1s_ \Vll() ~() 11o_t_r~pr_e~e_n! !h_a! !h_ey _ar_e _______ - -{ Deleted: limitations 
'----------------~ acting as ERISA fiduciaries, some of which were included in some forn1 in the 2010 Proposal 

but many of which were not. Subject to specified conditions, these carve-outs c_oye_r_ -=-- _________ - -{ Deleted: limitations 
'----------------~ 

(1) statements or recommendations made to a '~}l1ll_ __ e__i >f_ ()1i~m.-t!.!l~~~~~~~, _by __ 
a counterparty acting in an arn1's length transaction; 

(2) offers or recommendations to plan fiduciaries of ERISA plans to enter into a swap pr 
security-based swap [ha! ~s _r~g1!ll1t~~ !lll<i_e_r !h_e_ 8_e_c~1r_itie_s_ f\x_c!iiin_ge_~c_t _or_ !h_e ________ _ 
Commodity Exchange Act; ' 

(3) statements or recommendations provided to a plan fiduciary of an ERISA plan by an 
employee of the plan sponsor if the employee receives no fee beyond his or her norn1al 
compensation; 

( 4) marketing or making available a platforn1 of investment alternatives to be selected by 
a plan fiduciary for an ERISA participant-directed individual account r_1iin_; __________ _ 

(5) the identification of investment alternatives that meet objective criteria specified by a 
plan fiduciary of an ERISA plan or the provision of objective financial data to such 
fiduciary; 

(6) the provision of an appraisal, fairness opinion or a statement of value to an ESOP 
regarding employer securities, to a collective investment vehicle holding plan assets, or to 
a plan for meeting reporting and disclosure requirements; and 
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(7) inforn1ation and materials that constitute "investment education" or "retirement 
education". 

The new proposal applies the same definition of "investment advice" to the definition of 
"fiduciary" in section 4975(e)(3) of the Code and thus applies to investment advice rendered to 
IRAs. "Plan" is defined in the new proposal to mean any employee benefit plan described in 
section 3(3) of the Act and any plan described in section 4975( e)(l)(A) of the Code. For ease of 
reference in this proposal, the tern1 IRA has been inclusively defined to mean any account 
described in Code section 4975(e)(l)(B) through (F), such as a trne individual retirement account 
described under Code section 408(a) and health savings account described in section 223(d) of 
the Code. 13 

Many of the differences between the new proposal and the 2010 Proposal reflect the input of 
commenters on the 2010 Proposal as part of the public notice and comment process. For 
example, some commenters argued that the 2010 Proposal swept too broadly by making 
investment recommendations fiduciary in nature simply because the adviser was a plan fiduciary 
for purposes unconnected with the advice or an investment adviser under the Advisers Act. In 
their view, such status-based criteria were in tension with the Act's fi.mctional approach to 
fiduciary status and would have resulted in unwarranted and unintended compliance issues and 
costs. Other commenters objected to the lack of a requirement for these status-based categories 
that the advice be individualized to the needs of the advice recipient. The new proposal 
incorporates these suggestions: an adviser's status as an investment adviser under the Advisers 
Act or as an ERISA fiduciary for reasons unrelated to advice are no longer factors in the 
definition. In addition, unless the adviser represents that he or she is a fiduciary with respect to 
advice, the advice must be provided pursuant to an agreement, arrangement, or understanding 
that the advice is individualized or specifically directed to the recipient to be treated as fiduciary 
advice. 

Furthern1ore, the carve-outs that treat certain conduct as non-fiduciary in nature have been _ 
modified, clarified, and expan<led.1n-response io-c-on1n1ents. -For-exampfe~ the -carve.:-ol.1tlo! = = = = =- __ 
certain valuations from the definition of fiduciary investment advice has been modified and 
expanded. Under the 2010 Proposal, appraisals and valuations for compliance with certain 
reporting and disclosure requirements were not treated as fiduciary advice. The new proposal 
additionally provides a carve-out fr_o_n_i fisl11c_il],r_y _tr_e_a!n_ie_nJ f()r_ a_ppr_ajs_aJ l111d_ fainH~s_s _opinj()Il_S _f()r_ ___ -1 Deleted: an exception 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

ESOPs regarding employer securities. Although, the Department remains concerned about 
valuation advice concerning an ESOP's purchase of employer stock and about plans' reliance on 
that advice, the Department has concluded that the concerns regarding valuations of closely held 
employer stock in ESOP transaction raise unique issues that are more appropriately addressed in 
a separate regulatory initiative. Additionally, the carve-out fo! _vii~u_a!i()nB_ c_o!1~l1cJe_d_ for_ _________ -1 Deleted: exception 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

reporting and disclosure purposes has been expanded to include reporting and disclosure 

13 As discussed below in Section E. Coverage ofIRAs and Other Non-ERIS A Plans, in recognition of differences 
among the various types ofnon-ERISA plan arrangements described in Code section 4975(e)(l)(B) through (F), the 
Department solicits comments on whether it is appropriate for the regulation to cover the full range of these 
arrangements. These non-ERISA plan arrangements are tax favored vehicles under the Code like IRAs, but are not 
intended for retirement savings. 
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obligations outside ofERISA and the Code, and is applicable to both ERISA plans and IRAs. 
Many other modifications to the other carve-outs from fiduciary status, as well as new carve-outs 
and prohibited transaction exemptions, -are described-below l.n Section 1v ___ ''The -Provisions of - -
the New Proposal." 

Ill. COORDINATION WITH OTHER FEDERAL AGENCIES 

Many comments to the 2010 rnlemaking emphasized the need to ham1onize the Department's 
efforts with rnlemaking activities under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 
Protection Act, Pub. Law No. 111-203, 124 Stat. 13 76 (2010), (Dodd-Frank Act), in particular, 
the SEC' s standards of care for providing investment advice and the Commodity Futures Trading 
Commission's (CFTC) business conduct standards for swap dealers. While the 2010 Proposal 
discussed statutes over which the SEC and CFTC have jurisdiction, it did not specifically 
describe inter-agency coordination efforts. In addition, commenters questioned the adequacy of 
coordination with other agencies regarding IRA products and services. They argued that 
subjecting SEC-regulated investment advisers and broker-dealers to a special set ofERISA rnles 
for p)ans ~ _ IJtAs_Jc_o~1ld_ l~l1<! lo_ a_dslitiopiil c_o~ts _ap~ ~<Hnple2'i_ti_e~ f o_r _i11d_ivi_d~1iil~ _\V_h_o _ ll_ll1Y_ lia_v~ ___ -
several different types of accounts at the same financial institution some of which may be subject \, 
only to the SEC rnles, and others of which may be subject to both SEC rnles and new regulatory 
requirements under ERISA. 

In the course of developing the new proposal and the related proposed prohibited transaction 
exemptions, the Department has consulted with staff of the SEC and other regulators on an 
ongoing basis regarding whether the proposals will subject investment advisers and broker­
dealers who provide investment advice to requirements that create an undue compliance burden 
or conflict with their obligations under other federal laws. As part of this consultative process, 
SEC staff has provided technical assistance and infom1ation with respect to retail investors, the 
marketplace for investment advice and coordinating, to the extent possible, the agencies' 
separate regulatory provisions and responsibilities. As the Department moves forward with this 
project in accordance with the specific provisions ofERISA and the Code, it will continue to 
consult with staff of the SEC and other regulators on its proposals and their impact on retail 
investors and other regulatory regimes. One result of these discussions, particularly with staff of 
the CFTC and SEC, is the new provision at paragraph (b )(1 )(ii) of the proposed regulations 
concerning counterparty transactions with swap dealers, major swap participants, security-based 
swap dealers, and major security-based swap participants. Under the tem1s of that paragraph, 
such persons will not be treated as ERISA fiduciaries merely because, when acting as 
counterparties to swap or security-based swap transactions, they give infom1ation and perfom1 
actions required for compliance with the requirements of the business conduct standards of the 
Dodd-Frank Act and its implementing regulations. 

In pursuing these consultations, the Department has aimed to coordinate and minimize 
conflicting or duplicative provisions between ERISA, the Code and federal securities laws, to the 
extent possible. However, the governing statutes do not pem1it the Department to make the 
obligations of fiduciary investment advisers under ERISA and the Code identical to the duties of 
advice providers under the securities laws. ERISA and the Code establish consumer protections 
for some investment advice that does not fall within the ambit of federal securities laws, and vice 
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versa. Even if each of the relevant agencies were to adopt an identical definition of "fiduciary", 
the legal consequences of the fiduciary designation would vary between agencies because of 
differences in the specific duties and remedies established by the different federal laws at issue. 
ERISA and the Code place special emphasis on the elimination or mitigation of conflicts of 
interest and adherence to substantive standards of conduct, as reflected in the prohibited 
transaction rnles and ERISA's standards of fiduciary conduct. The specific duties imposed on 
fiduciaries by ERISA and the Code stern from legislative judgments on the best way to protect 
the public interest in tax-preferred benefit arrangements that are critical to workers' financial and 
physical health. The Department has taken great care to honor ERISA and the Code's specific 
text and purposes. 

At the same time, the Department has worked hard to understand the impact of the proposed rnle 
on firn1s subject to the securities laws and other federal laws, and to take the effects of those laws 
into account so as to appropriately calibrate the impact of the rnle on those firn1s. The proposed 
regulation reflects these efforts. In the Department's view, it neither undern1ines, nor 
contradicts, the provisions or purposes of the securities laws, but instead works in harn1ony with 
them. The Department has coordinated - and will continue to coordinate - its efforts with other 
federal agencies to ensure that the various legal regimes are harn1onized to the fullest extent 
possible. 

The Department has also consulted with the Department of the Treasury and the IRS, particularly 
on the subject of IRAs. Although the Department has responsibility for issuing regulations and 
prohibited transaction exemptions under section 4975 of the Code, which applies to IRAs, the 
IRS maintains general responsibility for enforcing the tax laws. The IRS' responsibilities extend 
to the imposition of excise taxes on fiduciaries who participate in prohibited transactions. 14 As a 
result, the Department and the IRS share responsibility for combating self-dealing by fiduciary 
investment advisers to tax-qualified plans and IRAs. Paragraph (e) of the proposed regulation, in 
particular, recognizes this jurisdictional intersection. 

When the Department announced that it would issue a re-proposal, it stated that it would 
consider proposing new and/or amended prohibited transaction exemptions to address the 
concerns of cornrnenters about the broader scope of the fiduciary definition and its impact on the 
fee practices of brokers and other advisers. Cornrnenters had expressed concern about whether 
longstanding exemptions granted by the Department allowing advisers, despite their fiduciary 
status under ERISA, to receive commissions in connection with rnuhml funds, securities and 
insurance products would remain applicable under the new rnle. As explained more fully below, 
the Department is simultaneously publishing in the notice section of today's Federal Register 
proposed prohibited transaction class exemptions to address these concerns. The Department 
believes that existing exemptions and these new proposed exemptions will preserve the ability to 
engage in,c()l1_1111911 fe_e_ a_n:apge_n_1e_n_t~,_\\'hile_P!()t_e~tin_g_p_hu1c pa_f!i~ipiu1t~,_b_e11e_fic_ia_rie_s _ap~ J&\ _____ -1 Deleted: all types of 

owners fron1 abusive practices that n1ay result fron1 conflicts of interest. ~-------------~ 

14 Reorganization Plan No. 4of1978, 5 U.S.C. App. 214 (2010 ed.). 
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The tem1s of these new exemptions are discussed in more detail below and in the preambles to 
the proposed exemptions. While the exemptions differ in tem1s and coverage, each imposes a 
"best interest" standard on fiduciary investment advisers. Thus, for example, the Best Interest 
Contract Exemption requires the investment advice fiduciary and associated financial institution 
to expressly agree to provide advice that is in the "best interest" of the advice recipient. As 
proposed, the best interest standard is intended to mirror the duties of prndence and loyalty, as 
applied in the context of fiduciary investment advice under sections 404(a)(l)(A) and (B) of 
ERISA. Thus, the "best interest" standard is rooted in trnst-law duties of 
prndence and loyalty adopted in section 404 of ERISA and in the cases interpreting those 
standards. 

Accordingly, the Best Interest Contract Exemption provides: 

Investment advice is in the "Best Interest" of the Retirement Investor when the Adviser 
and Financial Institution providing the advice act with the care, skill, prndence, and 
diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prndent person would exercise 
based on the investment objectives, risk tolerance, financial circumstances and needs of 
the Retirement Investor, without regard to the financial or other interests of the Adviser, 
Financial Institution, any Affiliate or other party. 

This "best interest" standard is not intended to add to or expand the ERISA section 404 standards 
of prndence and loyalty as they apply to the provision of investment advice to ERISA covered 
plans. Advisers to ERISA-covered plans are already required to adhere to the fundamental 
standards of prndence and loyalty, and can be held accountable for violations of the 
standards. Rather, the primary impact of the "best interest" standard is on the IRA 
market. Under the Code, advisers to IRAs are subject only to the prohibited transaction 
rnles. Incorporating the best interest standard in the proposed Best Interest Contract Exemption 
effectively requires advisers to comply with these basic fiduciary standards as a condition of 
engaging in transactions that would otherwise be pn)h1.b11ted.Jl.i~rn.§~!1Jfil_.£<;m_tfilJ.§_Q[.illJ~~ 

Additionally, the exemption ensures that IRA owners and investors have a contract­
based claim to hold their fiduciary advisers accountable if they violate these basic obligations of 
prndence and loyalty. 

Irv. THE PROVISIONS OF TIIE NEW PROPOSAL]_ _________________________________ _/ 

The new proposal would amend the definition of investment advice in 29 CFR 2510.3-21 (1975) 
of the regulation to replace the restrictive five-part test with a new definition that better comports 
with the statutory language in ERISA and the Code. 15 As explained below, the proposal 
accomplishes this by first describing the kinds of communications and relationships that would 

15 _For purposes of readability, this proposed rulemaking republishes 29 CFR 2510.3-21 in its entirety, as revised, 
rather than only the specific amendments to this section." See 29 CFR 2510.3-21( d)-Execution of securities 
transactions. 
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generally constitute fiduciary investment advice if the adviser receives a fee or other 
compensation. Rather than add additional elements that must be met in all instances, as under 
the current regulation, the proposal describes several specific types of advice or communications 
that would not be treated as investment advice. In the Department's view, this strncture is 
faithful to the remedial purpose of the statute, but avoids burdening activities that do not 
implicate relationships of trnst and expectations of impartiality. 

A. Categories of Advice or Recommendations 

Paragraph (a)(l) of the proposal sets forth the following types of advice, which, when provided 
in exchange for a fee or other compensation, whether directly or indirectly, and given under 
circumstances described in paragraph (a)(2), would be "investment advice" unless one of the._ _____ - -{Deleted: 

'----------------~ 
paragraph (b) applies. The listed types of advice are-

(i) A recommendation as to the advisability of acquiring, holding, disposing of or 
exchanging securities or other property, including a recommendation to take a 
distribution of benefits or a recommendation as to the investment of securities or other 
property to be rolled over or otherwise distributed from the plan or IRA; 

(ii) A recommendation as to the management of securities or other property, including 
recommendations as to the management of securities or other property to be rolled over 
or otherwise distributed from the plan or IRA; 

(iii) An appraisal, fairness opinion, or similar statement whether verbal or written 
concerning the value of securities or other property if provided in connection with a 
specific transaction or transactions involving the acquisition, disposition, or exchange, of 
such securities or other property by the plan or IRA; or 

(iv) A recommendation of a person who is also gcing to receive a fee or other 
£QJQJil~illlQl} to provide any of the types of advice described in paragraphs (i) through 
(iii) 

Except for the prong of the definition concerning appraisals and valuations discussed below, the 
proposal is strnctured so that communications must constitute a "recommendation" to fall within 
the scope of fiduciary investment advice. In that regard, as stated earlier in Section III 
concerning coordination with other Federal Agencies, the Department has consulted with staff of 
other agencies with rnlemaking authority over investment advisers and broker-dealers. FINRA 
Policy Statement 01-23 sets forth guidelines to assist brokers in evaluating whether a particular 
communication could be viewed as a recommendation, thereby triggering application of 
FINRA's Rule 2111 that requires that a firn1 or associated person have a reasonable basis to 
believe that a recommended transaction or investment strategy involving a security or securities 
is suitable for the customer. 16 Although the regulatory context for the FINRA guidance is 

16See also FINRA's Regulatory Notice 11-02, 12-25 and 12-55. Regulatory Notice 11-02 includes the following 
discussion: 

(Footnote continued on next page) 
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somewhat different, the Department believes that it provides usefol standards and guideposts for 
distinguishing investment education from investment advice under ERISA. Accordingly, the 
Department specifically solicits comments on whether it should adopt some or all of the 
standards developed by FINRA in defining communications that rise to the level of a 
recommendation for purposes of distinguishing between investment education and investment 
advice under ERISA. 

Additionally, as paragraph (d) of the proposal makes clear, the regulation does not treat the mere 
execution of a securities transaction at the direction of a plan or IRA owner as fiduciary activity. 
This paragraph remains unchanged from the 197 5 regulation other than to update references to 
the proposal's strncture. The definition's scope remains limited to advice relationships, as 
delineated in its text and does not impact merely administrative or ministerial activities necessary 
for a or IRA's fi.mctioning. ~""-"""--'""-'""-'""''--"'J"~+-'""-'"'-'~-'-"""-'""'--"-'~'C..'c"'-'~"-'-""'-'" 

(1) Recommendations to distribute plan assets 

Paragraph (a)(l)(i) specifically includes recommendations concerning the investment of 
securities to be rolled over or otherwise distributed from the plan or IRA. Noting the 
Department's position in Advisory Opinion 2005-23A that it is not fiduciary advice to make a 
recommendation as to distribution options even ifthat is accompanied by a recommendation as 
to where the distribution would be invested, (Dec. 7, 2005), the 2010 Proposal did not include 
this type of advice, but the Department requested comments on whether it should be included in 
a final regulation. Some commenters stated that exclusion of this advice from the final rnle 
would fail to protect participant accounts from conflicted advice in connection with one of the 
most significant financial decisions that participants make concerning retirement savings. Other 
commenters argued that including this advice would give rise to prohibited transactions that 
could disrnpt the routine process that occurs when a worker leaves a job, contacts a financial 
services firn1 for help rolling over a 40l(k) balance, and the fim1 explains the investments it 
offers and the benefits of a rollover. 

The proposed regulation, if finalized, would supersede Advisory Opinion 2005-23A. Thus, 
recommendations to take distributions (and thereby withdraw assets from existing plan or IRA 

For instance, a communication's content, context and presentation are important aspects of the inquiry. 
The determination of whether a "recommendation" has been made, moreover, is an objective rather than 
subjective inquiry. An important factor in this regard is whether-given its content, context and manner of 
presentation-a particular communication from a firm or associated person to a customer reasonably would 
be viewed as a suggestion that the customer take action or refrain from taking action regarding a security or 
investment strategy. In addition, the more individually tailored the communication is to a particular 
customer or customers about a specific security or investment strategy, the more likely the communication 
will be viewed as a recommendation. Furthermore, a series of actions that may not constitute 
recommendations when viewed individually may amount to a recommendation when considered in the 
aggregate. It also makes no difference whether the communication was initiated by a person or a computer 
software program. These guiding principles, together with numerous litigated decisions and the facts and 
circumstances of any particular case, inform the determination of whether the communication is a 
recommendation for purposes ofFINRA' s suitability rule. 
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investments or roll into a plan or IRA) or to entrnst plan or IRA assets to particular money 
managers, advisers, or investments would fall within the scope of covered advice. However, as 
the proposal's text makes clear, one does not act as a fiduciary merely by providing participants 
with infom1ation about plan or IRA distribution options, including the consequences associated 
with the available types of benefit distributions. In this regard, the new proposal draws an 
important distinction between fiduciary investment advice and non-fiduciary investment 
infom1ation and educational materials. The Department believes that the proposal's treatment of 
such non-fiduciary educational and infom1ational materials adequately covers the common types 
of distribution-related infom1ation that participants find useful, including infom1ation relating to 
annuitizations and other fom1s of lifetime income payment options, but welcomes input on other 
types of infom1ation that would help clarify the line between advice and education in this 
context. 

(2) Recommendations as to the management of plan investments 

The preamble to the 2010 Proposal stated that the "management of securities or other property" 
would include advice and recommendations as to the exercise of rights appurtenant to shares of 
stock (e.g., voting proxies). 75 Fed. Reg. 65266 (Oct. 22, 2010). The Department has long 
viewed the exercise of ownership rights as a fiduciary responsibility because of its material effect 
on plan investment goals. 29 CFR 2509.08-2 (2008). Consequently, individualized or 
specifically directed advice and recommendations on the exercise of proxy or other ownership 
rights are appropriately treated as fiduciary in nature. Accordingly, the proposed regulation's 
provision on advice regarding the management of securities or other property would continue to 
cover individualized advice or recommendations as to proxy voting and the management of 
retirement assets in paragraph (a)(l)(ii). 

We received comments on the 2010 proposal seeking some clarification regarding its application 
to certain practices. lrn this regard it is the Department's view that guidelines or other _ -
information on voting policies for proxi~s that are provided to ; broad class of investors without- ~\ ~ -
regard to a client's individual interests or investment policy, and which are not directed or \ \, 
presented as a recommended policy for the plan or IRA to adopt, would not rise to the level of >=~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
fiduciary investment advice under the proposal. Additionally, a recommendation addressed to all 
shareholders in a proxy statement would not result in fiduciary status on the part of the issuer of 
the statement or the person who distributes the proxy statement - Comment [A24]: Are these different from 2010 

(3) Appraisals 

The new proposal, like the current regulation which includes "advice as to the value of securities 
or other property," continues to cover certain appraisals and valuation reports. However, it is 
considerably more focused than the 2010 Proposal. Responding to comments, the proposal in 
paragraph (a)(l)(iii) covers only appraisals, fairness opinions, or similar statements that relate to 

and in response to comments? If so, would say so. 
EBSA Response: OK. 

a particular transaction. The Department also expanded the 2010 Proposal's carve-out for __ -1 Deleted: exception 

general reports or statements of value provided to satisfy required reporting and-disclosl.1re-rl.1f es - -
under ERISA or the Code. The carve-out in the 2010 proposal covered general reports or __ -1 Deleted: exception 

statements of value that merely reflectecCtlle valt1e of an investn1ent _o_f a _plan or_a_ participant or - -
beneficiary, provided for purposes of compliance with the reporting and disclosure requirements 
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of the ERISA, the Code, and the regulations, fom1s and schedules issued thereunder, unless such 
report involves assets for which there is not a generally recognized market and serves as a basis 
on which a plan may make distributions to plan participants and beneficiaries. The 2_a!"e_-(n1t ___ -~ ~ ~ -{Deleted: exception 

~-------------~ 
was broadened in this proposal to includes valuations provided solely for purposes of compliance 
with the reporting and disclosure provisions under the Act, the Code, and the regulations, fom1s 
and schedules issued thereunder, or any applicable reporting or disclosure requirement under a 
Federal or state law, rnle or regulation or self-regulatory organization (e.g., FINRA) without 
regard to the type of asset involved. In this manner, the new proposal focuses on instances 
where the plan or IRA owner is looking to the appraiser for advice on the market value of an 
asset that the investor is considering to acquire, dispose, or exchange. In many cases the most 
important investment advice that an investor receives is advice as to how much it can or should 
pay for hard to value assets. In response to comments, the proposal also contains an entirely new 
parve-out at_p_a!a_gra_p_h_ (b l(n(~il sp_e~ifi_cl],lJy a_d_d!~s_s~nE_v_alua!i<H1B_ o_r_appr_ais_als_P!()Y_i~~d_ to _a_n __ -~ ~ ~ -{ Deleted: exception 

~---~---------~ 
investment fund (e.g., collective investment fund or pooled separate account) holding assets of 
various investors in addition to at least one plan or IRA. Also, as mentioned, the Department has 
decided not to extend fiduciary coverage to valuations or appraisals for ESOPs relating to 
employer securities at this time because the Department has concluded that its concerns in this 
space raise unique issues that are more appropriately addressed in a separate regulatory initiative. 
The proposal's carve-outs do not apply, however, ifthe provider of the valuation represents or ~ ~ ~ -{Deleted: exceptions 
acknowledges that it is acting as a fi<l11ciary-with respect to- the advice. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ~---~---------~ 

Some representatives of the appraisal industry submitted comments on the 2010 Proposal 
arguing that ERISA's fiduciary duty to act solely in the interest of the plan and its participants 
and beneficiaries is inconsistent with the duty of appraisers to provide objective, independent 
value detem1inations. The Department disagrees. A biased or inaccurate appraisal does not help 
a plan, a participant or a beneficiary make prndent investment decisions. Like other fom1s of 
investment advice, an appraisal is a tool for plan fiduciaries, participants, beneficiaries, and IRA 
owners to use in deciding what price to pay for assets and whether to accept or decline proposed 
transactions. An appraiser complies with his or her obligations as an appraiser - and as a loyal 
fiduciary - by giving plan fiduciaries or participants an impartial and accurate assessment of the 
value of an asset in accordance with appraisers' professional standard of care. Nothing in 
ERISA or this regulation should be read as compelling an appraiser to slant valuation opinions to 
reflect what the plan wishes the asset were worth rather than what it is really worth. As stated in 
the preamble to the 2010 Proposal, the Department would expect a fiduciary appraiser's 
detem1ination of value to be unbiased, fair and objective and to be made in good faith based on a 
prndent investigation under the prevailing circumstances then known to the appraiser. In the 
Department's view, these fiduciary standards are fully consistent with professional standards, 
such as the Unifom1 Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USP AP). 17 

17 A number of commenters also pointed to such professional standards as alternatives to fiduciary treatment under 
ERISA. While the Department believes that such professional standards are fully consistent with the fiduciary 
duties, the rights, remedies and sanctions under both ERISA and the Code importantly turn on fiduciary status, and 
advice on the value of an asset is often the most critical investment advice a plan receives. As a result, treating 
appraisals as fiduciary advice provides an additional layer of protection for consumers without changing the duties 
of appraisers. 
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(4) Recommendations of a person to provide investment advice or 
management services 

The proposal would treat recommendations on the selection of investment managers or advisers 
as fiduciary investment advice. In the Department's view, the current regulation already covers 
such advice. The proposal simply revises the regulation's text to remove any possible ambiguity. 
The Department believes that such advice should be treated as fiduciary in nature if provided 
under the circumstances in paragraph (a)(l)(iv) and for direct or indirect compensation. Covered 
advice would include recommendations of persons to perforn1 asset management services or to 
make investment recommendations. Advice as to the identity of the person entrnsted with 
investment authority over retirement assets is often critical to the proper management and 
investment of those assets. On the other hand, general advice as to the types of qualitative and 
quantitative criteria to consider in hiring an investment manager would not rise to the level of a 
recommendation of a person to manage plan investments nor would a trade journal's 
endorsement of an investment manager. Similarly, the proposed regulation would not cover 
recommendations of administrative service providers, property managers, or other service 
providers who do not provide investment services. 

B. The Circumstances Under Which Advice is Provided 

As provided in paragraph (a)(2) of the proposal, unless a carve-out applies, a category of advice __ - -{ Deleted: limitation 

listed in the proposal would constitute "investment advice" ifthe person-providing-the advice~ - - - ~-------------~ 
either directly or indirectly (e.g., through or together with any affiliate)-

(i) Represents or acknowledges that it is acting as a fiduciary within the meaning of the 
Act or Code with respect to the advice described in paragraph (a)(l); or 

(ii) Renders the advice pursuant to a written or verbal agreement, arrangement or 
understanding that the advice is individualized to, or that such advice is specifically 
directed to, the advice recipient for consideration in making investment or management 
decisions with respect to securities or other property of the plan or IRA. 

Under paragraph (a)(2)(i), advisers who claim fiduciary status under ERISA or the Code in 
providing advice will be taken at their word. They may not later argue that the advice was not 
fiduciary in nature. Nor may they rely upon the carve-outs described in paragraph (b) on the __ -1~o_e_le_t_e_d:_l_inn_·1a_1_io_ns ________ ~ 
scope of the definition of fiduciary investment advice. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

The 2010 Proposal provided that investment recommendations provided by an investment 
adviser under the Advisers Act would, in the absence o~a carve-out, l1l1t<Hn~!ic_aJly _b_e _tr_e~!esl _a~ ___ ~ ~ -{~o_e_le_t_e_d:_an_e_xc_e_pti_·o_n _______ ~ 
investment advice. In response to comments, the new proposal drops this provision. Thus, the 
proposal avoids making such persons fiduciaries based solely on their or an affiliate' s status as 
an investment adviser under the Advisers Act. Instead, their fiduciary status will be detern1ined 
by reference to the same fi.mctional test that applies to all persons under the regulation. 

Paragraph (a)(2)(ii) of the proposal avoids treating recommendations made to the general public, 
or to no one in particular, as investment advice and thus addresses concerns that the general 
circulation of newsletters, television talk show commentary, or remarks in speeches and 
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presentations at financial industry educational conferences would result in the person being 
treated as a fiduciary. This paragraph requires an agreement, arrangement, or understanding that 
advice is directed to, a specific recipient for consideration in making investment decisions. The 
parties need not have a meeting of the minds on the extent to which the advice recipient will 
actually rely on the advice, but they must agree or understand that the advice is individualized or 
specifically directed to the particular advice recipient for consideration in making investment 
decisions. In this respect, paragraph (a)(2)(ii) differs significantly from its counterpart in the 
2010 Proposal. In particular, and in response to comments, the proposal does not require that 
advice be individualized to the needs of the plan, participant or beneficiary or IRA owner if the 
advice is specifically directed to such recipient. Under the proposal, advisers could not 
specifically direct investment recommendations to individual persons, but then deny fiduciary 
responsibility on the basis that they did not, in fact, consider the advice recipient's individual 
needs or intend that the recipient base investment decisions on their recommendations. 

Like the 2010 Proposal, and unlike the 1975 regulation, the new proposal does not require that 
advice be provided on a regular basis. Investment advice that meets the requirements of the 
proposal, even if provided only once, can be critical to important investment decisions. If the 
adviser received a direct or indirect fee in connection with its advice, the advice recipients should 
reasonably expect adherence to fiduciary standards on the same tem1s as other retirement 
investors who get recommendations from the adviser on a more routine basis. 

C. Carve-Outs from the General Definition ______________________________ <_: \ - -{ Deleted: Limitations on the Scope of 

The Department recognizes that in many circumstances, plan fiduciaries, participants, 
beneficiaries, and IRA owners may receive recommendations or appraisals that, notwithstanding 
the general definition set forth in paragraph (a) of the proposal, should not be treated as fiduciary 
investment advice. Accordingly, paragraph (b) contains a number of specific .111111111111 
Jl!e_ s_c()J)e_ ()f_ tli~ g~n_e!a1 _d_efi11i!i~11-_ Jli~ fE.rv-~-=-9-~il_Jict .P~!a_g!a.PJi 
financial reports and valuations was discussed above in c01mt:ct1on 
out at and (b)(6) of the proposal include communications to plans, 

pm:tlc:tpa:nts, beneficiaries and IRA 

~ i Formatted: Don't keep with next 

- Comment [A25]: Don't follow. Would spell out. 

\\ 

\ \ RESPONSE: See text change "at paragraph bl-4, .. 
\ \ 

\ \ >-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Comment [A26]: Don't see any text change 
here? 

\ EBSA Response: Text revised. 

outs are to carve out con1n1unications the Departn1ent believes not 'Z ::: -

intend to cover as fiduciary "investment advice" and that parties would not ordinarily view as 
communications characterized by a relationship oftrnst or impartiality. None of the carve-outs 
.[ip!Jly _\V_h_e!e_ t_h~ ~~V'i~e_r _r~IJr~s_ep!s_ o! _af~O_\V_l~d_g_e~ !ha! it_i~ l1C.tinB_a~ ~ _fidufi~ry_ 11n_d_e! !\l{IS.~ ____ -1~o_e_le_t_e_d:_I_im_it_at_io_ns ________ ~ 
with respect to the advice. 
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(a) Generabeller's. tran~a_c_ti_o!l~~ _______________________________ J ~ ~ 
Paragraph (b )(1 )(i) of the proposed regulation provides n_carve-out from the general definition 
for incidental advice provided in connection with an am1's length sale, purchase, loan, or 
bilateral contract between an expert plan investor and the adviser. It also applies in connection 
with an offer to enter into such a transaction or when the person providing the advice is acting as 
a representative, such as an agent, for the plan's counterparty. This carve-out is subject to the 
following conditions: 

The person must provide advice to an ERISA plan fiduciary who is independent of such 
person and who exercises authority or control respecting the management or disposition of the 
plan's assets, with respect to an [arm's length ~l11~,_p_un:has~, _l()an_ o_r_bjl_a!ei-a_l _c<H1ti-a_c! !J~~-e~11 __ -~ ~ ~ 
the plan and the counterparty, or with respect to a proposal to enter into such a sale, purchase, 
loan or bilateral contract. 

The carve-out applies if either of two alternative sets of conditions is met. First, the carve-out is 
available, if prior to providing any recommendation with respect to the transaction, such person: 

(1) obtains a written representation from the plan fiduciary that he/she is a fiduciary who 
exercises authority or control respecting the management or disposition of the employee 
benefit plan's assets (as described in section 3(21 )(A)(i) of the Act), that the employee 
benefit plan has 100 or more participants covered under the plan, and that the fiduciary 
will not rely on the person to act in the best interests of the plan, to provide impartial 
investment advice, or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity; 

(2) fairly infom1s the plan fiduciary of the existence and nature of the person's financial 
interests in the transaction; 

(3) does not receive a fee or other compensation directly from the plan, or plan fiduciary, 
for the provision of investment advice ~_n_ c_opnection with the tralnsac1t101rrlt_l1Js_cl_os:B.JJ()t 

\ 
\\ \ 
\\ 

Comment [A27]: What does the footnote mean 
when it uses the term "incidental advice" _ I don't 
want to fall into the trap where this incidental test 

manages to carve out advice given by a broker 

under the guide of being a mere order taker. That's 

how the SEC muddied the waters in the first place. 

Comment [A28]: Same concern with this term 
as flagged above. 

RESPONSE: The concern is unclear, Arm's length 

goes to the lack of relationship between the plan 

and the counterparty, to remove it would imply 

more of a relationship and, with that, possible 

\ fiduciary duties. 

Comment [A29]: What do you mean by 
relationship? A financial relationship because they 

share common ownership? That's how the term is 

used in the tax world. An arm's length transaction is 

one between two parties who do not have the same 

owner and aren't related by family ties. 

EBSA Response: We think the term has a common 

law of trust basis in Title I of ERISA. For example, 

term "arm's length transaction" is used in ERISA 
statutory prohibited transaction exemptions, e.g., 

block trade, ECN transactions, and foreign exchange 

exemptions all include a condition that the 

compensation for the purchase or sale is not greater 

than #compensation associated with an arm's length 

transaction with an unrelated party." In general, an 

arm's length transaction in the common law of 

trusts is one in which the parties owe each other no 

special duties and each is acting in his or her own 

self~interest. See Restatement of Trusts {Second) 

§70. In light of the ERISA statutory references and 
the trust law, we do not believe this term requires 

special definition in the proposal. 

Comment [A30]: Think you need this to clarify 
that the fiduciary can still get compensation; they 

just can't get it for investment advice specifically. 

(4) knows or reasonably believes that the independent plan fiduciary has sufficient 
expertise to evaluate the transaction and to detem1ine whether the transaction is prndent 
and in the best interest of the plan participants (such person may rely on written 
representations from the plan or the plan fiduciary to satisfy this condition). 11 EBSA Response: OK, but we expanded the text to 

The second alternative applies ifthe person knows or reasonably believes that plan fiduciary has 
responsibility for managing at least $100 million in employee benefit plan assets (for purposes of 

18 Although referred to herein as the "seller's carve-out," we note that the carve out provided in paragraph (b)(l)(i) of 
the proposal is not limited to sales and would apply to incidental advice provided in connection with an arm's length 
sale purchase loan or bilateral contract between a plan investor with financial expertise and the adviser. 
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this condition, when dealing with an individual employee benefit plan, a person may rely on the 
infom1ation on the most recent Fom1 5500 Annual Return/Report filed by the plan to detem1ine 
the value of plan assets, and, in the case of an independent fiduciary acting as an asset manager 
for multiple employee benefit plans, a person may rely on representations from the independent 
plan fiduciary regarding the value of employee benefit plan assets under management). In that 
circumstance, the adviser need not obtain written representations from its counterparty to avail 
itself of the carve-out, but must fairly infom1 the independent plan fiduciary that the adviser is 
not undertaking to provide impartial investment advice, or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity; 
and cannot receive a fee or other compensation directly from the plan, or plan fiduciary, for the 
provision of investment advice in connection with the transaction. In that circumstance, the 
adviser must also reasonably believe that the independent plan fiduciary has sufficient expertise 
to prndently evaluate the transaction. 

The purpose of this carve-out is to avoid imposing ERISA fiduciary obligations on am1's length 
transactions where neither side assumes that the counterparty to the plan is acting as an impartial 
trnsted adviser, but the seller is making representations about the value and benefits of proposed 
deals. Under appropriate circumstances, reflected in the conditions to this carve-out, these 
counterparties to the plan do not suggest that they are an impartial and plans do not expect a 
relationship of undivided loyalty or trnst. Both sides of such transactions understand that they 
are acting at am1' s length, and neither party expects that recommendations will necessarily be 
based on the buyer's best interests. In such a sales transaction, the buyer understands that it is 
buying an investment product, not advice about whether it is a good product, from a seller who 
has opposing financial interests. The seller's invitation to buy the product is understood as a 
sales pitch, not a recommendation. Also,_a representative for the plan's counterparty, such as a 
broker, in such a transaction, would be able to use the conditions are met. 

Although the 2010 Proposal also had a carve-out for counterparties, the carve-out in the new 
proposal is significantly different. The changes are designed to ensure that the carve-out 
appropriately distinguishes incidental advice as part of an am1's length transactions with no 
expectation oftrnst or acting in the customer's best interest, from those where the customer may 
be expecting unbiased investment advice that is in their best interest. For example, the seller's 
carve-out is unavailable to an adviser ifthe plan directly pays a fee for investment advice. If a 
plan expressly pays a fee for advice, the essence of the relationship is advisory, and the statute 
clearly contemplates fiduciary status. Thus, a service provider may not charge the plan a direct 
fee to act as an adviser, and then disclaim responsibility as a fiduciary adviser by asserting that 
he or she is merely an am1's length counterparty. 

Commenters on the 2010 Proposal differed on whether the carve-out should apply to transactions 
involving plan participants, beneficiaries or IRA owners. After considering the issue 
and the public comments, the Department does not believe can or should be 
crafted to cover recommendations to retail investors, owners and plan 
participants and beneficiaries. As a rnle, investment recommendations to such retail customers 
do not fit the "am1s-length" characteristics that the is designed to preserve. 
Recommendations to retail investors and small plan are routinely presented as advice, 
consulting, or financial planning services. In the securities markets, brokers' suitability 
obligations generally require a significant degree of individualization. Research has shown that 
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disclaimers are ineffective in alerting retail investors to the potential costs imposed by conflicts 
of interest, or the fact that advice is not necessarily in their best interest, and may even 
exacerbate these costs. 19 Most retail investors and many small plan sponsors are not financial 
experts, are unaware of the magnitude and impact of conflicts of interest, and are unable 
effectively to assess the quality of the advice they receive. IRA owners are especially at risk 
because they lack the protection of having a menu of investment options chosen by a plan 
fiduciary who is charged to protect the interests of the IRA owner. Similarly, small plan 
sponsors are typically experts in the day-to-day business of rnnning an operating company, not in 
managing financial investments for others. In this retail market, a seller's carve-out would nm 
the risk of creating a carve-out that would result in the rnle failing to improve consumer 
protections by pem1itting the same type of boilerplate disclaimers that some advisers now use to 
avoid fiduciary status under the current "five-part test" regulation. Persons making investment 
recommendations should be required to put the interests of the investors they serve ahead of their 
own. J:,h~ _D_eplJ.r_trn~11t_ has _a~~r~s_s~~ le_gitin_1a_t~ _c()11c_e!ll_s _ a_b911t_IJ.r~s_e!Y_i1lg ~x_is_tin_g_ (e~ pr_a_c!i~e_s __ 
and minimizing market disrnptions through proposed prohibited transaction exemptions detailed 
below, rather than through a blanket carve-out from fiduciary status._ ______________________ _ 

!Moreover, excluding retail investors from the seller's carve-out is consistent with recent 
congressional action, ,the Pension Protection Act of 2006 (PP A). Specifically, the PP Apeated a __ -
new statutory exemption that allows-fi~U:c~a!~e~ ~[v}ng=i~vest~1~11(a<l~rc~ !~ ill:<Jlv_i~a!~~~sl~U: =- --
plan participants, beneficiaries and IRA owners} to receive compensation from investment \ 
vehicles that they recommend in certain circumstances. 29 U.S.C. l 108(b)(l4); 26 US.C. 
4975(d)(l 7). J3,.ecognizing the risks presented when advisers receive fees from the investments 
they recommencf to-indivrduals,-Congi-ess placed 1niportant constramts-on-sucli advice- - - - - - - - '\- _ 
arrangements that are calculated to limit the potential for abuse and self-dealing, including ' 
requirements for fee-leveling or the use of independently certified computer models. The 
1Jepar1:ment has issued regulations implementing this provision at 29 CFR 2550.408g-l and 

retail investors in the seller's carve-out would the rotections for 

millllnY~:.ulli!.LU~~il1!1I'~ill.IT.!llli..cITAJ!IQ}~li: _____________________ _ 
,' 
\I 

Although ih~ _se_l1e(s _ c_al"'_e::o_ut p.~ay _n_o! ~e_ l1V'a_il_a~l~ _i11 !~e _r~t_ail _n]a_rl\:e_t,_ t_h~ pr_o_p_os_a_l _is_ in!e_n~~~ _ ';, \ 
to ensure that small plan fiduciaries, plan participants, beneficiaries and IRA owners will be able 1

,
1
:1 \ 

to obtain essential infom1ation regarding important decisions they make regarding their 1

1

1

1\ \ 

investments without the providers of that infom1ation crossing the line into fiduciary status. \ 1
1
\ \ 

Under the platfom1 provider carve-out under paragraph (b )(3 ), platfom1 providers (i.e., persons 1

1 
'i, 

that provide access to securities or other property through a platfom1 or similar mechanism) and 1

1
',\ 

19 Loewenstein, George, Daylian Cain, Sunita Sah, The Limits ofl'ransr;•arimce: 
of Interest, American Economic Review: 

\I\ 

\I\ 

\I\ 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

\I 

\I 

Comment [A31]: What is this? Haven't heard 
about this before. What exactly does it apply to? 

RESPONSE: This is in reference to a statutory 

exemption for the prohibited transactions relating 

to investment advice. The point of including it is 
that Congress belteved it was important to protect 

participants when they receive advice. It 
emphasiies the point that advice participants need 
protection. 

Comment [A32]: Would say that more explicitly. 
Also, this exemption sounds like it applies to 
everything. Is that right? Or is it just sales 

transactions where there is incidental advice? 
Would clarify. 
EBSA Response: Text revised to clarify point. The 
PPA provision is not limited to incidental advice. 

Comment [A33]: EBSA revised the footnote and 
moved it to address questions about 404(c} and 
purpose of footnote. 

1J Moved (insertion) [1] 

(Deleted: While 

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 



COi EBSA PASS BACK 
DRAFT- 410812015 

persons that help plan fiduciaries select or monitor investment alternatives for their plans can 
perfom1 those services without incurring fiduciary status. Similarly, under the investment 
education carve-out of paragraph (b)(6), general plan infom1ation, financial, investment and 
retirement infom1ation and infom1ation and education regarding asset allocation models will all 
be available to a plan, plan fiduciary, participant, beneficiary or IRA owner and will not 
constitute the provision of investment advice, irrespective of who receives that infom1ation. 

The Department invites comments on whether the proposed seller's carve-out should be 
available for advice given directly to plan participants, beneficiaries, and IRA owners. Further, 
the Department invites comments on the scope of the seller's carve-out and whether the plan size 
limitation of 100 plan participants and 100 million dollar asset requirement in the proposal are 
appropriate conditions or whether other conditions would be more appropriate proxies for 
identifying persons with sufficient investment-related expertise to be included in a seller's carve­
out. 22 The Department is also interested in whether existing and proposed prohibited transaction 
exemptions eliminate or mitigate the need for any seller's carve-out. 

(b) [Sellers in swap and security-based swap transactions.] _________________ -

Paragraph (b )(1 )(ii) of the proposal specifically addresses advice and other communications by 
counterparties in connection with certain swap or security-based swap transactions under the 
Commodity Exchange Act or the Securities Exchange Act. This broad class of financial 
transactions is defined and regulated under amendments to the Commodity Exchange Act and 
the Securities Exchange Act by the Dodd-Frank Act Section 4s(h) of the Commodity Exchange 
Act (7 U.S.C. 6s(h)), and section 15F of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 780-
l O(h) establishes similar business conduct standards for dealers and major participants in swaps 
or security-based swaps. Special rnles apply for transactions involving "special entities," a tem1 
that includes employee benefit plans under ERISA, but not IRAs and other non-ERISA plans. 

22 The proposed thresholds of 100 or more participants and assets of$100 million are consistent with thresholds 
used for similar purposes under existing rules and practices. For example, administrators of plans with 100 or more 
participants, unlike smaller plans, generally are required to report to the Department details on the identity, function, 
and compensation of their services providers; file a schedule of assets held for investments; and submit audit reports 
to the Department. Smaller plans are not subject to these same filing requirements that are imposed on large plans. 
The vast majority of plans with fewer than 100 participants have 10 or less participants. They are much more 

Comment [A34]: Can swaps still be eligible for 
the other carve-outs? If so, would clarify that and be 
clear about what this adds. 

Also, why need to say Hsecurity-based swap" if 

covers "swapsn? Seems redundant 

EBSA Response: The nature of the swap and 
security based swap transactions makes it difficult 
to fit them squarely in another carve-out, which is 
the reason we have a separate carve out. So, 
although it may be possible to fit a swap transaction 
in the "seller's exception," making that point might 
require a complicated explanation. On the "Also" 
comment, see comment above on same point. 

Swap transaction is a defined term under Dodd 

Frank that does not include security based swaps so 
we need both terms. 

similar to individual retail investors than to large financially sophisticated institutional investors, who employ, _______ -1 Deleted: er 

lawyers and have the time and expertise to scrutinize advice they receive for bias. Similarly, Congress established a '----------------~ 

$100 million asset threshold in enacting the PPA statutory cross-trading exemption under ERISA section 408(b)(19). 
In the transactions covered by 408(b )(19), an investmenttlliln_age}" l1as §i_scre.ti.011 \Vith_ r_esp~c_t !o _s~p_ar_a!e _clje_n! ______ -1 Deleted: adviser or 
accounts that are on opposite sides of the trade. The cross trade can create efiiciencies for both clients, but it also '----------------~ 

gives rise to a prohibited transaction under ERISA §406(b )(2) because the adviser or manager is "representing" both 
sides of the transaction and, therefore, has a conflict of interest. The exemption generally allows an investment 
manager to effect cash purchases and sales of securities for which market quotations are readily available between 
large sophisticated plans with at least $100 million in assets and another account under management by the 
investment manager, subject to certain conditions. In this context, the $100 million threshold serves as a proxy for 
identifying institutional fiduciaries that can be expected to have the expertise to protect their own interests in the 
conflicted transaction. 
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In outline, paragraph (b )(1 )(ii) of the proposal would allow swap dealers, security-based swap 
dealers, major swap participants and security-based major swap participants who make 
recommendations to plans to avoid becoming ERISA investment advice fiduciaries when acting 
as counterparties to a swap or security-based swap transaction. Under the swap carve out, ifthe 
person providing recommendations is a swap dealer or security-based swap dealer, it must not be 
acting as an adviser to the plan, within the meaning of the applicable business conduct standards 
regulations of the CFTC or the SEC. In addition, before providing any recommendations with 
respect to the transaction, the person providing recommendations must obtain a written 
representation from the independent plan fiduciary, that the fiduciary will not rely on 
recommendations provided by the person. 

Under the Commodity Exchange Act, swap dealers or major swap participants that act as 
counterparties to ERISA plans, must have a reasonable basis to believe that the plans have 
independent representatives who are fiduciaries under ERISA. 7 U.S.C. 6s(h)(5). Similar 
requirements apply for security-based swap transactions. 15 U.S.C 78o-10(h)(4) and (5). The 
CFTC has issued a final rnle to implement these requirements and the SEC has issued a proposed 
rnle that will cover security-based swaps. 17 CFR 23 .400 to 23 .451 (2012). 

Paragraph (b )(1 )(ii) reflects the Department's coordination of its efforts with staff of the SEC 
and CFTC, and is intended to provide a clear road-map for swap counterparties to avoid ERISA 
fiduciary status in am1's length transactions with plans. The provision addresses commenters' 
concerns that the conduct required for compliance with the Dodd-Frank Act's business conduct 
standards could constitute fiduciary investment advice under ERISA even in connection with 
am1's length transactions with plans that are separately represented by independent fiduciaries 
who are not looking to their counterparties for disinterested advice. If that were the case, swaps 
and security-based swaps with plans would often constitute prohibited transactions under 
ERISA. Commenters also argued that their obligations under the business conduct standards 
could effectively preclude them from relying on the carve-out for counterparties in the 2010 
Proposal. Although the Department does not agree that the carve-out in the 2010 Proposal would 
have been unavailable to plan's swap counterparty (see letter dated April 28, 2011, to CFTC 
Chaim1an Gary Gensler from EBSA's Assistant Secretary Phyllis Borzi), !)!e_s_ep<lr~!e_P!()JJ.O_s~4_-~~~1 Deleted: T 

carve out for swap and security-based swap transactions in the proposal should avoid any ~------------~ 
uncertainty.23 The Department will continue to coordinate its efforts with staff of the SEC and 
CFTC to ensure that any final regulation is consistent with the agencies' work in connection with 
the Dodd-Frank Act's business conduct standards. 

(2) Employees of the Plan Sponsor 

The proposal at paragraph (b )(2) provides that employees of a plan sponsor of an ERISA plan 
will not be treated as investment advice fiduciaries with respect to advice they provide to the 
fiduciaries of the sponsor's plan as long as they receive no compensation for the advice beyond 
their nom1al compensation as employees of the plan sponsor. This carve-out on the scope of the 
fiduciary investment advice definition recognizes that internal employees, such as members of a 

23 http:/lwww.dol.gov/ebsa/pdjlcftc20110428.pdf 
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company's human resources department, routinely develop reports and recommendations for 
investment committees and other named fiduciaries of the sponsors' plans, without acting as paid 
fiduciary advisers. The carve-out responds to and addresses the concerns of commenters who 
said that these personnel should not be treated as fiduciaries because their advice is largely 
incidental to their duties on behalf of the plan sponsor and they receive no compensation for 
these advice-related fi.mctions. 

(3) Platform Providers/Selection and Monitoring Assistance 

The carve-out at paragraph (b )(3) of the proposal is directed to service providers, such as 
recordkeepers and third party administrators, that offer a "platforn1" or selection of investment 
vehicles to participant-directed individual account plans ~mder ERISA. Under the tern1s of the 
carve-out, the plan fiduciaries must choose the specific investn1ent alternatives that w1lf be n1ade -
available to participants for investing their individual accounts. The carve-out merely makes 
clear that persons would not act as investment advice fiduciaries simply by marketing or making 
available such investment vehicles, without regard to the individualized needs of the plan or its 
participants and beneficiaries, as long as they disclose in writing that they are not undertaking to 
provide impartial investment advice or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity. 

Similarly, a separate provision at paragraph (b )( 4) carves out certain common activities that 
platforn1 providers may carry out to assist plan fiduciaries in selecting and monitoring the 
investment alternatives that they make available to plan participants. Under paragraph (b )( 4), 
merely identifying offered investment alternatives meeting objective criteria specified by the 

fiduciary or providing objective financial data regarding available alternatives to the plan 
t1cluc:1airv would not cause a platforn1 provider to be a fiduciary investment adviser. These two 
IJBmlJlare clarifying modifications to the corresponding provisions of the 2010 Proposal. 

certain common practices that have developed with the growth ofparticipant­
directed individual account plans and recognize circumstances where the platforn1 provider and 
the plan fiduciary clearly understand that the provider has financial or other relationships with 
the offered investments and is not purporting to provide impartial investment advice. It also 
accommodates the fact that platforn1 providers often provide general financial infornrntion that 
falls short of constituting actual investment advice or recommendations, such as inforn1ation on 
the historic perforn1ance of asset classes and of the investments available through the provider. 
The carve-outs also reflect the Department's agreement with commenters that a platforn1 
provider who merely identifies investment alternatives using objective third-party criteria (e.g., 
expense ratios, fond size, or asset type specified by the plan fiduciary) to assist in selecting and 
monitoring investment alternatives should not be considered to be rendering investment advice. 

While recognizing the utility of the provisions in paragraphs (b )(3) and (b )( 4) for the effective 
and efficient operation of plans by plan sponsors, plan fiduciaries and plan service providers, the 
Department reiterates its longstanding view, recently codified in 29 CFR 2550.404a-5(f) and 
2550.404-c-l (d)(2)(iv) (2010), that a fiduciary is always responsible for prndently selecting and 
monitoring providers of services to the plan or designated investment alternatives offered under 
the plan. 
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Several commenters also asked the Department to clarify that the platfom1 provider carve-out is 
available in the 403(b) plan marketplace. In the Department's view, a 403(b) plan that is subject 
to Title I ofERISA would be an individual account plan within the meaning ofERISA section 
3(34) of the Act for purposes of the proposed regulation, so the platfom1 provider carve-out 
would be available with respect to such plans. 

Other commenters asked that the platfom1 provider provision be generally extended to apply to 
IRAs. In the IRA context, however, there typically is no separate independent "plan fiduciary" 
who interacts with the platfom1 provider to protect the interests of the account owners. As a 
result, it is much more difficult to conclude that the transaction is trnly am1's length or to draw a 
bright line between fiduciary and non-fiduciary communications on investment options. 
Consequently, the proposed regulation declines to extend application of this carve-out to IRAs 
and other non-ERISA plans. As the Department continues its work on this regulatory project, 
however, it requests specific comment as to the types of platfom1s and options that may be 
offered to IRA owners, how they may be similar to or different from platfom1s offered in 
connection with participant-directed individual account plans, and whether it would be 
appropriate for service providers not to be treated as fiduciaries under this carve-out when 
marketing such platfom1s to IRA owners. 

As a corollary to the proposal's restriction of the of the provider carve-out 
to only ERISA plans, the selection and monitoring assistance is similarly not available 
in the IRA and other non-ERISA plans context. Commenters on provider restriction 
are encouraged to offer their views on the effect of this restriction in the non-ERISA plan 
marketplace. 

(4) Investment Education 

Paragraph (b )(6) of the proposed regulation is similar to a carve-out in the 2010 Proposal for the 
provision of investment education infom1ation and materials within the meaning of an earlier 
Interpretive Bulletin issued by the Department in 1996. 29 CFR 2509.96-1 (IB 96-1 ). Paragraph 
(b )(6) incorporates much of IB 96-1 bulletin's operative text, but with the important exceptions 
explained below. faragraph (b)(6) of the proposed regulation, if finalized, would supersede IB 
96-1. Consistent with IB 96-1 12aragi-a.P!i _@S ~) .Jl1':lk_e_s _c!e_ai: !h_a! fi11ni~~i11g ~i: i11a19:ng _a~':li!a!J!e __ / / / 
the specified categories of information and materials to a plan, plan fiduciary, participant, ~ ~ -
beneficiary or IRA owner will not constitute the rendering of investment advice, irrespective of 
who provides the information (e.g., plan sponsor, fiduciary or service provider), the frequency Comment [A36]: Are these new, permissive 

1 changes or clarifications relative to the IB? Were with which the information is shared, the form in which the information and materials are 
provided (e.g., on an individual or group basis, in writing or orally, or via a call center, or by way 
of video or computer software), or whether an identified category of information and materials is 
furnished or made available alone or in combination with other categories of investment or 

1 they responsive to comments? If so, would make 

that clear. 

retirement information and materials identified in paragraph (b)(6), or the type of plan or IRA 
involved.] As a departure from IB 96-1, a new condition to famishing or making available the / 
described lrlfOmlation Of rrtaterials-as -investnlent ecltlcation lS -that -the inf Orlllation and n1aterials - -
not include advice or recommendations as to specific investment products, specific investment 
managers, or the value of particular securities or other property. The paragraph reflects the 
Department's view that the statutory reference to "investment advice" is not meant to encompass 
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general investment infom1ation and educational materials, but rather is targeted at more specific 
recommendations and advice on the investment of plan and IRA assets. 

Similar to IB 96-1, paragraph (b )(6) of the proposed regulation divides investment education 
infom1ation and materials into four general categories: (i) plan infom1ation; (ii) general 
financial, investment and retirement infom1ation; (iii) asset allocation models; and (iv) 
interactive investment materials. The proposed regulation in paragraph (b)(6)(v) also adopts the 
provision from IB 96-1 stating that there may be other examples of infom1ation, materials and 
educational services which, if famished, would also not constitute investment advice or 
recommendations within the meaning of the proposed regulation and that no inference should be 
drawn regarding materials or infom1ation which are not specifically included in paragraph 
(b )(6)(i) through (iv). 

Although paragraph (b )( 6) incorporates most of the relevant text of IB 96-1, there are important 
changes. One change from IB 96-1 is that paragraph (b )(6) makes clear that the distinction 
between non-fiduciary education and fiduciary advice applies equally to infom1ation provided to 
plan fiduciaries as well as infom1ation provided to plan participants and beneficiaries and IRA 
owners, and that it applies equally to participant-directed plans and other plans. In addition, the 
provision applies without regard to whether the infom1ation is provided by a plan sponsor, 
fiduciary, or service provider. 

Based on public input received in connection with its joint examination oflifetime income issues 
with the Department of the Treasury, the Department is persuaded that additional guidance may 
help improve retirement security by facilitating the provision of infom1ation and education 
relating to retirement needs that extend beyond a participant's or beneficiary's date ofretirement. 
Accordingly, paragraph (b )( 6) of the proposal includes specific language to make clear that the 
provision of certain general infom1ation that helps an individual assess and understand retirement 
income needs past retirement and associated risks (e.g., longevity and inflation risk), or explains 
general methods for the individual to manage those risks both within and outside the plan, would 
not result in fiduciary status under the proposal.24 

24 Although the proposal would formally remove IB 96-1 from the CFR, the Department notes that paragraph ( e) of 
IB 96-1 provides generalized guidance under section 405 and 404( c) of ERISA with respect to the selection by 
employers and plan fiduciaries of investment educators and the lack of responsibility of employers and fiduciaries 
with respect to investment educators selected by participants. Specifically, paragraph (e) states: 

As with any designation ofa service provider to a plan, the designation ofa person(s) to provide investment 
educational services or investment advice to plan participants and beneficiaries is an exercise of 
discretionary authority or control with respect to management of the plan; therefore, persons making the 
designation must act prudently and solely in the interest of the plan participants and beneficiaries, both in 
making the designation(s) and in continuing such designation(s). See ERISA sections 3(21)(A)(i) and 
404(a), 29 U.S.C. 1002 (21)(A)(i) and 1104(a). In addition, the designation ofan investment advisor to 
serve as a fiduciary may give rise to co-fiduciary liability ifthe person making and continuing such 
designation in doing so fails to act prudently and solely in the interest of plan participants and beneficiaries; 
or knowingly participates in, conceals or fails to make reasonable efforts to correct a known breach by the 
investment advisor. See ERISA section 405( a), 29 U.S.C. 1105( a). The Department notes, however, that, 
in the context of an ERISA section 404( c) plan, neither the designation of a person to provide education nor 

(Footnote continued on next page) 
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As noted, another change is that the Department is not incorporating the provisions at paragraph 
( d)(3 )(iii) and ( 4)(iv) ofIB 96-1, _ }'l~o_s~ p~o_vis_i(ln~s _o_fIJ3 _9§: l_J;Je_rrnjt_t~~ ~1~e-()f_a~~e! l1~()c_a!i<Hl __ 
models with reference to specific investment products available under the plan or IRA, as long as 
those [specific allocations ~re accompanied by a statement that other investment alternatives 
having similar risk and reit1rli ciiaractenst1cs rrlay -be -available. -Based on 1ts expe1{ence-w!tii the- -
IB 96-1 since publication, as well as views expressed by comm enters to the 2010 Proposal, the 
Department now believes that, even when accompanied by a statement as to the availability of 
other investment alternatives, these types of specific asset allocations that identify specific 
investment alternatives fi.mction as tailored, individualized investment recommendations, and 
can effectively steer recipients to particular investments, but without adequate protections against 
potential abuse. 25 In particular, the Department agrees with those commenters to the 2010 
Proposal who argued that cautionary disclosures to participants, beneficiaries, and IRA owners 
may have limited effectiveness in alerting them to the merit and wisdom of evaluating 
investment alternatives not used in the model. In practice, asset allocation models concerning 
hypothetical individuals, and interactive materials which arrive at specific_investment products 

Comment [A38]: Makes it sound like you are 
referring to a recommendation to~ say, invest in 59% 
stock and 41% bonds, rather than in specific stock 
and bond products. 
EBSA Response: Text is revised to clarify that this 
sentence is reciting what is allowed under IB 96-1. 
The IB would allow use of specific stock and bond 
products as long as the asset allocation using those 
products is accompanied by a statement that other 
investment alternatives are available. The proposed 
reg would not allow that any tonger. 

and plan alternatives, can be indistinguishable to the average;-etirement investor from __ -
individualized recommendations~ regardless of caveat&,,LJ Accordingly~ paragraphs-(b )( 6)(1i1) -and - - __ - comment [A39]: Revised these two sentences 

(iv) relating to asset allocation models and interactive investn-lent n1ateriafs-prec111cfe-the - - - - - - -\,' ~to~c~la~ri~fy~·~~~~~~~~~~~~=< 
identification of specific investment alternatives available under the plan or IRA in order for the Deleted: designed to meet the particularneeds or 

n1aterials described in those paragraphs to be considered investn1ent education-t -~h~1~,_ (o~ _ _ _ _ _ _ objectives of the investor 

example, we would not treat an asset allocation model as mere education if it called for a certain ' Deleted: which may direct the participant or 
beneficiary to other similar potential investments 

percentage of the investor's assets to be invested in large cap muhml fonds, and accompanied 
that proposed allocation with the identity of a specific fond or provider. In that circumstance, the 
adviser has made a specific investment recommendation that should be treated as fiduciary 
advice and adhere to fiduciary standards. Further, materials that identify specific plan 
investment alternatives also appear to fall within the definition of"recommendation" in 
paragraph (f)(l) of the proposal, and could result in fiduciary stah1s on the part of a provider if 
the other provisions of the proposal are met. The Department believes that effective and usefol 

the designation of a fiduciary to provide investment advice to participants and beneficiaries would, in itselt; 
give rise to fiduciary liability for loss, or with respect to any breach of part 4 of title I ofERISA, that is the 
direct and necessary result of a participant's or beneficiary's exercise of independent control. 29 CFR 
2550.404c-l(d). The Department also notes that a plan sponsor or fiduciary would have no fiduciary 
responsibility or liability with respect to the actions of a third party selected by a participant or beneficiary 
to provide education or investment advice where the plan sponsor or fiduciary neither selects nor endorses 
the educator or advisor, nor otherwise makes arrangements with the educator or advisor to provide such 
services. 

Unlike the remainder of the IB, this text does not belong in the investment advice regulation. Also, the principles 
articulated in paragraph ( e) are generally understood and accepted such that retaining the paragraph as a stand-alone 
IB does not appear necessary or appropriate. 
25 When the Department issued IB 96-1, it expressed concern that service providers could effectively steer 
participants to a specific investment alternative by identifying only one particular fund available under the plan in 
connection with an asset allocation model. As a result, where it was possible to do so, the Department encouraged 
service providers to identify other investment alternatives within an asset class as part of a model. Ultimately, 
however, when asset allocation models and interactive investment materials identified any specific investment 
alternative available under the plan, the Department required an accompanying statement both indicating that other 
investment alternatives having similar risk and return characteristics may be available under the plan and identifying 
where information on those investment alternatives could be obtained. 61 Fed. Reg. 29586, 29587 (June 11, 1996). 
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asset allocation education materials can be prepared and delivered to participants and IRA 
owners without including specific investment products and alternatives available under the plan. 
The Department understands that not incorporating the provisions of IB 96-1 at paragraph 
(d)(3)(iii) and (4)(iv) into the proposal represents a significant change in the infom1ation and 
materials that may constitute investment education. Accordingly, the Department invites 
comments on whether this change is appropriate. 26 

D. Fee or Other Compensation 

A necessary element of fiduciary status under section 3(21 )(A)(ii) of ERISA is that the 
investment advice be for a "fee or other compensation, direct or indirect." Consistent with the 
statute, paragraph (f)(6) of the proposed regulation defines this phrase to mean any fee or 
compensation for the advice received by the advice provider (or by an affiliate) from any source 
and any fee or compensation incident to the transaction in which the investment advice has been 
rendered or will be rendered. It farther provides that the tem1 "fee or compensation" includes, 
but is not limited to, brokerage fees, muhml fond sales, and insurance sales commissions. 

Paragraph ( c )(3) of the 2010 Proposal used similar language, but it also provided that the tem1 
included fees and compensation based on multiple transactions involving different parties. 
Commenters found this provision confosing and it does not appear in the new proposal. The 
provision, \Vl18. ~n!e_n~~~ !o_ con:fi!l!l _tlie_ ])~p_a_rt_n~e_n!'_s p9s_i!icn1 !h_a! fe_es_ ~lia_rge_d_ o_n_ ~ s_o_-~~l~e~ ___ J ~ ~ i Deleted: s 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

"omnibus" basis (e.g., compensation paid based on business placed or retained that includes plan 
or IRA business) would constitute fees and compensation for purposes of the rnle. 

Direct or indirect compensation also includes any compensation received by affiliates of the 
adviser that is connected to the transaction in which the advice was provided. For example, 
when a fiduciary adviser recommends that a participant or IRA owner invest in a muhml fond, it 
is not unusual for an affiliated adviser to the muhml fond to receive a fee. The receipt by the 
affiliate of advisory fees from the muhml fond is indirect compensation in connection with the 
rendering of investment advice to the participant. 

Some commenters additionally suggested that call center employees should not be treated as 
investment advice fiduciaries where they are not specifically paid to provide investment advice 
and their compensation does not change based on their communications with participants and 
beneficiaries. The carve-out from the fiduciary investment advice definition for investment 
education provides guidelines under which call center staff and other employees providing 
similar investor assistance services may avoid fiduciary stah1s. However, commenters stated that 
a specific carve-out for such call centers would provide a greater level of certainty so as not to 
inhibit muhml fonds, insurance companies, broker-dealers, recordkeepers and other financial 
service providers from continuing to make such assistance available to participants and 

26 As indicated earlier in this Notice, the Department believes that FINRA' s guidance in this area may provide 
useful standards and guideposts for distinguishing investment education from investment advice under ERISA The 
Department specifically solicits comments on the discussion in FINRA's "Frequently Asked Questions, FINRA 
Rule 2111 (Suitability)" of the term "recommendation" in the context ofasset allocation models and general 
investment strategies. 
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beneficiaries in 401 (k) and similar participant-directed plans. In the Department's view, such a 
carve-out would be inappropriate. The fiduciary definition is intended to apply broadly to all 
persons who engage in the activities set forth in the regulation, regardless of job title or position, 
or whether the advice is rendered in person, in writing or by phone. If, in the perforn1ance of 
their jobs, call center employees make specific investment recommendations to plan participants 
or IRA owners under the circumstances described in the proposal, it is appropriate to treat them, 
and possibly their employers, as fiduciaries unless they meet the conditions of one of the carve­
outs set forth above. 

E. Coverage of IRAs and Other Non-ERISA Plans 

Certain provisions of Title I ofERISA, 29 U.S.C. 1001 - 1108, such as those relating to 
participation, benefit accrnal, and prohibited transactions also appear in the Code. This parallel 
strncture ensures that the relevant provisions apply to all tax-qualified plans, including IRAs. 
With regard to prohibited transactions, the Title I provisions generally authorize recovery of 
losses from, and imposition of pivil penalties p_n2 !h_e _n~s_po11s_i~l_e _pla_n_ fid_u_cia!i_e~,-"-'~ile_tli~ 99~~ -~ ~ ~ 
provisions impose excise taxes on persons engaging in the prohibited transactions. The 
definition of fiduciary with respect to a plan is the same in section 4975(e )(3)(B) of the IRC as 
the definition in section 3(2l)(A)(ii) ofERISA, 29 U.S.C. 1002(2l)(A)(ii), and the Department's 
1975 regulation defining fiduciary investment advice is virtually identical to regulations that 
define the tern1 "fiduciary" under the Code. 26 CFR 54.4975-9( c) (1975). 

To rationalize the administration and interpretation of dual provisions under ERIS A and the 
Code, Reorganization Plan No. 4of1978, 5 U.S.C. App. (2010), divided the interpretive and 
rnlemaking authority for these provisions between the Secretaries of Labor and of the Treasury, 
so that, in general, the agency with responsibility for a given provision of Title I ofERISA 
would also have responsibility for the corresponding provision in the IRC. Among the sections 
transferred to the Department were the prohibited transaction provisions and the definition of a 
fiduciary in both Title I ofERISA and in the IRC. ERISA's prohibited transaction rnles, 29 
U.S.C. 1106 -1108, apply to ERISA-covered plans, and the Code's corresponding prohibited 
transaction rnles, 26 U.S.C. 4975( c), apply both to ERISA-covered pension plans that are tax­
qualified pension plans, as well as other tax-advantaged arrangements, such as IRAs, that are not 
subject to the fiduciary responsibility and prohibited transaction rnles in ERISA.27 

Given this statutory strncture, and the dual nature of the 1975 regulation, the proposal would 
apply to both the definition of"fiduciary" in section 3(2l)(A)(ii) ofERISA and the definition's 
counterpart in section 4975(e)(3)(B) of the Code. As a result, it applies to persons who give 
investment advice to IRAs. In this respect, the new proposal is the same as the 2010 Proposal. 

Many comments on the 2010 Proposal concerned its impact on IRAs and questioned whether the 
Department had adequately considered possible negative impacts. Some commenters were 
especially concerned that application of the new rnle could disrnpt existing brokerage 

27 The Secretary of Labor also was transferred authority to grant administrative exemptions from the prohibited 
transaction provisions of the Code. 
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arrangements that they believe are beneficial to customers. In particular, brokers often receive 
revenue sharing, l 2b- l fees, and other compensation from the parties whose investment products 
they recommend. If the brokers were treated as fiduciaries, the receipt of such fees could violate 
the Code's prohibited transaction rnles, unless eligible for a prohibited transaction exemption. 
According to these commenters, the disrnption of such current fee arrangements could result in a 
reduced level of assistance to investors, higher up-front fees, and less investment advice, 
particularly to investors with small accounts. In addition, some commenters expressed 
skepticism that the imposition of fiduciary standards would result in improved advice and 
questioned the view that current compensation arrangements could cause sub-optimal advice. 
Additionally, comm enters stressed the need for coordination between the Department and other 
regulatory agencies, such as the SEC, CFTC, and Treasury. 

As discussed above, to better align the regulatory definition of fiduciary with the statutory 
provisions and underlying Congressional goals, the Department is proposing a definition of a 
fiduciary investment adviser that would encompass investment recommendations that are 
individualized or specifically directed to plans, participants, beneficiaries or IRA owners, ifthe 
adviser receives a direct or indirect fee. Neither the relevant statutory provisions, nor the current 
regulation, draw a distinction between brokers and other advisers or carve brokers out of the 
scope of the fiduciary provisions ofERISA and of the Code. The relevant statutory provisions, 
and accordingly the proposed regulation, establish a fi.mctional test based on the service 
provider's actions, rather than the provider's title (e.g., broker or registered investment adviser). 
If one engages in specified activities, such as the provision of investment advice for a direct or 
indirect fee, the person engaging in those activities is a fiduciary, irrespective oflabels. 
Moreover, the statutory definition of fiduciary advice is identical under both ERISA and the 
Code. There is no indication that the definition should vary between plans and IRAs. 

In light of this statutory framework, the Department does not believe it would be appropriate to 
carve out a special rnle for IRAs, or for brokers or others who make specific investment 
recommendations to IRA owners or to other participants in non-ERISA plans for direct or 
indirect fees. When Congress enacted ERISA and the corresponding Code provisions, it chose to 
impose fiduciary status on persons who provide investment advice to plans, participants, 
beneficiaries and IRA owners, and to specifically prohibit a wide variety of transactions in which 
the fiduciary has financial interests that potentiall conflict with the fiduciary's obligation to the 
plan or IRA. It did not or brokers or IRAs, and the Department does 
not believe it would be appropriate to write such "nto the regulation implementing the 
statutory definition. 

Indeed, brokers who give investment advice to IRA owners or plan participants, and who 
otherwise meet the tem1s of the current five-part test, are already fiduciaries under the existing 
fiduciary regulation. If, for example, a broker regularly advises an individual IRA owner on 
specific investments, the IRA owner routinely follows the recommendations, and both parties 
understand that the IRA owner relies upon the broker's advice, the broker is almost certainly a 
fiduciary. In such circumstances, the broker is already subject to the excise tax on prohibited 
transactions ifhe or she receives fees from a third party in connection with recommendations to 
invest IRA assets in the third party's investment products, unless the broker satisfies the 
conditions of a prohibited transaction exemption that covers the particular fees. Indeed, broker-

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 



COi EBSA PASS BACK 
DRAFT- 410812015 

dealers today can provide fiduciary investment advice by complying with prohibited transaction 
exemptions that pern1it the receipt of commission-based compensation for the sale of muhml 
funds and other securities. Moreover, both ERISA and the IRC were amended as part of the 
PP A to include a new prohibited transaction exemption that applies to investment advice in both 
the plan and IRA context. The PP A exemption clearly reflects the longstanding concern under 
ERISA and the Code about the dangers posed by conflicts of interest, and the need for 
appropriate safeguards in both the plan and IRA markets. Under the tern1s of the exemption, the 
investment recommendations must either result from the application of an unbiased and 
independently certified computer program or the fiduciary's fees must be level (i.e., the 
fiduciary's compensation cannot vary based on their particular investment recommendations). 

Moreover, as discussed in the regulatory impact analysis below, there is substantial evidence to 
support the stah1tory concern about conflicts of interest. As the analysis reflects, unmitigated 
conflicts can cause significant harn1 to investors. The available evidence supports a finding that 
the negative impacts are present and often times large. The proposal would curtail the harn1s to 
investors from ]such conflicts and thus deliver significant benefits to plan participants and IRA ~ 
owners. Plans,~ plan participants,-benefic-iar!e-s -and IRA-owners-wo11.ld all-benefit -fron1 advice- - - - ' 
that is impartial and puts their interests first. 28 Moreover, broker-dealer interactions with plan 
fiduciaries, participants, and IRA owners present some of the most obvious conflict of interest 
problems in this area. Accordingly, in the Department's view, broker-dealers that provide 
investment advice should be subject to fiduciary duties to mitigate conflicts of interest and 
increase investor protections. 

Some commenters additionally suggested that the application of special fiduciary rnles in the 
retail investment market to IRA accounts, but not savings outside of tax-preferred retirement 
accounts, is inappropriate and could lead to confusion among investors and service providers. 
The distinction between IRAs and other retail accounts, however, is a direct result of a stah1tory 
strnchire that draws a sensible distinction between tax-favored IRAs and other retail investment 
accounts. The Code itself treats IRAs differently, bestowing uniquely favorable tax treatment on 
such accounts and prohibiting self-dealing by persons providing investment advice for a fee. In 
these respects, and in light of the special public interest in retirement security, IRAs are more 
like plans than like other retail accounts. Indeed, as noted above, the vast majority of IRA assets 
today are attributable to rollovers from plans.29 In addition, IRA owners may be at even greater 
risk from conflicted advice than plan participants. Unlike ERISA plan participants, IRA owners 
do not have the benefit of an independent plan fiduciary to represent their interests in selecting a 
menu of investment options or strnch1ring advice arrangements. They cannot sue fiduciary 
advisers under ERISA for losses arising from fiduciary breaches, nor can the Department sue on 
their behalf. Compared to participants with ERISA plan accounts, IRA owners often have larger 
account balances and are more likely to be elderly. ~hus, limiting the harms to IRA investors 

28 
As noted above, the Department does not agree that the inclusion of such language in an IRA agreement 

automatically ensures that a broker is not a fiduciary under the 1975 regulation. 
29 

Peter Brady, Sarah Holden, and Erin Shon, The US. Retirement Market, 2009, Investment Company Institute, 
Research Fundamentals, Vol. 19, No. 3, May 2010, athttp://www.ici.org/pdtlfm-vl9n3.pdf. 
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resulting from conflicts of interest of advisers is at least as important as protecting ERIS A plans 
and plan participants a~~in~t_ c_ol'lflic!s_ ()f_irlt_er_e~~ ()f_ a_dyis~rs._ l _______________________ -~ ~ ~ 

\\ 

Comment [A44]: 
RESPONSE: We believe the rule is about limiting 

The Department believes that it is important to address the concerns of brokers and others 
providing investment advice to IRA owners about undue disrnptions to current fee arrangements, 
but also believes that such concerns are best resolved within a fiduciary framework, rather than 

1
(, \ dangers not just the actual harms. Sentence revised 

1 \ accordingly .. 
\1 \ >================< 

Comment [A45]: Why would we care about 
dangers that we agree aren't going to materialize? 
EBSA Response: We do not understand the point by simply relieving advisers from all fiduciary responsibility. As previously discussed, the 

proposed regulation pern1its investment professionals to provide important financial inforn1ation 
and education, without acting as fiduciaries or being subject to the prohibited transaction rnles. 
Moreover, ERlSA and the Code create a flexible process that enables the Department to grant 
class and individual exemptions from the prohibited transaction rnles for fee practices that it 
detem1ines are beneficial to plan participants and IRA owners. For example, existing prohibited 
transaction exemptions already allow brokers who provide fiduciary advice to receive 
commissions generating conflicts of interest for trading the types of securities and fonds that 

1 \ being made in this comment. We revised text to 
11 see if this clarifies. 

make up the large majority ofIRA assets today. In addition, simultaneous with the publication 
of this proposed regulation, the Department is publishing new exemption proposals that would 
pem1it ~ommon fee practices, while at the same time protecting plan participants, beneficiaries , 
and IRA -owners -fron1 ab11.se -and conflicts of !nteres( As -noi.ecC above, lll contrasf w!tli n-lany - - - -
previously adopted PTE exemptions that are transaction-specific, the Best Interest Contract PTE 
described below reflects a more flexible approach that accommodates a wide range of current 
business practices while minimizing the impact of conflicts of interest and ensuring that plans 
and IRAs receive investment recommendations that are in their best interests. 

!As discussed, the Department received extensive comment on the application of the 2010 
Proposal's provisions to IRAs, but commenters regarding other non-ERlSA plans such as Health 
Savings Accounts, Archer Medical Savings Accounts and Coverdell Education Savings 
Accounts were less prolific. The Department notes that these accounts are given tax preferences 
as are IRAs. Further, some of the accounts such as HSAs - can-be-used as-long tern1 savings 
accounts for retiree health care expenses. ,T,,1.i~s_e_ type_s_ o_f_a~c;o_u_n!s also are expresslv pe_fin~~ ~y = / / , 
Code section 4975(e)(l) as plans that are subject to the Code's prohibited transaction rnles,. / , ,' 
Thus, although they generally may hold fewer assets and may exist for shorter durations than- - - - / / 
IRAs the_ cr\v11e_n; _o! !h_es_e_ ~c_c_cn1~ts_ ()f_ ~h~ p~f8()11S_ ~o! :w_h_o111_ t!te_s_e _ a_ccx>_un!s_ '.Ve_re _e~ta~lis_h~~ ~e __ 

/ 

entitled to receive the same protections from conflicted investment advice as IRA owners. 
Accordingly, these accounts are included in the scope of covered plans in paragraph (f)(2) of the 
new proposal. However, the Department solicits specific comment as to whether it is appropriate 
to cover and treat these plans under the proposed regulation in a manner similar to IRAs as to 
both coverage and applicable carve-outs.] ____________________________________ _ 

F. Administrative Prohibited Transaction Exemptions 

In addition to the new proposal in this Notice, the Department is also proposing, elsewhere in 
this edition of the Federal Register, certain administrative class exemptions from the prohibited 
transaction provisions ofERlSA (29 U.S.C. 1106), and the Code (26 U.S.C. 4975(c)(l)) as well 

and special uses of these accounts for retirement as 
rationale 

RESPONSE: We believe that the explicit language in 
the Code is sufficient rationale. See added 

sentence. 
"Furthermore, these types of accounts are defined 

by Code section 497S(e)(l) as plans that are subject 
to the Code's prohibited transaction rules." 

Comment [A48]: Disagree. I think this is too 
impenetrable and you should make these 
arguments explicitly. 
EBSA Response: Text revised 

Comment [A49]: I assume there is a statutory 
basis for applying fiduciary protections for 
retirement savings to accounts that aren't explicitly 
for ret1rement savings? 

RESPONSE: See added sentence. 
"Furthermore, these types of accounts are defined 

by Code section 497S(e)(l) as plans that are subject as proposed amendments to adopted exemptions. The proposed exemptions and 
amendments would certain broker-dealers, insurance 

1 to the Code's prohibited transaction rules." 

agents and others that act as investment advice fiduciaries to nevertheless continue to receive a Comment [A50]: Don't see this added 
sentence? 
EBSA Response: Text revised. 
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variety of forms of compensation that would otherwise violate prohibited transaction mies and 
~rigger excise taxes4_1'11:e_£r91xlse~ ~)(en1£tio_n~ :vou!~ supp~e!l~e!l! ~tl1tu!o!Y ~)(~n~£tio!1~ ~! ~~ ___ ~ ~ ~ Comment [A51]: It would do more than trigger 

U.S.C. 1108 and 26 U.S.C. 4975(d), and previously adopted class exemptions. 

Investment advice fiduciaries to plans and plan participants must meet ERIS A's standards of 
prndence and loyalty to their plan customers. Such fiduciaries also face taxes, remedies and 
other sanctions for engaging in certain transactions, such as self-dealing with plan assets or 
receiving payments from third parties in connection with plan transactions, unless the 
transactions are pem1itted by an exemption from ERISA's and the Code's prohibited transaction 
rnles. IRA fiduciaries do not have the same general fiduciary obligations of prndence and 
loyalty under the statute, but they too must adhere to the prohibited transaction rnles or they must 
pay an excise tax. The prohibited transaction rnles help ensure that investment advice provided 
to plan participants and IRA owners is not driven by the adviser's financial self-interest. 

The proposed Contract PTE would provide broad and flexible relief from the 
prohibited on certain compensation received by investment advice 
fiduciaries as a result of a plan's or IRA's purchase, sale or holding of specifically identified 
investments. The conditions of the exemption are generally principles-based rather than 
prescriptive and require, in particular, that advice be provided in the best interest of the plan or 
IRA. This exemption was developed partly in response to the comments received on the 2010 
proposal ~hat suggested such an approac~. It is a departure from existing exemptions, examples 
of which are discussed below, which are 11n1ited-to -n111ch-narrower cateiories of investn1ents - - - -
under more prescriptive and less flexible and adaptable conditions. 

The proposed Contract PTE was developed to promote the provision of investment 
advice that is of retail investors, such as plan participants and beneficiaries, 
IRA owners, and small plans. The proposed exemption would apply to compensation received 
by an individual investment advice iflduciary, 30 a firm individual investment advice fiduciary 
that employs or otherwise contracts with such an individual, ~nd such a fim1's affiliates and 
related entities that is provided in connection with the purchase~ sale or holding of certain assets - -
by the plans, participants and beneficiaries, and IRAs. In order to protect the interests of these 
investors, the exemption requires the fim1 and the adviser to contrachmlly acknowledge fiduciary 
stah1s, commit to adhere to basic standards of impartial conduct, warrant that they have adopted 
policies and procedures reasonably designed to mitigate any ham1fol impact of conflicts of 
interest, and disclose basic infom1ation on their conflicts of interest and on the cost of their 
advice. The basic [standards of impartial conduct ~o which the adviser and fim1 must commit are 
basic obligations of fair dealing and fiduciary concllict-to which-the b-epartn1ent believes advisers ~ \ 
and fim1s often infom1ally commit- to give advice that is in the customer's best interest; avoid \ 

30 By using the term "adviser," the Department does not intend to limit the exemption to investment advisers 
registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940; under the exemption an adviser is individual who can be a 
representative ofa registered investment adviser, a bank or similar financial institution, an insurance company, or a 
broker-dealer. 
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misleading statements; receive no more than reasonable compensation; and comply with 
applicable federal and state laws governing advice. This standards-based approach aligns the 
adviser's interests with those of the plan or IRA customer, while leaving the adviser and 
employing fim1 the flexibility and discretion necessary to detem1ine how best to satisfy these 
basic standards in light of the unique attributes of their business. 

fAs an additional protection for fe!ai! inye_s!()n>,_ t]Je_ ~~e_111E.t~op _"1()U}~ ]1()t_ a_pp!y_ if !~e _ c_OJ1tr~e_t ______ - -{~o_e_le_t_ed_:_th_e _________ ~ 
contains exculpatory provisions disclaiming or otherwise limiting liability of the adviser or 
fmancial institution for violation of the contract's terms. While the contract could require the 
parties to arbitrate individual claims, it could not limit the rights of the plan, participant, 
beneficiary, or IRA owner to bring or participate in a class action against the adviser or fmancial 
institution. 1 

fAdditional conditions would apply to firms that limit the products that their advisers can 
reconmrend based on the receipt of third party p~yments or the propnetary natUre-oftlie products-, 
(i.e., products offered or managed by the firm or its affiliates) or for other reasons. 

Finally, certain notice and data collection requirements would apply to all fim1s relying on the 
exemption. Specifically, fim1s would be required to notify the Department in advance of doing 
so, and they would have to maintain certain data, and make it available to the Department upon 
request, to help evaluate the effectiveness of the exemption in safeguarding the interests of plan 
and IRA investors. 

The Department's intent in crafting the Contract PIE is to pem1it common 
compensation strnctures that create while minimizing the costs imposed on 
investors by such conflicts. The exemption is designed both to impose broad fiduciary standards 
of conduct on advisers and financial institutions, and to give them sufficient flexibility to 
accommodate a wide range of business practices and compensation strnctures that currently exist 
or that may develop in the fuhire. 

The Department is also considering an additional streamlined exemption that would apply to 
compensation received in connection with investments by plans, participants and beneficiaries, 
and IRA in certain high-quality, low-fee investments, subject to fewer conditions than in 

1111111111 Contract PIE. If properly crafted, the streamlined exemption could 
achieve important compliance burdens for advisers and financial institutions 
when they offer investment products with little potential for material conflicts of interest The 

- Comment [ASS]: Would make clearthatthis is(I 
think) exactly how FINRA works and say that this 

\ \ 

\I 

I I 

\ 

approach is modeled on them. 

Department is not proposing text for such p _s!r~a_n_1lin_e_d_ e_x~rnp!i()n_ ~lle_ t_o _tlJIO__ ~i_fficulty _TI} ________ - -{ Deleted: a 

operationalizing this concept ~owevei ~-e _a!e_ e_ager_ !o_ r~c_e_iV'e_ c_o_n]ments on whether su_c]J _a11 ______ i""c=o=m=m=e=n=t=[=A=S7=1=, =Fi=xe=d=ty=p=
0
=====-

exemption would be worthwhile and, as part of the notice proposing - - - >o==============-

PTE, are soliciting comments on a number of issues relating to the design i~o_e_le_t_e_d:_. __________ ~ 
exemption. 

Comment [ASS]: Think we need to broaden 

Proposed Principal Transaction Exemption (Principal Transaction PTE) 
1 since this applies to more than BDs, right? 

Broker-dealers [and other advisers Jc_on1rnsn1ly _s~l1 sl~1Jt _s~c_1~r~t~e1' 911! o_f_tlie_ir_ ()\VJ1 jnv_e11!o!Y !o ____ / 
plan and IRA participants ha_ type_()~ tr-a_n_sa_c_t~ol1 _kn()\V11 _a1l l1 ~'pr_in_c_ipa_l !r_a11~a_c!i()n_- ~ _ f'i~11cja_rie_s __ - -

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 



COi EBSA PASS BACK 
DRAFT- 410812015 

trigger taxes, remedies and other legal sanctions when they engage in such activities, unless they 
qualify for an exemption from the prohibited transaction rnles. These principal transactions raise 
issues similar to those addressed in the Contract PTE, but also raise unique 
concerns because the conflicts of interest are acute. In these transactions, the adviser 
sells the [stock ~irectly from its own inventory, and may be able to dictate the price that the plan / / / 

or IRA participantft}ay~-= = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =- _ 

Because of the prevalence of the practice in the market for fixed income securities, the 
Department has proposed a separate Principal Transactions PTE that would pern1it principal 
transactions in certain debt securities between a plan or IRA owner and an investment advice 
fiduciary, under certain circumstances[. _____________________________________ ~ 

JJie Principal Transaction PTE ~ould include all of the requirements of the Best Interest 
Contract P-TEJ-I!1-addition.-l1o\vever~i1Fi11JW_ind.m:l.e specific conditions related to the price of -'11 

the debt Security involved in the tranSUCttOn~ -fh-e -ad~Ser-WOllld have tO-Obtain two price-qtlOteS - -> \ \~ \ 
from unaffiliated counterparties for the same or a similar security, and the transaction would \ 1 1 

Comment [A60]: Do we mean security not 
stock? 

have to occur at a price at least as favorable to the plan as the two price quotes. Additionally, the 1 \ >==~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

adviser would have to disclose the amount of compensation and profit (sometimes referred to as 
a "mark up" or "mark down") that it expects to receive on the transaction. 

Amendments to Existing PTEs 

In addition to the Contract PTE and the Principal Transaction PTE, the Department 
the Federal Register amendments to certain existing PTEs: is also proposing elsewhe1re 

• Prohibited Transaction Exemption (PTE) 86-12831 currently allows an investment advice 
fiduciary to cause the recipient plan or IRA to pay the investment advice fiduciary or its 
affiliate a fee for effecting or executing securities transactions as agent. To prevent churning, 
the exemption does not apply if such transactions are excessive in either amount or 
frequency. The exemption also allows the investment advice fiduciary to act as an agent for 
both the plan and the other party to the transaction (i.e., the buyer and the seller of securities) 
and receive a reasonable fee. To use the exemption, the fiduciary cannot be a plan 
administrator or employer, unless all profits earned by these parties are returned to the plan. 
The conditions of the exemption require that a plan fiduciary independent of the investment 
advice fiduciary receive certain disclosures and authorize the transaction. In addition, the 
independent fiduciary must receive confim1ations and an annual "portfolio h1rnover ratio" 
demonstrating the amount ofh1rnover in the account during that year. These conditions are 
not presently applicable to transactions involving IRAs. 

[rhe Department is proposing to amend PTE 86-128 to require all fiduciaries relying on the 
exemption to ~dhere to the same impartial conduct standards r~qujr_e~ -~ t_h_e_B_e_s~ ~n!er~s_t - - - _/ / / 
Contract PTE[. At the same time, the proposed amendment would not allow investment 
advice fiducianes fo-IRA owners ~o-claiill~~ ~~~i!iP~~ll; :u;-s!e=a~ }~ey =~~Ui~ ~~ !ectulI~~ !0- = =,, 

31 Class Exemption for Securities Transactions Involving Employee Benefit Plans and Broker-Dealers, 51 FR 
41686 (Nov. 18, 1986), amended at 67 FR 64137 (Oct. 17, 2002). 
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rely on the Best Interest Contract PIE for an exemption for such compensation. In the 
Department's view, investment advice transactions involving IRAs in the current 
marketplace generally should occur under the conditions of the Best Interest Contract 
Exemption, particularly in light of the fact that IRA owners do not have the benefit of a 
separate fiduciary, such as a plan sponsor, looking out for their interests. Investment advice 
fiduciaries to plans would remain eligible for relief under the exemption, as would 
[investment managers to plans and IRA owners], but they would be required to comply with all ~ ~ ~ 
the protective conditions, described above. Finally, the Departmerlt 18 proposing tha£PfE - - -
86-128 extend to a new covered transaction, for fiduciaries who sell mutual fund shares out 
of their own inventory (i.e. acting as principals, rather than agents) to plans and IRAs and to 
receive commissions for doing so. This transaction is currently the subject of another 
exemption, PIE 75-1, Part II(2) (discussed below).] ____________________________ _ 

changes are proposed with respect to PIE 75-1[, i1 _n]l!l!i·:p_a!t_e2'~n1pti()~ fo! ~~c~1!i!i~~ _ 
transactions involving broker dealers and banks, and plans and IRAs.32 Part I(b) and ( c) 
currently provide relief for certain non-fiduciary services to plans and IRAs. The 
Department is proposing to revoke these provisions, and require persons seeking to engage in 
such transactions to rely instead on the existing statutory exemptions provided in ERISA 
section 408(b)(2) and Code section 4975(d)(2), and the De artment's im lementin 
re ulations at 29 C.F.R. 2550.408b-2. 

fTE 7 5-1, Part II(2), currently provides relief for fiduciaries sellin 
lans and IRAs in a rinci 1 transaction to receive commissions. 

As described above, the Department is 
proposing to provide relief for these types of transactions in PIE 86-128, and so is proposing 
to revoke PIE 75-1, Part II(2), in its entirety. As discussed in more detail in the notice of 
proposed amendment/revocation, the Department believes the conditions of PIE 86-128 are 
more appropriate for these transactions. 

PIE 7 5-1, Part V, currently pem1its broker-dealers to extend credit to a plan or IRA in 
connection with the purchase or sale of securities. ~he exemption does not permit broker-

Comment [A67]: What's an investment 
manager to an lRA and how is this different from an 

investment advice fiduciary to an IRA? 

dealers that are fiduciaries to receive compensation when doing so. trli.~ pep3cf!n].~~t js _____ -~ ~ ~ Comment [A71]: How is this an exemption if it 

proposing to amend PIE 7 5-1, Part V, to pem1it investment advice fiduciaries to receive doesn't allow them to receive any compensation? 

compensation for lending money or otherwise extending credit, but only for the limited 
purpose of avoiding a failed securities transaction. 

32 Exemptions from Prohibitions Respecting Certain Classes of Transactions Involving Employee Benefit Plans and 
Certain Broker-Dealers, Reporting Dealers and Banks, 40 FR 50845 (Oct. 31, 1975), as amended at 71FR5883 
(Feb. 3, 2006). 
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Department believes that investment advice 
transactions involving IRAs in the current marketplace generally should occur under the 
conditions of the Best Interest Contract Exemption, particularly in light of the fact that IRA 
owners do not have the benefit of a se arate fiducia , such as a lan s nsor, lookin out for 
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Finally, the Department is proposing amendments to certain other class exemptions to 
require adherence to the impartial conduct standards required in the Contract PTE1 _ -~ 
Specifically, PTEs 75-1, Part III, 75-1, Part IV, 77-4, 80-83, and amended. 
These existing class exemptions will otherwise remain in place, affording flexibility to 
fiduciaries who currently use the exemptions or who wish to use the exemptions in the foture. 

G. The Provision of Professional Services Other Than Investment Advice 

Several commenters asserted that it was unclear whether investment advice under the scope of 
the 2010 Proposal would include the provision of inforn1ation and plan services that traditionally 
have been perforn1ed in a non-fiduciary capacity. For example, they requested that the proposal 
be revised to make clear that actuaries, accountants, and attorneys, who have historically not 
been treated as ERISA fiduciaries for plan clients, would not become fiduciary investment 
advisers by reason of providing achmrial, accounting and legal services. They said that if 
individuals providing these services were classified as fiduciaries, the associated costs would 
almost certainly increase because of the need to account for their new potential fiduciary 
liability. This was not the intent of the 2010 proposal. 

The new proposal clarifies that attorneys, accountants, and achmries would not be treated as 
fiduciaries merely because they provide such professional assistance in connection with a 
particular investment transaction. Only when these professionals act outside their norn1al roles 
and recommend specific investments or render valuation opinions in connection with particular 
investment transactions, would they be subject to the proposed fiduciary definition. 

Similarly, the new proposal does not alter the principle articulated in ERISA Interpretive Bulletin 
75-8, D-2 at 29 CFR 2509.75-8 (1975). Under the bulletin, the plan sponsor's HR personnel or 
plan service providers who have no power to make decisions as to plan policy, interpretations, 
practices or procedures, but who perforn1 purely administrative fonctions for an employee 
benefit plan, within a framework of policies, interpretations, rnles, practices and procedures 
made by other persons, are not fiduciaries with respect to the plan. 

H. !Effective Date; Applicability Datel 

Commenters on the 2010 Proposal asked the Department to provide sufficient time for orderly 
and efficient compliance, and to make it clear that the final rnle would not apply in connection 
with advice provided before the effective date of the final rnle. Many commenters also 
expressed concern with the provision in the Department's 2010 Proposal that the final regulation 
and class exemptions would be effective 90 days after their publication in the Federal Register. 
Commenters suggested that these effective dates should be extended to as much as 12 months or 
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longer following publication of the new rnle to allow service providers sufficient time to make 
necessary changes in business practices, recordkeeping, communication materials, sales 
processes, compensation arrangements, and related agreements, as well as the time necessary to 
obtain and adjust to any additional individual or class exemptions. Several said that applicability 
of any changes in the 197 5 regulation should be no earlier than two years after the promulgation 
of a final regulation. 

In response to these concerns, the Department has revised the date by which the final rnle will 
apply. Specifically, although the final rnle will be effective 60 days after publication in the 
Federal Register, the requirements of the final rnle will.~e_£_Q.~TI_1;0_app~ic_a_ble_Jl_ft_~_r-_Q_l:0.5-"ll_le_io_r.J__4 __ 

This modification is intended to accommodate concerns raised by commenters as to the 
cost and 11rrden associatecCwith tl-ans1t1on1ng-cl.1rrenf ancCil1tl.U-e contracts or arraniern-ents-to - - - -
satisfy the requirements of the final rnle and any accompanying prohibited transaction 
exemptions. 

I. Public Hearing 

The Department plans to hold an administrative hearing within 30 days of the close of the 
comment period. As with the 2010 Proposal, the Department will ensure ample opportunity for 
public comment by reopening the record following the hearing and publication of the hearing 
transcript. Specific inforn1ation regarding the date, location and submission of requests to testify 
will be published in a notice in the Federal Register. 
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r DOI Advisory Opinion 2005-23A (J)ec. 7. 2005). 
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of the IRA market. 
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As part of its continuing effort to reduce paperwork and respondent burden, the Department of 
Labor conducts a preclearance consultation program to provide the general public and Federal 
agencies with an opportunity to comment on proposed and continuing collections of infom1ation 
in accordance with the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 (PRA) (44 U.S.C. 3506(c)(2)(A)). 
This helps to ensure that the public understands the Department's collection instrnctions; 
respondents can provide the requested data in the desired fom1at; reporting burden (time and 
financial resources) is minimized; collection instrnments are clearly understood; and the 
Department can properly assess the impact of collection requirements on respondents. 

Currently, the Department is soliciting comments concerning the proposed infom1ation 
collection requests (ICRs) included in the Limitations - Investment Advice section of its 
proposal to amend its 1975 rnle that defines when a person who provides investment advice to an 
employee benefit plan becomes an ERIS A fiduciary. A copy of the IC Rs may be obtained by 
contacting the PRA addressee shown below or at http://www.Reginfo.gov. 

The Department has submitted a copy of the Counterparty Exception Disclosure Requirements to 
the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) in accordance with 44 U.S.C. 3507(d) for review 
of its infom1ation collections. The Department and OMB are particularly interested in comments 
that: 

Evaluate whether the collection of infom1ation is necessary for the proper perfom1ance of 
the fi.mctions of the agency, including whether the infom1ation will have practical utility; 

Evaluate the accuracy of the agency's estimate of the burden of the collection of 
infom1ation, including the validity of the methodology and assumptions used; 

Enhance the quality, utility, and clarity of the information to be collected; and 

Minimize the burden of the collection ofinfom1ation on those who are to respond, 
including through the use of appropriate automated, electronic, mechanical, or other 
technological collection techniques or other fom1s of infom1ation technology, e.g., pem1itting 
electronic submission of responses. 

Comments should be sent to the Office of Infom1ation and Regulatory Affairs, Office of 
Management and Budget, Room 10235, New Executive Office Building, Washington, DC 
20503; Attention: Desk Officer for the Employee Benefits Security Administration. OMB 
requests that comments be received within 30 days of publication of the Proposed Investment 
Advice Initiative to ensure their consideration. 

PRA Addressee: Address requests for copies of the ICR to G. Christopher Cosby, Office of 
Policy and Research, U.S. Department of Labor, Employee Benefits Security Administration, 
200 Constitution Avenue, NW., Room N-5718,Washington, DC 20210. Telephone (202) 693-
8410; Fax: (202) 219-5333. These are not toll-free numbers. ICRs submitted to OMB also are 
available at http://www.Reginfo.gov. 
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As discussed in detail above, Paragraph (b )( 1 )(i) of the proposed regulation provides a limitation 
to the general definition for advice provided in connection with an am1's length sale, purchase, 
loan, or bilateral contract between a sophisticated plan investor, which has 100 or more plan 
participants, and the adviser. It also applies in connection with an offer to enter into such a 
transaction or when the person providing the advice is acting as an [investment intem1ediary ,] 
agent or appraiser for the plan's counterparty ("counterparty limitation"). In order to rely on the 
limitation, the person must provide advice to a plan fiduciary who is independent of such person 
and who exercises authority or control respecting the management or disposition of the plan's 
assets, with respect to an am1' s length sale, purchase, loan or bilateral contract between the plan 
and the counterparty, or with respect to a proposal to enter into such a sale, purchase, loan or 
bilateral contract. 

The counterparty limitation applies if certain conditions are met. Among these conditions are the 
following: the adviser must obtain a written representation from the plan fiduciary that (1) the 
plan fiduciary is a fiduciary who exercises authority or control respecting the management or 
disposition of the employee benefit plan's assets (as described in section 3(2l)(A)(i) of the Act), 
(2) that the employee benefit plan has 100 or more participants covered under the plan, and that 
(3) the fiduciary will not rely on the person to act in the best interests of the plan, to provide 
impartial investment advice, or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity. 

Paragraph (b )(3) of the proposed regulation provides a limitation making clear that persons who 
merely market and make available, securities or other property through a platfom1 or similar 
mechanism to an employee benefit plan without regard to the individualized needs of the plan, its 
participants, or beneficiaries do not act as investment advice fiduciaries. The platfom1 provider 
limitation applies ifthe person discloses in writing to the plan fiduciary that the person is not 
undertaking to provide impartial investment advice or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity. 

Paragraph (b )(6) of the proposal makes clear that famishing and providing certain specified 
investment educational infom1ation and materials (including certain investment allocation 
models and interactive plan materials) to a plan, plan fiduciary, participant, beneficiary or IRA 
owner will not constitute the rendering of investment advice if certain conditions are met. One of 
the conditions is that the asset allocation models or interactive materials must explain all material 
facts and assumptions on which the models and materials are based and include a statement 
indicating that, in applying particular asset allocation models to their individual situations, 
participants, beneficiaries, or IRA owners should consider their other assets, income, and 
investments in addition to their interests in the plan or IRA to the extent they are not taken into 
account in the model or estimate. 

The counterparty limitation written representation, platfom1 provider limitation disclosure, and 
the education limitation disclosures for asset allocation models and interactive investment 
materials are infom1ation collection requests (ICRs) subject to the Paperwork Reduction Act. 
The Department has made the following assumptions in order to establish a reasonable estimate 
of the paperwork burden associated with these ICRs: 

Approximately 43,000 plans will utilize the counterparty limitation; 
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Approximately 1,800 service providers will utilize the platform provider limitation; 

Approximately 2,800 financial institutions will utilize the education limitation;] _______ -,~~~ 

Plans and advisers using the counterparty limitation are sophisticated entities and will 
distribute substantially all of the disclosures electronically via means already used in their 
nomml course of business and the costs arising from electronic distribution will be negligible; 

Service providers using the platfom1 provider limitation already maintain contracts with 
their customers as a regular and customary business practice and the materials costs arising from 
inserting the platfom1 provider disclosure into the existing contracts will be negligible; 

Materials costs arising from inserting the required education limitation disclosure into 
existing models and interactive materials will be negligible; 

Advisers will use existing in-house resources to prepare the disclosures; and 

The tasks associated with the ICRs will be perfom1ed by clerical personnel at an hourly 
rate of$29.14 and legal professionals at an hourly rate of$126.07. 

The Department estimates that each plan will require one hour oflegal professional time and 30 
minutes of clerical time to produce the counterparty limitation representation. Therefore, the 
counterparty limitation representation will result in approximately 43,000 hours oflegal time at 
an equivalent cost of approximately $5.4 million. They will also result in approximately 21,000 
hours of clerical time at an equivalent cost of approximately $635,000. In total, the burden 
associated with the counterparty limitation representation is approximately 64,000 hours at an 
equivalent cost of $6.1 million. 

The Department estimates that each service provider using the platfom1 provider limitation will 
require ten minutes of legal professional time to draft the platfom1 provider limitation disclosure. 
Therefore, the platfom1 provider limitation disclosure will result in approximately 300 hours of 
legal time at an equivalent cost of approximately $38,000. 

The Department estimates that each financial institution using the education limitation will 
require twenty minutes of legal professional time to draft the disclosure. Therefore, the 
education limitation disclosure will result in approximately 900 hours oflegal time at an 
equivalent cost of approximately $118,000. 

In total, the hour burden for the representation and disclosures required by the limitations is 
approximately 66,000 hours at an equivalent cost of $6.2 million. 

Because the Department assumes that all disclosures will be distributed electronically or require 
small amounts of space to include in existing materials, the Department has not associated any 
cost burden with these ICRs. 

These paperwork burden estimates are summarized as follows: 
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Type of Review: New collection (Request for new OMB Control Number). 

Agency: Employee Benefits Security Administration, Department of 

Labor. 

Title: Counterparty Limitation Disclosure. 

OMB Control Number: 1210-NEW. 

Affected Public: Business or other for-profit. 

Estimated Number of Respondents: 48,000. 

Estimated Number of Annual Responses: 48,000. 

Frequency of Response: When engaging in excepted transaction. 

Estimated Total Annual Burden Hours: 66,000 hours. 

Estimated Total Annual Burden Cost: $0. 

M. Congressional Review Act 

The proposed rnle is subject to the Congressional Review Act provisions of the Small Business 
Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996 (5 U.S.C. 801 et seq.) and, if finalized, will be 
transmitted to Congress and the Comptroller General for review. The proposed rnle is a "major 
rnle" as that tern1 is defined in 5 U.S.C. 804, because it is likely to result in an annual effect on 
the economy of $100 million or more. 

N. Unfunded Mandates Reform Act 

Title II of the Unfi.mded Mandates Reforn1 Act of 1995 (Pub. L. 104-4) requires each Federal 
agency to prepare a written statement assessing the effects of any Federal mandate in a proposed 
or final agency rnle that may result in an expenditure of $100 million or more (adjusted annually 
for inflation with the base year 1995) in any one year by State, local, and tribal governments, in 
the aggregate, or by the private sector. Such a mandate is deemed to be a "significant regulatory 
action." The current proposal is expected to have such an impact on the private sector, and the 
Department therefore hereby provides such an assessment. 
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The Department is issuing the current proposal under ERISA section 3(21 )(A)(ii) (29 U. S.C. 
1002(2l)(a)(ii)).45 The Department is charged with interpreting the ERISA and IRC provisions 
that attach fiduciary status to anyone who is paid to provide investment advice to plan or IRA 
investors. The current proposal will update and supersede the 1975 rnle46 that currently 
interprets these statutory provisions. 

The Department assessed the anticipated benefits and costs of the current proposal pursuant to 
Executive Order 12866 in the Regulatory Impact Analysis for the current proposal [add citation 
to the RIA] and concluded that its benefits will justify its costs. To summarize, the current 
proposals' material benefits and costs generally will be confined to the private sector, where 
plans and IRA investors will benefit on net, partly at the expense of their fiduciary advisers and 
upstream financial service and product producers. The Department itself will benefit from 
increased efficiency in its enforcement activity. The public and overall US economy will benefit 
from increased compliance with ERISA and the Code and confidence in advisers, as well as from 
more efficient allocation of investment capital, and transfers from financial professionals and 
firn1s to investors, who are likely to have higher marginal utilities of income. 

The current proposal is not expected to have any material economic impacts on State, local or 
tribal governments, or on health, safety, or the natural environment. The North American 
Securities Administrators Association commented in support of the Department's 2010 
proposal.47 

0. Federalism Statement 

Executive Order 13132 (August 4, 1999) outlines fundamental principles of federalism, and 
requires the adherence to specific criteria by Federal agencies in the process of their fornmlation 
and implementation of policies that have substantial direct effects on the States, the relationship 
between the national government and States, or on the distribution of power and responsibilities 
among the various levels of government. This proposed rnle does not have federalism 
implications because it has no substantial direct effect on the States, on the relationship between 
the national government and the States, or on the distribution of power and responsibilities 
among the various levels of government. Section 514 ofERISA provides, with certain 
exceptions specifically enumerated, that the provisions of Titles I and IV of ERIS A supersede 
any and all laws of the States as they relate to any employee benefit plan covered under ERISA. 
The requirements implemented in the proposed rnle do not alter the fi.mdamental reporting and 
disclosure requirements of the statute with respect to employee benefit plans, and as such have 
no implications for the States or the relationship or distribution of power between the national 
government and the States. 

45 Under section 102 of the Reorganization Plan No. 4of1978, 5 U.S.C. App. 1 (1996), the authority of the 
Secretary of the Treasury to interpret section 4975 of the Code has been transferred, with exceptions not relevant 
here, to the Secretary of Labor. 
46 29 CFR 2510.3-21(c). 
47 Last accessed at http://www.dol.gov/ebsa/pdt/1210-AB32-PH007.pdf 
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This regulation is proposed pursuant to the authority in section 505 ofERISA (Pub. L. 93-406, 
88 Stat. 894; 29 U.S.C. 1135) and section 102 of Plan No. 4 ofl978 (43 FR 47713, October 17, 
1978), effective December 31, 1978 (44FR1065, January 3, 1979), 3 CFR 1978 Comp. 332, and 
under Secretary of Labor's Order No. 1-2003, 68 FR 5374 (Feb. 3, 2003). 

Withdrawal of Proposed Regulation 

Paragraph (c) of the proposed regulation relating to the definition of fiduciary (proposed 29 CFR 
2510.3(21 )) that was published in the Federal Register on October 20, 2010 (75 FR 65263) is 
hereby withdrawn. 

List of Subjects in 29 CFR Parts 2509 and 2510 

Employee benefit plans, Employee Retirement Income Security Act, Pensions, Plan assets. 

For the reasons set forth in the preamble, the Department is proposing to amend parts 2509 and 
2510 of subchapters A and B of Chapter XXV of Title 29 of the Code of Federal Regulations as 
follows: 

SUBCHAPTER A-GENERAL 

PART 2509-INTERPRETIVE BULLETINS RELATING TO THE EMPLOYEE 
RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT OF 1974 

1. The authority citation for part 2509 continues to read as follows: 

AUTHORITY: 29 U.S.C. 1135. Secretary of Labor's Order 1-2003, 68 FR 5374 (Feb. 3, 2003). 
Sections 2509.75-10 and 2509.75-2 issued under 29 U.S.C. 1052, 1053, 1054. Sec. 2509.75-5 
also issued under 29 U.S.C. 1002. Sec. 2509.95-1 also issued under sec. 625, Pub. L. 109-280, 
120 Stat. 780. 

2. §2509.96-1 [Removed] 

Remove §2509.96-1. 

SUBCHAPTER B-DEFINITIONS AND COVERAGE UNDER THE EMPLOYEE 
RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT OF 1974 

PART 2510-DEFINITIONS OF TERMS USED IN SUBCHAPTERS C, D, E, F, AND G 
OF THIS CHAPTER 

3. The authority citation for part 2510 is revised to read as follows: 
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AUTHORITY: 29 U.S.C. 1002(2), 1002(21), 1002(37), 1002(38), 1002(40), 1031, and 1135; 
Secretary of Labor's Order 1-2011, 77 FR 1088; Secs. 2510.3-21, 2510.3-101and2510.3-102 
also issued under Sec. 102 of Reorganization Plan No. 4of1978, 5 U.S.C. App. 237. Section 
2510.3-38 also issued under Pub. L. 105-72, Sec. l(b ), 111 Stat. 1457 (1997). 

4. Revise§ 2510.3-21 to read as follows: 

§ 2510.3-21 Definition of "Fiduciary." 

(a) Investment Advice. For purposes of section 3(2l)(A)(ii) of the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act of 1974 (Act) and section 4975(e)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code 
(Code), except as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, a person renders investment advice 
with respect to moneys or other property of a plan or IRA described in paragraph (f)(2) of this 
section if-

(1) Such person provides, directly to a plan, plan fiduciary, plan participant or 
beneficiary, IRA, or IRA owner the following types of advice in exchange for a fee or other 
compensation, whether direct or indire,c_t~ ________________________________________ - -{ Deleted: i 

~-------------~ 

(i) A recommendation as to the advisability of acquiring, holding, disposing or 
exchanging securities or other property, including a recommendation to take a distribution of 
benefits or a recommendation as to the investment of securities or other property to be rolled 
over or otherwise distributed from the plan or IRA; 

(ii) A recommendation as to the management of securities or other property, including 
recommendations as to the management of securities or other property to be rolled over or 
otherwise distributed from the plan or IRA; 

(iii) An appraisal, fairness opinion, or similar statement whether verbal or written 
concerning the value of securities or other property if provided in connection with a specific 
transaction or transactions involving the acquisition, disposition, or exchange, of such securities 
or other property by the plan or IRA; 

(iv) A recommendation of a person-'-'-=""'-""-'~-"-'""-'~~-'-"="-'-''-"'--=-"-"'-"-"-'~= 
£QJQJIJ~ill!.!.Q!lc.12LJ2I2.'QQill£4£1IlY ()ft}i~ !Y_pe~ ()f l1d_vjc_e_desc_rib_esl _i11 Pl1r~gr_aplis_ (il t_}u-ougli _(iii)[; __ _ 

(2) Such person, either directly or indirectly (e.g., through or together with any 
affiliate), -

(i) Represents or acknowledges that it is acting as a fiduciary within the meaning of the 
Act with respect to the advice described in paragraph (a)(l) of this section; or 

(ii) Renders the advice pursuant to a written or verbal agreement, arrangement or 
understanding that the advice is individualized to, or that such advice is specifically directed to, 
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the advice recipient for consideration in making investment or management decisions with 
respect to securities or other property of the plan or IRA. 

Except for persons described in paragraph 
of this or communications in confom1ance with a l!IJrlJil 
set forth in paragraph (b )(1) through (6) of this section shall not cause the person who 
advice to be treated as a fiduciary under paragraph (a). 

(1) Counterparties to the plan. 

(i) Counterparty transaction with sophisticated plan fiduciary. 

(A) In such person's capacity as a counterparty (or representative of a counterparty) to an 
employee benefit plan (as described in section 3(3) of the Act), the person provides advice to a 
plan fiduciary who is independent of such person and who exercises authority or control 
respecting the management or disposition of the plan's assets, with respect to an am1's length 
sale, purchase, loan or bilateral contract between the plan and the counterparty, or with respect to 
a proposal to enter into such a sale, purchase, loan or bilateral contract, if, prior to providing any 
recommendation with respect to the transaction, such person satisfies the requirements of either 
(b)(l)(i)(B) or (b)(l)(i)(C) below. 

(B) Such person-

(1) obtains a written representation from the independent plan fiduciary that the 
independent fiduciary exercises authority or control respecting the management or disposition of 
the employee benefit plan's assets (as described in section 3(2l)(A)(i) of the Act), that the 
employee benefit plan has 100 or more participants covered under the plan, and that the 
independent fiduciary will not rely on the person to act in the best interests of the plan, to 
provide impartial investment advice, or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity; 

(2) fairly infom1s the independent plan fiduciary of the existence and nature of the 
person's financial interests in the transaction; 

(3) does not receive a fee or other compensation directly from the plan, or plan fiduciary, 
for the provision of investment advice kas opposed to other services) ~n_ c_o_n!1~c_ti_o!1 _\\'i!h_ t_h~ _______ -
transaction; and 

( 4) knows or reasonably believes that the independent plan fiduciary has sufficient 
expertise to evaluate the transaction and to detem1ine whether the transaction is prndent and in 
the best interest of the plan participants (the person may rely on written representations from the 
plan or the plan fiduciary to satisfy this subsection (b )(1)(i)(B)(4)). 

(C) Such person 

(1) knows or reasonably believes that the independent plan fiduciary has responsibility 
for managing at least $100 million in employee benefit plan assets (for purposes of this 
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subsection (b )(1 )(i)(C), when dealing with an individual employee benefit plan, a person may 
rely on the inforn1ation on the most recent F orn1 5500 Annual Return/Report filed for the plan to 
detern1ine the value and, in the case of an independent fiduciary acting as an asset manager for 
multiple employee benefit plans, a person may rely on representations from the independent plan 
fiduciary regarding the value of employee benefit plan assets under management); 

(2) fairly inforn1s the independent plan fiduciary that the person is not undertaking to 
provide impartial investment advice, or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity; and 

(3) does not receive a fee or other compensation directly from the plan, or plan fiduciary, 
for the provision of investment advice (as opposed to other services) in connection with the 
transaction. 

(ii) Swap and security-based swap transactions. The person is a counterparty to an 
employee benefit plan (as described in section 3(3) of the Act) in connection with a swap or 
security-based swap, as defined in section 4s(h) of the Commodity Exchange Act (7 U.S.C. 6s(h) 
and section 15F(h) of the Securities Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. 78o-10(h)), if-

(A) the plan is represented by a fiduciary independent of the person; 

(B) the person is a swap dealer, security-based swap dealer, major swap participant, or 
major security-based swap participant; 

(C) the person (if a swap dealer or security-based swap dealer), is not acting as an advisor 
to the plan (within the meaning of section 4s(h) of the Commodity Exchange Act or section 
15F(h) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) in connection with the transaction; and 

(D) in advance of providing any recommendations with respect to the transaction, the 
person obtains a written representation from the independent plan fiduciary, that the fiduciary 
will not rely on recommendations provided by the person. 

(2) Employees. In his or her capacity as an employee of any employer or employee 
organization sponsoring the employee benefit plan (as described in section 3(3) of the Act), the 
person provides the advice to a plan fiduciary, and he or she receives no fee or other 
compensation, direct or indirect, in connection with the advice beyond the employee's norn1al 
compensation for work perforn1ed for the employer or employee organization. 

(3) Platforn1 Providers. The person merely markets and makes available to an employee 
benefit plan (as described in section 3(3) of the Act), without regard to the individualized needs 
of the plan, its participants, or beneficiaries, securities or other property through a platforn1 or 
similar mechanism from which a plan fiduciary may select or monitor investment alternatives, 
including qualified default investment alternatives, into which plan participants or beneficiaries 
may direct the investment of assets held in, or contributed to, their individual accounts, ifthe 
person discloses in writing to the plan fiduciary that the person is not undertaking to provide 
impartial investment advice or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity. 
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(4) Selection and Monitoring Assistance. In connection with the activities described in 
paragraph (b )(3) of this section with respect to an employee benefit plan (as described in section 
3(3) of the Act), the person -

(i) merely identifies investment alternatives that meet objective criteria specified by the 
plan fiduciary (e.g., stated parameters concerning expense ratios, size offi.md, type of asset, 
credit quality); or 

(ii) merely provides objective financial data and comparisons with independent 
benchmarks to the plan fiduciary. 

(5) Financial Reports and Valuations. The person provides an appraisal, fairness opinion, 
or statement of value to -

(i) an employee stock ownership plan (as defined in section 407(d)(6) of the Act) 
regarding employer securities (as defined section 407(d)(5) of the Act); 

(ii) an investment fond, such as a collective investment fond or pooled separate account, 
in which more than one unaffiliated plan has an investment, or which holds plan assets of more 
than one unaffiliated plan under 29 C.F.R. § 2510.3-101 (1986); or 

(iii) a plan, a plan fiduciary, a plan participant or beneficiary, an IRA or IRA owner 
solely for purposes of compliance with the reporting and disclosure provisions under the Act, the 
Code, and the regulations, fom1s and schedules issued thereunder, or any applicable reporting or 
disclosure requirement under a Federal or state law, rnle or regulation or self-regulatory 
organization rnle or regulation. 

(6) Investment Education. The person famishes or makes available any of the following 
categories of investment-related infom1ation and materials described in paragraphs (b )(6)(i) 
through (iv) to a plan, plan fiduciary, participant or beneficiary, IRA or IRA owner irrespective 
of who provides or makes available the infom1ation and materials (e.g., plan sponsor, fiduciary 
or service provider), the frequency with which the infom1ation and materials are provided, the 
fom1 in which the infom1ation and materials are provided (e.g., on an individual or group basis, 
in writing or orally, or via call center, video or computer software), or whether an identified 
category of infom1ation and materials is famished or made available alone or in combination 
with other categories of infom1ation and materials identified in paragraphs (b )(6)(i) through (iv) 
of this section, provided that the infom1ation and materials do not include (standing alone or in 
combination with other materials) recommendations with respect to specific investment products 
or specific plan or IRA alternatives, or recommendations on investment, management, or value 
of a particular security or securities, or other property. 

(i) Plan Infom1ation. Infom1ation and materials that, without reference to the 
appropriateness of any individual investment alternative or any individual benefit distribution 
option for the plan or IRA, or a particular participant or beneficiary or IRA owner, describe the 
tem1s or operation of the plan or IRA, infom1 a plan fiduciary, participant, beneficiary, or IRA 
owner about the benefits of plan or IRA participation, the benefits of increasing plan or IRA 
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contributions, the impact of preretirement withdrawals on retirement income, retirement income 
needs, varying forn1s of distributions, including rollovers, annuitization and other forn1s of 
lifetime income payment options (e.g., immediate annuity, deferred annuity, or incremental 
purchase of deferred annuity), advantages, disadvantages and risks of different forn1s of 
distributions, or describe investment objectives and philosophies, risk and return characteristics, 
historical return inforn1ation or related prospectuses of investment alternatives under the plan or 
IRA. 

(ii) General Financial Investment and Retirement Inforn1ation. Inforn1ation and 
materials on financial, investment and retirement matters that do not address specific investment 
products, specific plan or IRA alternatives or distribution options available to the plan or IRA or 
to participants, beneficiaries and IRA owners, or specific alternatives or services offered outside 
the plan or IRA, and inforn1 the plan fiduciary, participant or beneficiary, or IRA owner about -

(A) general financial and investment concepts, such as risk and return, diversification, 
dollar cost averaging, compounded return, and tax deferred investment; 

(B) historic differences in rates ofreh1rn between different asset classes (e.g., equities, 
bonds, or cash) based on standard market indices; 

(C) effects of inflation; 

(D) estimating fohire retirement income needs; 

(E) detern1ining investment time horizons; 

(F) assessing risk tolerance; 

(G) retirement-related risks (e.g., longevity risks, market/interest rates, inflation, health 
care and other expenses); and 

(H) general methods and strategies for managing assets in retirement (e.g., systematic 
withdrawal payments, annuitization, guaranteed minimum withdrawal benefits), including those 
offered outside the plan or IRA. 

(iii) Asset Allocation Models. Inforn1ation and materials (e.g., pie charts, graphs, or case 
sh1dies) that provide a plan fiduciary, participant or beneficiary, or IRA owner with models of 
asset allocation portfolios of hypothetical individuals with different time horizons (which may 
extend beyond an individual's retirement date) and risk profiles, where -

(A) such models are based on generally accepted investments theories that take into 
account the historic reh1rns of different asset classes (e.g., equities, bonds, or cash) over defined 
periods of time; 
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(B) all material facts and assumptions on which such models are based (e.g., retirement 
ages, life expectancies, income levels, financial resources, replacement income ratios, inflation 
rates, and rates of return) accompany the models; 

(C) such models do not include or identify any specific investment product or specific 
alternative available under the plan or IRA; and 

(D) the asset allocation models are accompanied by a statement indicating that, in 
applying particular asset allocation models to their individual situations, participants, 
beneficiaries, or IRA owners should consider their other assets, income, and investments (e.g., 
equity in a home, Social Security benefits, individual retirement plan investments, savings 
accounts and interests in other qualified and non-qualified plans) in addition to their interests in 
the plan or IRA, to the extent those items are not taken into account in the model or estimate. 

(iv) Interactive Investment Materials. Questionnaires, worksheets, software, and similar 
materials which provide a plan fiduciary, participant or beneficiary, or IRA owners the means to 
estimate fohire retirement income needs and assess the impact of different asset allocations on 
retirement income; questionnaires, worksheets, software and similar materials which allow a 
plan fiduciary, participant or beneficiary, or IRA owners to evaluate distribution options, 
products or vehicles by providing inforn1ation under paragraphs (i) and (ii) above; 
questionnaires, worksheets, software, and similar materials that provide a plan fiduciary, 
participant or beneficiary, or IRA owner the means to estimate a retirement income stream that 
could be generated by an achml or hypothetical account balance, where -

(A) such materials are based on generally accepted investment theories that take into 
account the historic reh1rns of different asset classes (e.g., equities, bonds, or cash) over defined 
periods of time; 

(B) there is an objective correlation between the asset allocations generated by the 
materials and the inforn1ation and data supplied by the participant, beneficiary or IRA owner; 

(C) there is an objective correlation between the income stream generated by the 
materials and the inforn1ation and data supplied by the participant, beneficiary or IRA owner; 

(D) all material facts and assumptions (e.g., retirement ages, life expectancies, income 
levels, financial resources, replacement income ratios, inflation rates, rates of reh1rn and other 
feah1res and rates specific to income annuities or systematic withdrawal plan) that may affect a 
participant's, beneficiary's or IRA owner's assessment of the different asset allocations or 
different income streams accompany the materials or are specified by the participant, beneficiary 
or IRA owner; 

(E) the materials do not include or identify any specific investment alternative available 
or distribution option available under the plan or IRA, unless such alternative or option is 
specified by the participant, beneficiary or IRA owner; and 
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(F) the materials either take into account other assets, income and investments (e.g., 
equity in a home, Social Security benefits, individual retirement account/ annuity investments, 
savings accounts, and interests in other qualified and non-qualified plans) or are accompanied by 
a statement indicating that, in applying particular asset allocations to their individual situations, 
or in assessing the adequacy of an estimated income stream, participants, beneficiaries or IRA 
owners should consider their other assets, income, and investments in addition to their interests 
in the plan or IRA. 

(v) The infom1ation and materials described in paragraphs (b )(6)(i) through (iv) above 
represent examples of the type of infom1ation and materials that may be famished to 
participants, beneficiaries and IRA owners without such infom1ation and materials constituting 
investment advice. Detem1inations as to whether the provision of any infom1ation, materials or 
educational services not described herein constitutes the rendering of investment advice must be 
made by reference to the criteria set forth in paragraph (a) of this section. 

(c) Scope of Fiduciary Duty - Investment Advice. A person who is a fiduciary with 
respect to an employee benefit plan or IRA by reason of rendering investment advice (as defined 
in paragraph (a) of this section) for a fee or other compensation, direct or indirect, with respect to 
any securities or other property of such plan, or having any authority or responsibility to do so, 
shall not be deemed to be a fiduciary regarding any assets of the plan or IRA with respect to 
which such person does not have any discretionary authority, discretionary control or 
discretionary responsibility, does not exercise any authority or control, does not render 
investment advice (as defined in paragraph (a)(l) of this section) for a fee or other compensation, 
and does not have any authority or responsibility to render such investment advice, provided that 
nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed to: 

(1) Exempt such person from the provisions of section 405(a) of the Act concerning 
liability for fiduciary breaches by other fiduciaries with respect to any assets of the plan; or 

(2) Exclude such person from the definition of the tem1 "party in interest" (as set forth in 
section 3(14)(B) of the Act or "disqualified person" as set forth in section 4975( e)(2) of the 
Code) with respect to a plan. 

(d) Execution of Securities Transactions. 

(1) A person who is a broker or dealer registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, a reporting dealer who makes primary markets in securities of the United States 
Government or of an agency of the United States Government and reports daily to the Federal 
Reserve Bank of New York its positions with respect to such securities and borrowings thereon, 
or a bank supervised by the United States or a State, shall not be deemed to be a fiduciary, within 
the meaning of section 3(21 )(A) of the Act or section 4975(e )(3)(B) of the Code, with respect to 
an employee benefit plan or IRA solely because such person executes transactions for the 
purchase or sale of securities on behalf of such plan in the ordinary course of its business as a 
broker, dealer, or bank, pursuant to instrnctions of a fiduciary with respect to such plan or IRA, 
if: 
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(i) Neither the fiduciary nor any affiliate of such fiduciary is such broker, dealer, or bank; 

(ii) The instrnctions specify (A) the security to be purchased or sold, (B) a price range 
within which such security is to be purchased or sold, or, if such security is issued by an open­
end investment company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U. S.C. 80a­
l, et seq.), a price which is detern1ined in accordance with Rule 22cl under the Investment 
Company Act of 1940 (17 CFR270.22cl), (C) a time span during which such security may be 
purchased or sold (not to exceed five business days), and (D) the minimum or maximum quantity 
of such security which may be purchased or sold within such price range, or, in the case of a 
security issued by an open-end investment company registered under the Investment Company 
Act of 1940, the minimum or maximum quantity of such security which may be purchased or 
sold, or the value of such security in dollar amount which may be purchased or sold, at the price 
referred to in paragraph (d)(l)(ii)(B) of this section. 

(2) A person who is a broker-dealer, reporting dealer, or bank which is a fiduciary with 
respect to an employee benefit plan or IRA solely by reason of the possession or exercise of 
discretionary authority or discretionary control in the management of the plan or IRA, or the 
management or disposition of plan or IRA assets in connection with the execution of a 
transaction or transactions for the purchase or sale of securities on behalf of such plan or IRA 
which fails to comply with the provisions of paragraph ( d)(l) of this section, shall not be deemed 
to be a fiduciary regarding any assets of the plan or IRA with respect to which such broker­
dealer, reporting dealer or bank does not have any discretionary authority, discretionary control 
or discretionary responsibility, does not exercise any authority or control, does not render 
investment advice (as defined in paragraph (a) of this section) for a fee or other compensation, 
and does not have any authority or responsibility to render such investment advice, provided that 
nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed to: (i) Exempt such broker-dealer, reporting dealer, or 
bank from the provisions of section 405(a) of the Act concerning liability for fiduciary breaches 
by other fiduciaries with respect to any assets of the plan; or (ii) Exclude such broker-dealer, 
reporting dealer, or bank from the definition of the tern1 party in interest (as set forth in section 
3(14)(B) of the Act) or disqualified person 4975(e)(2) of the Code with respect to any assets of 
the plan or IRA. 

(e) Internal Revenue Code. Section 4975(e)(3) of the Code contains provisions parallel 
to section 3(21 )(A) of the Act which define the tern1 "fiduciary" for purposes of the prohibited 
transaction provisions in Code section 4975. Effective December 31, 1978, section 102 of the 
Reorganization Plan No. 4of1978, 5 U.S.C. App. 214 (2000 ed.) transferred the authority of the 
Secretary of the Treasury to promulgate regulations of the type published herein to the Secretary 
of Labor. All references herein to section 3(2l)(A) of the Act should be read to include 
reference to the parallel provisions of section 4975(e)(3) of the Code. Furthern1ore, the 
provisions of this section shall apply for purposes of the application of Code section 4975 with 
respect to any plan described in Code section 4975(e)(l). 
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(1) "Recommendation" means a communication that, based on its content, context, and 
presentation, would reasonably be viewed as a suggestion that the advice recipient engage in or 
refrain from taking a particular course of action. 

(2)(i) "Plan" means any employee benefit plan described in section 3(3) of the Act and 
any plan described in section 4975(e)(l)(A) of the Code, and 

(ii) "IRA" means any trnst, account or annuity described in Code section 4975(e)(l)(B) 
through (F), including, for example, an individual retirement account described in section 408(a) 
of the Code and a health savings account described in section 223(d) of the Code. 

(3) "Plan participant" means for a plan described in section 3(3) of the Act, a person 
described in section 3(7) of the Act. 

(4) "IRA owner" means with respect to an IRA either the person who is the owner of the 
IRA or the person for whose benefit the IRA was established. 

(5) "Plan fiduciary" means a person described in section (3)(21) of the Act and 
4975(e)(3) of the Code. 

(6) "Fee or other compensation, direct or indirect" for purposes of this section and section 
3(21 )(A)(ii) of the Act, means any fee or compensation for the advice received by the person (or 
by an affiliate) from any source and any fee or compensation incident to the transaction in which 
the investment advice has been rendered or will be rendered. The tem1 fee or other 
compensation includes, for example, brokerage fees, mutual fond and insurance sales 
comm1ss10ns. 

(7) "Affiliate" includes: any person directly or indirectly, through one or more 
intem1ediaries, controlling, controlled by, or under common control with such person; any 
officer, director, partner, employee or relative (as defined in section 3(15) of the Act) of such 
person; and any corporation or partnership of which such person is an officer, director or partner. 

(8) "Control" for purposes of paragraph (f)(7) means the power to exercise a controlling 
influence over the management or policies of a person other than an individual. 

Signed at Washington, DC, this [date] day of [month], 2015. 

Phyllis C. Borzi, 
Assistant Secretary, Employee Benefits Security Administration, Department of Labor. 
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DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

Employee Benefits Security Administration 

Application Number D-11820 

Proposed Amendments to Class Exemptions 75-1, 77-4, 80-83~~~-_:tl _________________ - Comment [Al]: EBSA: References to PTE 84-
24 removed from the "mass amendments" document 
because of new separate proposed amendment to 
PTE 84-24. ZRIN 1210-ZA25 

AGENCY: Employee Benefits Security Administration (EBSA), U.S. Department of Labor. 

ACTION: Notice of Proposed Amendments to Class Exemptions. 

SUMMARY: This document contains a notice ofpendency before the Department of Labor of 
proposed amendments to prohibited transaction exemptions (PTEs) 75-1, 77-4, 80-83_l!llil._8~·:.l,_ __ 
Generally, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and the Internal 
Revenue Code (the Code) prohibit fiduciaries with respect to employee benefit plans and 
[individual retirement accounts (IRAs) lfrom engaging in self-dealing, including using their 
authority, control or responsibility to affec-t or increase their -own-c-orrlp-ensation.- Thes-e-ex1sting - -
exemptions generally pern1it fiduciaries to receive compensation or other benefits as a result of 
the use of their fiduciary authority, control or responsibility in connection with investment 
transactions involving plans or IRAs. The proposed amendments would require the fiduciaries to 
satisfy uniforn1 Impartial Conduct Standards in order to obtain the relief available under each 
exemption. The proposed amendments would affect participants and beneficiaries of plans, IRA 
owners, and fiduciaries with respect to such plans and IRAs. 

Q~@:.!!~IJ~BJ[QQ: Written comments must be received by the Department on or before 
[INSERT DATE THAT IS 75 DAYS AFTER PUBLICATION OF THIS PROPOSED 
EXEMPTION IN THE FEDERAL REGISTER]. 

ADDRESSES: All written comments concerning the proposed amendments to the class 
exemptions should be sent to the Office of Exemption Detern1inations by any of the following 
methods, identified by ZRIN: 1210-ZA25 

Federal eRulemaking Portal: http://www.regulations.gov at Docket ID number: EBSA-
2014-0016. Follow the instrnctions for submitting comments. 

Email to: { HYPERLINK "mailto:e-OED@dol.gov" 1-
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- Comment [A2]: Treasury: This appears tc 
define IRA as limited to a 408(a) IRA for purposes 
of the preamble. The amendment to each exemption 
also defines IRA as an individual account described 
in 408(a). ls the omission of 408(b) intended? 
Should the term also include MSAs, HSAs, 
Coverdell~ etc.? 

EBSA response: We have revised our definitions 
to cover all plans identified in Code section 
4975(e)(l)(B)-(F), consistent with the COi reg and 
other exemptions~ 
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Fax to: (202) 693-8474. 

Mail: Office of Exemption Detern1inations, Employee Benefits Security Administration, 
(Attention: D-11820), U.S. Department of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue, NW, Suite 
400, Washington DC 20210. 

Hand Delivery/Courier: Office of Exemption Detern1inations, Employee Benefits 
Security Administration, (Attention: D-11820), U.S. Department of Labor, 122 C St. 
NW, Suite 400, Washington DC 20001. 

Instructions. All comments must be received by the end of the comment period. The comments 
received will be available for public inspection in the Public Disclosure Room of the Employee 
Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Room N-1513, 200 Constitution 
Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20210. Comments will also be available online at 
www.regulations.gov, at Docket ID number: EBSA-2014-0016 and www.dol.gov/ebsa, at no 
charge. 

WARNING: All comments will be made available to the public. Do not include any personally 
identifiable inforn1ation (such as Social Security number, name, address, or other contact 
inforn1ation) or confidential business infornmtion that you do not want publicly disclosed. All 
comments may be posted on the Internet and can be retrieved by most Internet search engines. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Brian Shiker, Office of Exemption 
Detem1inations, Employee Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, (202) 
693-8540 (this is not a toll-free number). 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION1 

Executive Summary 

Purpose of Regulatory Action 

The Department is proposing these amendments to existing class exemptions in connection with 
its proposed regulation defining a fiduciary under ERISA section 3(2l)(A)(ii) and Code section 
4975(e)(3)(B)(Proposed Regulation), published elsewhere in this issue of the FEDERAL 
REGISTER. The Proposed Regulation specifies when an entity is a fiduciary by reason of the 
provision of investment advice for a fee or other compensation regarding assets of a plan or IRA. 
If adopted, the Proposed Regulation would replace an existing regulation that was adopted in 
1975. [he Proposed Regulation is intended to take into account the advent of 40l(k) plans and 
IRAs the dramatic increase in rollovers and other developments that have transfonned the 
retirement plan landscape and the associated investment market over the four decades since the 
existing regulation was issued. In light of the extensive changes in retirement investment 

1 The Department is proposing the amendments to the class exemptions on its own motion, 
pursuant to ERISA section 408(a) and Code section 4975(c)(2), and in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in 29 CFR Part 2570, Subpart B (76 FR 66637 (October 27, 2011)). 
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practices and relationships the Proposed Regulation would update existing rules to distinguish 
more appropriately between the sorts of advice relationships that should be treated as fiduciary in 
nature and those that should not j __________________________________________ -::: _ -

This notice proposes that new "Impartial Conduct Standards" be made conditions of the 
following exemptions: PTEs 75-1, Part III, 75-1, Part IV, 77-4, 80-83.J)D_d_8_3:!.._ ~~d~1~il1fi~s ____ _ 
would be required to act in accordance with these standards in transactions pem1itted by the '·,,, 
exemptions. The standards will be unifom1ly imposed in multiple class exemptions, including ' 
new proposed exemptions published elsewhere in this issue of the FEDERAL REGISTER, to 
ensure that fiduciaries relying on the exemptions are held to a unifom1 set of standards and that 
these standards are applicable to transactions involving both plans and IRAs. The proposed 
amendments, if granted, would apply prospectively to fiduciaries relying on the exemptions. 

Section 408( a) of ERISA specifically authorizes the Secretary of Labor to grant administrative 
exemptions from ERISA's prohibited transaction provisions. 2 Regulations at 29 CFR section 
257030 to 2570.52 describe the procedures for applying for an administrative exemption. 
Before granting an exemption, the Department must find that it is administratively feasible, in 
the interests of plans and their participants and beneficiaries and IRA owners, and protective of 
the rights of participants and beneficiaries of such plans and IRA owners. Interested parties are 
pem1itted to submit comments to the Department on this proposed exemption, through [INSERT 
DATE THAT IS 75 DAYS FROM DATE OF PUBLICATION IN FEDERAL REGISTER 
OF THIS PROPOSED EXEMPTION]. 

Summary of the Major Provisions 

The proposal would amend prohibited transaction exemptions 75-1, Part III, 75-1, Part IV, 77-4, 
80-83 a_rni _8}: \, _ f'.l1c!i Y!()P_O~~~ l1Il1~ndn~ep! \,V~~1~d_ a_pply_ t!i~ ~l1~1~ !nJ2l11!il1l_Go_nsl~1~t_S_tl1~d_a~~s~ _ 
The amendments would require a fiduciary that satisfies ERISA section 3(21 )(A)(i) or (ii), or the 
corresponding provisions of Code section 4975(e )(3)(A) or (B), with respect to the assets 
involved in the investment transaction, to meet the standards with respect to the investment 
transactions described in the applicable exemption. 

Regulatory Impact Analysis 

Executive Order 12866 and 13563 Statement 

Under Executive Orders 12866 and 13563, the Department must detem1ine whether a regulatory 
action is "significant" and therefore subject to the requirements of the Executive Order and 

2 Code section 4975(c)(2) authorizes the Secretary of the Treasury to grant exemptions from the 
parallel prohibited transaction provisions of the Code. Reorganization Plan No. 4of1978 (5 
UKC app. at 214 (2000)) generally transferred the authority of the Secretary of the Treasury to 
grant administrative exemptions under Code section 4975 to the Secretary ofLaboL References 
in this document to sections ofERISA should be read to refer also to the corresponding sections 
of the Code. These proposed amendments to the class exemptions would apply to relief from the 
indicated prohibited transaction provisions of both ERISA and the Code. 
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subject to review by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB). Executive Orders 13563 
and 12866 direct agencies to assess all costs and benefits of available regulatory alternatives and, 
if regulation is necessary, to select regulatory approaches that maximize net benefits (including 
potential economic, environmental, public health and safety effects, distributive impacts, and 
equity). Executive Order 13563 emphasizes the importance of quantifying both costs and 
benefits, of reducing costs, ofham1onizing and streamlining rnles, and of promoting flexibility. 
It also requires federal agencies to develop a plan under which the agencies will periodically 
review their existing significant regulations to make the agencies' regulatory programs more 
effective or less burdensome in achieving their regulatory objectives. 

Under Executive Order 12866, "significant" regulatory actions are subject to the requirements of 
the Executive Order and review by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB). Section 3(f) 
of Executive Order 12866, defines a "significant regulatory action" as an action that is likely to 
result in a rnle ( 1) having an annual effect on the economy of $100 million or more, or adversely 
and materially affecting a sector of the economy, productivity, competition, jobs, the 
environment, public health or safety, or State, local or tribal governments or communities (also 
referred to as "economically significant" regulatory actions); (2) creating serious inconsistency 
or otherwise interfering with an action taken or planned by another agency; (3) materially 
altering the budgetary impacts of entitlement grants, user fees, or loan programs or the rights and 
obligations of recipients thereof; or ( 4) raising novel legal or policy issues arising out of legal 
mandates, the President's priorities, or the principles set forth in the Executive Order. Pursuant 
to the tem1s of the Executive Order, OMB has detem1ined that this action is "significant" within 
the meaning of Section 3(f)(4) of the Executive Order. Accordingly, the Department has 
undertaken an assessment of the costs and benefits of the proposed amendment, and OMB has 
reviewed this regulatory action. 

Background 

Proposed Regulation 

As explained more fully in the preamble to the Department's Proposed Regulation on the 
definition of fiduciary under ERlSA section 3(2l)(A)(ii) and Code section 4975(e)(3)(B), also 
published in this issue of the FEDERAL REGISTER, ERlSA is a comprehensive statute 
designed to protect the interests of plan participants and beneficiaries, the integrity of employee 
benefit plans, and the security of retirement, health, and other critical benefits. The broad public 
interest in ERlSA-covered plans is reflected in its imposition of stringent fiduciary 
responsibilities on parties engaging in important plan activities, as well as in the tax-favored 
status of plan assets and investments. One of the chief ways in which ERlSA protects employee 
benefit plans is by requiring that plan fiduciaries comply with fi.mdamental obligations rooted in 
the law oftrnsts. In particular, plan fiduciaries must manage plan assets prndently and with 
undivided loyalty to the plans and their participants and beneficiaries.3 In addition, they must 
refrain from engaging in "prohibited transactions," which ERISA forbids because of the dangers 

3 ERlSA section 404(a). 
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posed by the fiduciaries' conflicts of interest with respect to the transactions. 4 When fiduciaries 
violate ERISA' s fiduciary duties or the prohibited transaction rnles, they may be held personally 
liable for the breach. 5 In addition, violations of the prohibited transaction rnles are subject to 
excise taxes under the Code. 

~he Code also has rnles regarding fiduciarv conduct with respect to tax-favored accounts that are 
not generally covered by ERISA, such as IRAs{ Although ERIS A's genera( ficfuc!alj - - - - - - - -
obligations of prndence and loyalty do not govern-the fi<l11ciaries-o(IRA-s~ these-ficfuctaries are - - T -

subject to the prohibited transaction rnles. In this context, fiduciaries engaging in the illegal 
transactions are subject to an excise tax enforced by the Internal Revenue Service. Unlike 
participants in plans covered by Title I of ERIS A, under the Code, IRA owners cannot bring suit 
against fiduciaries under ERIS A for violation of the prohibited transaction rnles and fiduciaries 
are not personally liable to IRA owners for the losses caused by their misconduct. Elsewhere in 
this issue of the FEDERAL REGISTER, however, the Department is proposing two new class 
exemptions that would create contractual obligations for the adviser to adhere to certain 
standards (the Impartial Conduct Standards). IRA owners would have a right to enforce these 
new contractual rights. 

Under this statutory framework, the detem1ination of who is a "fiduciary" is of central 

\ 

Deleted: protects individuals \vho save for 
retirement through 

Comment [A4]: Treasury: The Code doesn't 
"protect" anyone, so would avoid saying it like this. 
Perhaps something like: "The Code also has rules 
regarding fiduciary conduct with respect to tax-
favored accounts that are not generally covered by 
ERISA, such as IRAs." 

\ 
EBSA response: comment accepted. 

Deleted: through a more limited regulation of 
fiduciary conduct 

importance. [Many ofERISA's protections, duties, and liabilities,)l~g~ ()l! fi~t1c_iary _s!a!l!S~ Jr11 _____ - Comment [AS]: EBSA: This was a Treasury 
comment on the Contract Exemption. relevant part, section 3(2l)(A) ofERISA and section 4975(e)(3) of the Code provide that a ' 

person is a fiduciary with respect to a plan or IRA to the extent he or she (i) exercises any 
discretionary authority or discretionary control with respect to management of such plan or IRA, 
or exercises any authority or control with respect to management or disposition of its assets; (ii) 
renders investment advice for a fee or other compensation, direct or indirect, with respect to any 
moneys or other property of such plan or IRA, or has any authority or responsibility to do so; or, 
(iii) has any discretionary authority or discretionary responsibility in the administration of such 
plan or IRA. 

The statutory definition deliberately casts a wide net in assigning fiduciary responsibility with 
respect to plan and IRA assets. Thus, "any authority or control" over plan or IRA assets is 
sufficient to confer fiduciary status, and any persons who render "investment advice for a fee or 
other compensation, direct or indirect" are fiduciaries, regardless of whether they have direct 
control over the plan's or IRA' s assets and regardless of their status as an investment adviser or 
broker under the federal securities laws. The statutory definition and associated fiduciary 
responsibilities were enacted to ensure that plans and IRAs can depend on persons who provide 
investment advice for a fee to provide recommendations that are untainted by conflicts of 
interest. In the absence of fiduciary status, persons who provide investment advice would neither 
be subject to ERISA's fi.mdamental fiduciary standards, nor accountable for imprndent, disloyal, 
or tainted advice under ERISA or the Code, no matter how egregious the misconduct or how 
substantial the losses. Plans, individual participants and beneficiaries, and IRA owners often are 
not financial experts and consequently must rely on professional advice to make critical 

4 ERISA section 406. ERISA also prohibits certain transactions between a plan and a "party in 
interest." 
5 ERISA section 409; see also ERISA section 405. 
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investment decisions. The statutory definition, prohibitions on conflicts of interest, and core 
fiduciary obligations ofprndence and loyalty, all reflect Congress' recognition in 1974 of the 
fundamental importance of such advice. In the years since then, the significance of financial 
advice has become still greater with increased reliance on participant-directed plans and IRAs for 
the provision of retirement benefits. 

In 1975, the Department issued a regulation, at 29 C.F.R. section 2510.3-2l(c) defining the 
circumstances under which a person is treated as providing "investment advice" to an employee 
benefit plan within the meaning of section 3(2l)(A)(ii) ofERISA (the "1975 regulation").6 The 
regulation narrowed the scope of the statutory definition of fiduciary investment advice by 
creating a five-part test that must be satisfied before a person can be treated as rendering 
investment advice for a fee. Under the regulation, for advice to constitute "investment advice," 
an adviser who -does not have discretionary authority or control with respect to the purchase or 
sale of securities or other property of the plan must-(1) render advice as to the value of 
securities or other property, or make recommendations as to the advisability of investing in, 
purchasing or selling securities or other property (2) on a regular basis (3) pursuant to a muhml 
agreement, arrangement or understanding, with the plan or a plan fiduciary that ( 4) the advice 
will serve as a primary basis for investment decisions with respect to plan assets, and that (5) the 
advice will be individualized based on the particular needs of the plan. The regulation provides 
that an adviser is a fiduciary with respect to any particular instance of advice only ifhe or she 
meets each and every element of the five-part test with respect to the particular advice recipient 
or plan at issue. A 197 6 Department of Labor Advisory Opinion further limited the application 

6 The 1975 regulation provides in relevant part: 
(c)(l) Investment advice. (1) A person shall be deemed to be rendering "investment 
advice" to an employee benefit plan, within the meaning of section 3(21 )(A)(ii) of the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (the Act) and this paragraph, only if: 
(i) Such person renders advice to the plan as to the value of securities or other property, 
or makes recommendation as to the advisability of investing in, purchasing, or selling 
securities or other property; and 
(ii) Such person either directly or indirectly (e.g., through or together with any 
affiliate)-
(A) Has discretionary authority or control, whether or not pursuant to agreement, 
arrangement or understanding, with respect to purchasing or selling securities or other 
property for the plan; or 
(B) Renders any advice described in paragraph (c)(l)(i) of this section on a regular basis 
to the plan pursuant to a muhml agreement, arrangement or understanding, written or 
otherwise, between such person and the plan or a fiduciary with respect to the plan, that 
such services will serve as a primary basis for investment decisions with respect to plan 
assets, and that such person will render individualized investment advice to the plan 
based on the particular needs of the plan regarding such matters as, among other things, 
investment policies or strategy, overall portfolio composition, or diversification of plan 
investments. 

40 FR 50842 (Oct. 31, 1975). The Department of Treasury issued a virhmlly identical 
regulation, at 26 CFR 54.4975-9(c), which interprets Code section 4975(e)(3). 40 FR 50840 
(Oct. 31, 1975). 
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of the statutory definition of"investment advice" by stating that valuations of employer 
securities in connection with employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) purchases would not be 
considered fiduciary advice. 7 

As the marketplace for financial services has developed in the years since 1975, the five-part test 
may now undern1ine, rather than promote, the statutes' text and purposes. The narrowness of the 
1975 regulation allows professional advisers, consultants and valuation firn1s to play a central 
role in shaping plan investments, without ensuring the accountability that Congress intended for 
persons having such influence and responsibility when it enacted ERISA and the related Code 
provisions. Even when plan sponsors, participants, beneficiaries and IRA owners clearly rely on 
paid consultants for impartial guidance, the regulation allows consultants to avoid fiduciary 
status and disregard ERISA's fiduciary obligations of care and prohibitions on disloyal and 
conflicted transactions. As a consequence, these advisers can steer customers to investments 
based on their own self-interest, give imprndent advice, and engage in transactions that would 
otherwise be categorically prohibited by ERISA and Code, without any liability under ERISA or 
the Code. In the Proposed Regulation, the Department seeks to replace the existing regulation 
with one that more appropriately distinguishes between the sorts of advice relationships that 
should be ~reated as fiduci~ry in _nature and those that should not, in l~ght of the legal framew~rk 
and financial marketplace m which plans and IRAs currently operate.I~ The Proposed Regulat10n 
describes the types of advice that constitute "investment advice" with respect to-plan or-IRA - - - -
assets for purposes of the definition of a fiduciary at ERISA section 3(2l)(A)(ii) and Code 

- Comment [A6]: EBSA: Footnote revised to 
reflect the fact that we are just now withdrawing the 
2010 rule. 

section 4975( e )(3 )(B). The proposal provides, subject to certain Filrye-::_ou!s1 !h_a! ii p~r_s()~ l"e~~~r_s ___ - Comment [A7]: EBSA: Changing references 
from "limitations" to "carve-outs" throughout. investment advice with respect to a plan or IRA if, among other things, the person provides, ' 

directly to a plan, a plan fiduciary, a plan participant or beneficiary, or IRA owner one of the 
following types of advice: 

(1) A recommendation as to the advisability of acquiring, holding, disposing or 
exchanging securities or other property, including a recommendation to take a distribution of 
benefits or a recommendation as to the investment of securities or other property to be rolled 
over or otherwise distributed from a plan; 

(2) A recommendation as to the management of securities or other property, 
including recommendations as to the management of securities or other property to be rolled 
over or otherwise distributed from the plan; 

(3) An appraisal, fairness opinion or similar statement, whether verbal or written, 
concerning the value of securities or other property, if provided in connection with a specific 
transaction or transactions involving the acquisition, disposition or exchange of such securities or 
other property by the plan or IRA; and 

7Advisory Opinion 76-65A (June 7, 1976). 
8 The Department initially proposed an amendment to its regulation under ERISA section 
3(2l)(A)(ii) and Code section 4975(e)(3)(B) on October 22, 2010, at 75 FR 65263. It 
subsequently announced its intention to withdr~_ tli~ pr_op()s_aJ.prJ.q pr_op()s_~a_ 11e_\\' 11.ll~' ______ _ 
consistent with the President's Executive Orders 12866 and 13563, in order to give the public a 
full opportunity to evaluate and comment on the new proposal and updated economic analysis. 
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( 4) A recommendation of a person to provide any of the types of advice described in 
paragraphs (1) through (3), above for a fee or other compensation. 

In addition, to be a fiduciary, such person must either ( 1) represent or acknowledge that it is 
acting as a fiduciary within the meaning of ERISA (or the Code) with respect to the advice, or 
(2) render the advice pursuant to a written or verbal agreement, arrangement or understanding 
that the advice is individualized to, or that such advice is specifically directed to, the advice 
recipient for consideration in making investment or management decisions with respect to 
securities or other property of the plan or IRA. 

For advisers who do not represent that they are acting as ERISA (or Code) fiduciaries, the 
Proposed Regulation provides that advice rendered in conforn1ance with certain~_f![\T_~:il1J_t~ will ____ - -{ Deleted: limitation 

'--~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

not cause the adviser to be treated as a fiduciary under ERISA or the Code. For example, 
!.hs~~~'-£<l!:Y~.!ill~c'orn1terp<1rt1es in arn1's-length transactions with plans may make 
investment recommendations without acting as fiduciaries if certain conditions are met.-2 
Similarly, the proposal fi_d~1c;ilJ.ry_ s_tat11~fu p~r_scn1s_ \Vll0_ pr_oyid_e _____ _ 
appraisals, fairness or statements in specified contexts (e.g., with respect to 
ESOP transactions). The proposal additionally f_ll_r_\fJO_S~Q_t1S fro_t]J_fi<!1~cia_ry 1lt~t:t1_sy tp~ p1ark,e_tipg _of ___ _ 
investment alternative platforn1s, certain assistance in selecting investment alternatives and other - - - >==~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
activities. Finally, the Proposed fiduciary status for the 
provision of investment education. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Prohibited Transactions 

Fiduciaries under ERISA and the Code are subject to certain prohibited transaction restrictions. 
ERISA section 406(b)(l) and Code section 4975(c)(l)(E) prohibit a fiduciary from dealing with 
the income or assets of a plan or IRA in his own interest or his own account. ERISA section 
406(b)(2) provides that a fiduciary with respect to an employee benefit plan shall not "in his 
individual or in any other capacity act in any transaction involving the plan on behalf of a party 
(or represent a party) whose interests are adverse to the interests of the plan or the interests of its 
participants or beneficiaries. "10 ERISA section 406(b )(3) and Code section 4975( c )(1 )(F) 
prohibit a fiduciary from receiving any consideration for his own personal account from any 
party dealing with the plan or IRA in connection with a transaction involving the plan or IRA. 
Parallel regulations issued by the Departments of Labor and the Treasury explain that these 
provisions impose on fiduciaries a duty not to act on conflicts of interest that mmaffect the 
fiduciary's best judgment on behalf of the plan or IRA. 11 - - - - - - - - - - -

Prohibited Transaction Exemptions 

10 The Code does not contain a parallel provision. 
11 See 29 CFR section 2550.408b-2(e); 26 CFR section 54.4975-6(a)(5). 
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ERISA and the Code counterbalance the broad proscriptive effect of the prohibited transaction 
provisions with numerous statutory exemptions. For example, ERISA section 408(b )( 14) and 
Code section 4975(d)(l 7) specifically exempt transactions in connection with the provision of 
fiduciary investment advice to a participant or beneficiary of an individual account plan or IRA 
owner, where the advice, resulting transaction, and the adviser's fees meet certain conditions. 
ERISA and the Code also provide for administrative exemptions that the Secretary of Labor may 
grant on an individual or class basis ifthe Secretary finds that the exemption is (1) 
administratively feasible, (2) in the interests of plans and of their participants and beneficiaries 
and IRA owners and (3) protective of the rights of the participants and beneficiaries of such 
plans and IRA owners. 

Over the years, the Department has granted several conditional administrative class exemptions 
from the prohibited transactions provisions of ERISA and the Code pursuant to which fiduciaries 
may receive compensation or other benefits in connection with investment transactions by plans 
and IRAs, under circumstances that would otherwise violate ERIS A section 406(b) and Code 
section 4975(c)(l)(E) and (F). The exemptions focus on specific types of transactions or specific 
types of compensation arrangements. Reliance on these exemptions is subject to certain 
conditions that the Department has found necessary to protect the interests of plans and IRAs. 

11 r Comment [A9]: Treasury: This seems to fly in 
//// the face o~the logic for the cUITent amendments 
11 11 made earlier- that these amendments are necessary 
11 11 to reflect Congressional intent, which is being 

In connection with the development of the Department's proposed definition of fiduciary under 
ERISA section 3(2l)(A)(ii) and Code section 4975(e)(3)(B), the Department has considered 
public input indicating the need for additional prohibited transaction relief for the wide variety of 
compensation strnctures that exist today in the marketplace for investment transactions. After 
consideration of the issue, the Department detern1ined to propose, elsewhere in this issue of the 
FEDERAL REGISTER, two new class exemptions as well as amendments to two other existing 
class exemptions. These new and amended class exemptions provide relief for a fiduciary's 
receipt of compensation or other benefit resulting from its provision of investment advice to 
plans and IRAs in the context of many different types of investment transactions. 

11 
11 undermined by the current rules that are not 

1;
1 

// reflective of current market practices. 
1111 
1111 

While each of the proposed new and an1ended class exen1ptions sets forth conditions that are 1;

1 

:/ 

tailored to their respective transactions, each also conditions relief on a fiduciary's compliance ;1 
:: 

with certain Impartial Conduct Standards. The Department has detern1ined that the Impartial / :: 
Conduct Standards comprise important baseline safeguards that should be required of fiduciaries ; :: 
relying on other existing exemptions providing relief for plan and IRA investment transactions. i :: 
Accordingly, this notice proposes that the Impartial Conduct Standards be made conditions of the i ;1 

following existing exemptions: PTEs 75-1, Part III, 75-1, Part IV, 77-4, 80-83 and 83-1. ,; 
---'f_ - - y - - - - Ii 

I/; 

:1 //; 
,': !;; 

EBSA response: We think there's a difference 
here between the regulation and the exemptions. 
The purpose of the regulation expanding the 
definition of ''fiduciary" is to refiect 
Congressional intent. However, the purpose of 
this exemption is to say that if you 're a fiduciary 
under the Code (and Congressional intent), and 
want to receive variable compensation, then you 
have to comply with these conduct standards, 
even if they are not independently imposed by 
Congress. 

Under the amendments, fiduciaries would be required to act in accordance with the Impartial 
Conduct Standards in transactions governed by the exemptions. This will result in additional 
protections for all plans, but most particularly for IRA owners. ~hat is because fiduciaries' 
dealings with IRAs are governed bv the Code, not bv ,E_RI~J'\ 1~ ~11d_ th~ _c_ode, unlike ERISA 
does not directly impose responsibilities of prudence and loyalty on fiduciaries . ] Tli~ 

I;; / ~==~=~==========< 
_________________________ ..,_"!':-__________ I I 

amendments to the exemptions,,_wou!d_ c_o_nsliti_op _r~lje_f under the exemptions 011 !l!e_ s_a!i~fi1c_tio_n ___ / / 
Comment [A10]: Treasury: There are too many 
synonymous terms are being used here: obligations, 
standards, requirements, responsibilities. It will be 
easier to follow if the language is more consistent. 
"Responsibilities'\ "duties" '"standards" are all fine. 

of these [ef;j:J()_n_si_bjl!t~e_sl:_ f 9~ jJl~rp(ls_e~ 9!' £h_e~e_ a_n_1e_ndn~e~1!s~ !he _te_r~~ ~~ ~~e_a11s_ a_~v_ t11~s!, _____ / / 

12 See ERISA section 404. 
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ill2~m1_fil~l1h~lli~~:m__~TuWill~JJ2ill~_lhe impartial conduct standards will work 
across multiple class exemptions to ensure that these fiduciaries are held to a single set of 
standards and that these standards are applicable to both plans and IRAs. The proposed 
amendments, if granted, will apply prospectively to fiduciaries relying on the exemptions. 

Description of the Proposal 

The proposal would amend prohibited transaction exemptions 75-1, Part III, 75-1, Part IV, 77-4, 
80-83.J!llil,_8_3:1,. __ S_p_e~ifi£l1l!y_, !l!e_s~ ~x_e_n~R_tiop~ pi:o_vid_e_ tli~ f o_l~owj11g r_e!i~f: _____________ _ 

• PTE 7 5-1, Part III 14 pem1its a fiduciary to cause a plan or IRA to purchase securities from 
a member of an underwriting syndicate other than the fiduciary, when the fiduciary is 
also a member of the syndicate; 

• PTE 75-1, Part IV15 pem1its a plan or IRA to purchase securities in a principal transaction 
from a fiduciary that is a market maker with respect to such securities; 

• PTE 77-416 provides relief for a plan's or IRA's purchase or sale of open-end investment 
company shares where the investment adviser for the open-end investment company is 
also a fiduciary to the plan or IRA; 

• PTE 80-83 17 provides relief for a fiduciary causing a plan or IRA to purchase a security 
when the proceeds of the securities issuance may be used by the issuer to retire or reduce 
indebtedness to the fiduciary or an affiliate; and 

Exemptions from Prohibitions Respecting Certain Classes of Transactions Involving 
Employee Benefit Plans and Certain Broker-Dealers, Reporting Dealers and Banks, 40 FR 50845 
(Oct. 31, 1975), as amended at 71FR5883 (Feb. 3, 2006). 
15 Exemptions from Prohibitions Respecting Certain Classes of Transactions Involving 
Employee Benefit Plans and Certain Broker-Dealers, Reporting Dealers and Banks, 40 FR 50845 
(Oct. 31, 1975), as amended at 71FR5883 (Feb. 3, 2006). 
16 Class Exemption for Certain Transactions Between Investment Companies and Employee 
Benefit Plans, 42 FR 18732 (Apr. 8, 1977). 

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 



4/8/15 

• PIE 83-1 18 provides relief for the sale of certificates in an initial issuance of certificates, 
by the sponsor of a mortgage pool to a plan or IRA, when the sponsor, trnstee or insurer 
of the mortgage pool is a fiduciary with respect to the plan or IRA assets invested in such 
certificates,, ____________________________________________________ J _ -1 Deleted: : and 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

This proposal sets forth an amendment to each of these exemptions. Each of the amendments is 
tailored to the strncture and language of the applicable exemption. Therefore, the tem1inology 
and numbering varies from amendment to amendment. Despite such variation, each amendment 
would apply the same Impartial Conduct Standards unifom1ly across each exemption. 

More specifically, the amendments would require a fiduciary that satisfies ERISA section 
3(21 )(A)(i) or (ii), or the corresponding provisions of Code section 4975( e )(3)(A) or (B), with 
respect to the assets involved in the investment transaction, to meet the Impartial Conduct 
Standards described in the applicable exemption. Under the proposed amendments' first conduct 
standard, the fiduciary must act in thehe_s!,ip.!e!(!S! ~Hh~ _p}a_n_ o_r J&\~ _Bes!,i_n!e!t!S! is_ <!e_fin~<! !o ____ -
mean acting with the care, skill, prndence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing \\, 

Deleted: <#>PTE 84-2419 provides relief for 
insurance agents/pension consultants and mutual 
fund principal unden\.Titers to receive a 
commission in connection v,rith the sale of an 
insurance or annuity contract or mutual flllld 
shares to a plan or IRA. ,.. 

that a prndent person would exercise based on the investment objectives, risk tolerance, financial 1
\' ~=============~ 

circumstances, and the needs of the plan or IRA when providing investment advice to the plan or 
IRA or managing the or IRA' s assets. Further, lfil~:__ll~!_!O_S.l-JJ1_tlor.~J':L_s.t~_rL(jJlL5L}hl~ 

The second conduct standard requires that all compensation received by the fiduciary and its 
affiliates in connection with the applicable transaction be reasonable in relation to the total 
services they provide to the plan or IRA. The third conduct standard requires that statements 
about recommended investments, fees, material conflicts of interest, and any other matters 
relevant to a plan's or IRA' s investment decisions, p_o! ~e_ rnisle_a_din_g. [he Department notes in __ 
this regard that a fiduciary's failure to disclose a material conflict of interest may be considered a · 

17 Class Exemption for Certain Transactions Involving Purchase of Securities Where Issuer May 
Use Proceeds to Reduce or Retire Indebtedness to Parties in Interest, 45 FR 73189 (Nov. 4, 
1980), as amended at 67 FR 9483 (March 1, 2002). 
18 Class Exemption for Certain Transactions Involving Mortgage Pool Investment Trnsts, 48 FR 
895 (Jan. 7, 1983), as amended at 67 FR 9483 (March 1, 2002). 
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misleading statement.] Transactions that violate these requirements are not likely to be in the ~ Comment [A15]: EBSA: Language added per 

interests of plans, their participants and beneficianes~ or fRA owners,-or-p-rotect!ve-oftheir - - - - - Treasmy comment in operative text 

rights. 

Unlike the new exemption proposals published elsewhere in the FEDERAL REGISTER, these 
proposed amendments do not require fiduciaries to contractually warrant compliance with 
applicable federal and state laws. However, the Department notes that significant violations of 
applicable federal or state law could also amount to violations of the Impartial Conduct 
Standards, such as the h.~s_t i11t~r_e~t_ sJ8:Il_d~r_d, in_ \Vll~cli _ells_~ tlie_s_e _e2'e_1!1ptio_n_s~ 8:S_ an1e_n_de_~, _\,\'o_1g~ 
be deemed unavailable for transactions occurring in connection with such violations. 

General Information 

The attention of interested persons is directed to the following: 

(1) The fact that a transaction is the subject of an exemption under ERISA section 
408(a) and Code section 4975( c)(2) does not relieve a fiduciary or other party in interest or 
disqualified person with respect to a plan from certain other provisions of ERIS A and the Code, 
including any prohibited transaction provisions to which the exemption does not apply and the 
general fiduciary responsibility provisions of ERIS A section 404 which require, among other 
things, that a fiduciary discharge his or her duties respecting the plan solely in the interests of the 
plan's participants and beneficiaries and in a prndent fashion in accordance with ERISA section 
404(a)(l)(B); 

(2) Before an exemption may be granted under ERISA section 408(a) and Code 
section 4975( c )(2), the Department must find that the exemption is administratively feasible, in 
the interests of plans and their participants and beneficiaries and IRA owners, and protective of 
the rights of plans' participants and beneficiaries and IRA owners; 

(3) If granted, an exemption will be applicable to a particular transactions only ifthe 
transactions satisfy the conditions specified in the amendments; and 

( 4) If granted, the amended exemptions will be supplemental to, and not in derogation 
of, any other provisions of ERISA and the Code, including statutory or administrative 
exemptions and transitional rnles. Furthem1ore, the fact that a transaction is subject to an 
administrative or statutory exemption is not dispositive of whether the transaction is in fact a 
prohibited transaction. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO CLASS EXEMPTIONS 

I. Prohibited Transaction Exemption 75-1, Part III 

The Department proposes to amend Prohibited Transaction Exemption 75-1, Part III, 
under the authority ofERISA section 408(a) and Code section 4975(c)(2), and in accordance 
with the procedures set forth in 29 CFR Part 2570, Subpart B (76 FR 66637, October 27, 2011). 

A. A new section III(f) is inserted to read as follows: 

(f) Standards oflmpartial Conduct. If the fiduciary is a fiduciary within the meaning of 
ERISA section 3(~l)(A)(i) or (ii), or Code section 4975(e)(3)(A~()r_(]3),_~i!~ I"e~p~c! !o_ tp~ _____ // 
assets of a plan or ffiA[ ipy()ly~<! in_ tp~ !n111s_a~:ti<m_, !~e_ fi<!u_cian' 11i_u~t_ c_o_ni_R_ly :wjtp_tlie_ foJl~:wj~g_ ~1 

conditions with respect to ~r~11sact_i<ni_: ______________________________________ / 

(1) The fiduciary acts in the Best Interest of the plan or IRA. 

(2) All compensation received by the fiduciary in connection with the transaction is 
reasonable in relation to the total services the fiduciary provides to the plan or IRA. 

Comment [A17]: Isn't this standard too narrow? 
The no-misleading-statements standard should apply 

1 
not only if a fiduciary is making statements "about" 
material conflicts of interest, but also if it has 

1 material conflicts of interest about which it makes no 
statements and no disclosure. 

EBSA response: Comment accepted. 

Comment [A18]: Would something like this 
/ / / added sentence be necessary or advisable? If so, 

1 / 1 would it be overbroad as currently drafted? 

(3) The fiduciary's statements about recommended investments, fees, material ,' / ,' EBSA response: comment accepted. 

conflicts of interest, and any other matters relevant to a plan's or IRA's investment decisions, are ,'/ i >c=o=m=m=e=n=t=[=A=1=9=]:=T=w=o=q=u=es=t=io=ns=:=(l=)=sh=o=u=ldn='t=< 

not Piisleadin~~ A ~n1llt~I"ia1 _c~11f1~c! ()( ip!e!~s!'~ ~2'-~t~~:WP~~ ll [t~l_l~illry _ha~~ _fi_n~11~illl_ i11t_el"e_st_ _ _ :
1 

this be supplemented with "or those of any affiliate 

that could affect the exercise of its best J"t1dgment as a fiduciary in rendering advice to a plan or / or other person in whom it has an interest"? <2J 

For purposes of this section, a fiduciary acts in the "Best Interest" of the plan or IRA when the 
fiduciary acts with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then 
prevailing that a prudent person would exercise based on the investment objectives, risk 
tolerance, financial and needs of the or IRA, Y{ltllil1ltmgmfilQJM_llilfil1£!Jll 
or other ,in!e_re_s!s of the Also for the prnrposes 
tem1IRA111<oa11~_g_'l.Y-~~~~!!!_t_-'!_!_-'l!!~'-D'.-~~~'-'!_Jl!___\~~~l!-"'l_':'2_!__"'-U'1LUL!d_.Ll!!!c~~ 

B. Sections III(f) and III(g) are redesignated, respectively, as sections III(g) and III(h). 

II. Prohibited Transaction Exemption 75-1, Part IV 

The Department proposes to amend Prohibited Transaction Exemption 75-1, Part IV, 
under the authority ofERISA section 408(a) and Code section 4975(c)(2), and in accordance 
with the procedures set forth in 29 CFR Part 2570, Subpart B (76 FR 66637, October 27, 2011). 

A. A new section IV( e) is inserted to read as follows: 
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1 should this standard be even broader, to include the 
1 financial interests of any other person or entity (Le., 

even if the fiduciary has no financial interest in a 
third party, it should not subordinate the plan's or 
IRA?s interests to the interests of that third party 
(subject perhaps only to a narrow exception for 
public policy)? Wouldn't this broader approach be 
more consistent with the exclusive benefit/ solely in 
the interest standard? Or is the intent to have a 
somewhat narrower standard than section 404 's 
standard? But if so, is this the way in which it is 
intended to be narrower? 

EBSA response: Comments accepted. 

Comment [A20]: Is this the correct definition? 
Should the definition instead be consistent with Code 
section 770l(a)(37) (so that 408(b) individual 
retirement annuity arrangements are included) or 
something broader like the definition in the 
amendment to 86-128? 

EBSA response: We have replaced this definition 
1 with the one from the Contract PTE. 

Deleted: an individual retirement account 
described in Code section 408(a) 
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( e) Standards oflmpartial Conduct. If the fiduciary is a fiduciary within the meaning of 
ERISA section 3(2l)(A)(i) or (ii), or Code section 4975(e)(3)(A), or (B), with respect to the 
assets in the transaction, the fiduciary must comply with the following 
conditions with respect to ~!r~11sac!i<ni_: ______________________________________ ~ ~ ~ -{ Deleted: such 

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

(3) The fiduciary's statements about recommended investments, fees, material 
conflicts of interest, and any other matters relevant to a plan's or IRA's investment decisions, are 
not misleading. A "material conflict of interest" e_x_is_t~ ~pe_11 l1 _fi~i_1c_il1r.Y _~a~~ _fi_n~11c_il1l_ i11!e~e_s! __ ~ ~ ~ -{ Deleted: occurs 

~-------------~ that could affect the exercise of its best judgment as a fiduciary in rendering advice to a plan or 
IRA. 

For purposes of this section, a fiduciary acts in the "Best Interest" of the plan or IRA 
when the fiduciary acts with the care, skill, prndence, and diligence under the circumstances then 
prevailing that a prndent person would exercise based on the investment objectives, risk 
tolerance, financial and needs of the plan or IRA, Y{ltlli:lfil_mgm°QJQJhl:O.llilill:1£!Jll 
~~n!e!e_s!s of the Also for the prnrposes 
tem1 IRA means Mv-r c: ,. -\( 1 

B. Sections IV(e) and IV(f) are redesignated, respectively, as sections IV(f) and IV(g). 

III. Prohibited Transaction Exemption 77-4 

The Department proposes to amend Prohibited Transaction Exemption 77-4 under the 
authority ofERISA section 408(a) and Code section 4975(c)(2), and in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in 29 CFR Part 2570, Subpart B (76 FR 66637, October 27, 2011). 

A new section II(g) is inserted to read as follows: 

(g) Standards oflmpartial Conduct. If the fiduciary is a fiduciary within the meaning of 
ERISA section 3(2l)(A)(i) or (ii), or Code section 4975( e)(3)(A), or (B), with respect to the 
assets in the transaction, the fiduciary must comply with the following 

Comment [A21]: Note: (1) the term "fiduciary" 
is defined in PTE 75-1 Part IV to include "any 
affiliates of such :fiduciary. 

Deleted: and the fiduciary does not subordinate the 

\ 
interests of the plan or IRA to the financial 

Deleted: person in \vhom it has an interest that 
\vould affect the fiduciary's best judgment 

Deleted: an individual retirement account 
described in Code section 408(a) 

conditions with respect to ,tlic;_!r~11s_a~ti<ni_: _____________________________________ -~ ~ ~ -{~D_e_le_t_e_d:_s_uc_h _________ ~ 

(1) The fiduciary acts in the Best Interest of the plan or IRA. 

{PAGE \* MERGEFORMAT} 



4/8/15 

(2) All compensation received by the fiduciary and its affiliates in connection with 
the transaction is reasonable in relation to the total services the fiduciary provides to the plan or 
IRA. 

(3) The fiduciary's statements about recommended investments, fees, material 
conflicts of interest, and any other matters relevant to a plan's or IRA's investment decisions, are 
not misleading. A "material conflict of interest" e_xjs_ts_ :WP~I1 l1 Ji~~1c_il],r_y_h_a~ ~ _fin~11c_il],l_i11t_e~e_st_ _ -~ ~ ~ 1 Deleted: occurs 

that could affect the exercise of its best judgn1ent as a fiduciary in rendering advice to a plan or ~-------------~ 

For purposes of this section, a fiduciary acts in the "Best Interest" of the plan or IRA 
when the fiduciary acts with the care, skill, prndence, and diligence under the circumstances then 
prevailing that a prndent person would exercise based on the investment objectives, risk 
to 1 erance, financial and needs of the or IRA, }'\1ltlli:lfil.ITJWTIJQJ1}_i;O__llilfil:1£!Jll 
or other ,in!e!~s_ts_ ()f_ t}i~ _ _ _ Also for the prnrposes 
section, the tem1 IRA means illJ.YJ.n!!li.,_.£f'g_.Q_iJWLQ:t:.Ji!l!lill!Y.i~f!J~QJJl.l~~g£tlQ11 

\II 

~'1.!.<Qll-'1:1~~QllliJ~~~mJ1.£j}_('J!.!.tl.L'ill.\Ollg§.J!fS.Ql!.l}LQ~;'_D.~=!JjQ...::;~t:lQ!J...,;~W.j_Ll;i_U~_l,J;i_Qio,, ~ \~\ 

IV. Prohibited Transaction Exemption 80-83 

The Department proposes to amend Prohibited Transaction Exemption 80-83 under the 
authority ofERISA section 408(a) and Code section 4975(c)(2), and in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in 29 CFR Part 2570, Subpart B (76 FR 66637, October 27, 2011). 

A. A new section II(A)(2) is inserted to read as follows: 

(2) Standards oflmpartial Conduct. If the fiduciary is a fiduciary within the meaning of 
ERISA section 3(21 )(A)(i) or (ii), or Code section 4975( e)(3)(A), or (B), with respect to the 
-~·"-·~--'~'--""'""'"''--"''-"-'"'"--'involved in the transaction, the fiduciary must comply with the following 

\I 
I 

\I 
\ \ \ 

\ \ 
I 

\ 

Comment [A22]: Please see comment in 
Contract Exemption on this definition of Best 
Interest 

OED response: Comment accepted. (PTE 77-4 
does not define fiduciary to include its affiliate so 

\ 
we have added that here.) 

Deleted: and the fiduciary does not subordinate the 
\ interests of the plan or IRA to the financial 

\ Deleted: 

Deleted: person in \vhom the fiduciary has an 
interest that \vould affect the fiduciary's best 

\ judgment 
\ 

Deleted: an individual retirement account 
described in Code section 408(a) 

conditions with respect to ~!r~11s_a£ti()n_: _____________________________________ -~ _ ~ i Deleted: such 
~-------------~ 

(a) The fiduciary acts in the Best Interest of the plan or IRA. 

(b) All compensation received by the fiduciary and its affiliates in connection with 
the transaction is reasonable in relation to the total services the fiduciary provides to the plan or 
IRA. 

( c) The fiduciary's statements about recommended investments, fees, material 
conflicts of interest, and any other matters relevant to a plan's or IRA's investment decisions, are 
not misleading. A "material conflict of interest" e)(~S!S_ 'Ylle_n_ a_ fi~n_cia_ry }ll],s_ a_ fi11a_n_ciaJ in_t~r~s_t ____ ~ ~ i Deleted: occurs 

that could affect the exercise of its best judgn1ent as a fiduciary in rendering advice to a plan or ~-------------~ 
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For purposes of this section, a fiduciary acts in the "Best Interest" of the employee 
benefit plan or IRA when the fiduciary acts with the care, skill, prndence, and diligence under 
the circumstances then prevailing that a prndent person would exercise based on the investment 
objectives, risk tolerance, financial circumstances, and needs of the benefit 
IRA, interests of the !h~Il~L~r~~~~WlW'~~~L 

B. Section II(A)(2) is redesignated as section II(A)(3). 

V. Prohibited Transaction Exemption 83-1 

The Department proposes to amend Prohibited Transaction Exemption 83-1 under the 
authority ofERISA section 408(a) and Code section 4975(c)(2), and in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in 29 CFR Part 2570, Subpart B (76 FR 66637, October 27, 2011). 

A new section II(B) is inserted to read as follows: 

(B) Standards oflmpartial Conduct. Solely with respect to the relief provided under 
section I(B), ifthe sponsor, trnstee or insurer of such pool who is a fiduciary is a fiduciary within 
the meaning of ERISA section 3(21 )(A)(i) or (ii), or Code section 4975(e )(3)(A), or (B), with 
respect to the involved in the transaction, the fiduciary must comply with 

'\ 
\\ \ 

\ \ \ 
\\ 

\ \ 

Comment [A23]: This exemption does not define 
fiduciary to include its affiliate, so we have added 
fuat here. 

Deleted: and the fiduciary does not subordinate the 
interests of the employee benefit plan or IRA to the 
financia 

\ 

Deleted: person in \vhom the fiduciary has an 
interest that \vould affect the fiduciary's best 

\ 
judgment 

Deleted: an individual retirement account 
described in Code section 408(a) 

the following conditions with respect to ~tl"a_lls_3:c!i911: _____________________________ ~ ~ ~ -{ Deleted: such 
~-------------~ 

(1) The fiduciary acts in the Best Interest of the plan or IRA. 

(2) All compensation received by the fiduciary and its affiliates in connection with 
the transaction is reasonable in relation to the total services the fiduciary and its affiliates provide 
to the plan or IRA. 

(3) The fiduciary's statements about recommended investments, fees, material 
conflicts of interest, and any other matters relevant to a plan's or IRA's investment decisions, are 
not misleading. A "material conflict of interest" has_ 3: fil13:Il_CiaJ in_t~r_es_t __ J ~ ~ -{ Deleted: occurs 

that could affect the exercise of its ~-------------~ 

For purposes of this section, a fiduciary acts in the "Best Interest" of the plan or IRA 
when the fiduciary acts with the care, skill, prndence, and diligence under the circumstances then 
prevailing that a prndent person would exercise based on the investment objectives, risk 
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Signed at Washington DC this __ day of ____ , 2015 
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Deleted: VI. Prohibited Transaction Exemption 
84-24~ 

f 
The Department proposes to amend Prohibited 
Transaction Exemption 84-24 under the authority of 
ERJSA section 408(a) and Code section 4975(c)(2). 
and in accordance \vith the procedures set forth in 29 
CFR Part 2570, Subpart B (76 FR 66637, October 
27, 2011).f 

f 
_A. A ne\v section V(e) is inserted to read as 
follmvs:i-

f 
(e) Standards oflmpartial Conduct. If the insurance 
agent or broker, pension consultant, insurance 
company or investment company principal 
unden\.Titer is a fiduciary \vithin the meaning of 
ERJSA section 3(21)(A)(i) or (ii), or Code section 
4975(e)(3)(A), or (B), with respect to the assets 
involved in the transaction, the fiduciary must 
comply \Vith the follmving conditions \Vith respect to 
such transaction:,-

(1)- The fiduciary acts in the Best Interest of the 
plan or IRA. f 

f 
(2)- All compensation received by the fiduciary and 
its affiliates in connection \vith the transaction is 
reasonable in relation to the total services the 
fiduciary provides to the plan or IRA. ,-

f 
(3) _The fiduciary's statements about recommended 
investments. fees. material conflicts of interest. and 
any other matters relevant to a plan's or IRA's 
investment decisions, are not misleading. A 
"material conflict of interest" occurs \vhen a 
fiduciary has a financial interest that could affect the 
exercise of its best judgment as a fiduciary in 
rendering advice to a plan or IRA.i-

f 
For purposes of this section, a fiduciary acts in the 
"Best Interest" of the plan or IRA \vhen the fiduciary 
acts \vith the care, skill, prudence, and diligence 
under the circumstances then prevailing that a 
prudent person \vould exercise based on the 
investment objectives, risk tolerance, financial 
circumstances, and needs of the plan or IRA, and the 
fiduciary does not subordinate the interests of the 
plan or IRA to the financial interests of the fiduciary. 
Also for the purposes of this section, the term IRA 
means an individual retirement account described in 
Code section 408(a). f 

... 1 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 8 



To: ; 
]; ]; 

@treasury.gov]; Kugler, Adriana D -
OSEC @dol.gov]; Piacentini, Joseph - EBSA @dol.gov]; Cosby, Chris -
EBSA @dol.gov]; Decressin, Anja - EBSA[ @dol.gov]; 

@sec.gov]; Marietta-Westberg, Jennifer @sec.gov] 
From: Epstein, Zachary A. - OSEC 
Sent: Tue 10/25/2011 7:30:07 PM 
Importance: Normal 
Subject: Follow Up: Economic Analysis of the Fiduciary Rule 

Matt Kozora 

Felton Booker

Brian Deese
Adam Wang-Levine B. Harris
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To: @ ]; 
]; @sec.gov]; Marietta-Westberg, 

Jenn ifer @sec.gov] 
Cc: Kugler, Adriana D - OSEC @dol.gov]; 

@dol.gov]; Decressin, Anja -
EBSA @dol.gov]; Epstein, Zachary A. - OSEC @dol.gov] 
From: Cosby, Chris - EBSA 
Sent: Wed 11/2/2011 5:47:04 PM 
Importance: Normal 
Subject: RE: Follow Up: Economic Analysis of the Fiduciary Rule 

Good afternoon: 

Thanks for participating in this morning's meeting. As promised, I am circulating 
Primerica's comment letter and a recent GAO report finding that improved regulation 
could protect 401 (k) plan participants from conflicts of interest. As I mentioned at the 
meeting, Primerica has been one of the most vocal critics of the proposal. Their letter 
provides an explanation of their business model and describes the costs that revenue 
sharing payments are used to defray at the bottom of page 3. 

As I also stated today, the GAO report is supportive, at least qualitatively, in building the 
case for why the rule is necessary and will help rebut the industry's claim that the GAO 
studies DOL cited in the analysis for the 2010 NPRM did not analyze defined 
contribution plans. The 2011 GAO report focuses on 401 (k) plans, and also discusses 
higher fees that are incurred by plan participants when they rollover their account 
balance into IRAs. Although the 2011 GAO report does not provide any empirical data 
regarding conflicts nor assess the prevalence of conflicts and the degree of harm that 
results from them, there are several supportive statements we can weave into the RIA 
for the re-proposal. For example, on page 30 of the report, GAO echoes DOL's 
fundamental premise underlying the rule by stating that "[i]f not addressed, conflicts of 
interest could lead to 401 (k) plans offering investment funds with higher fees or 
mediocre performance, which can substantially reduce the amount of savings available 
for retirement. A service provider with a conflict of interest may steer plan sponsors 
toward investment funds that increase the service provider's compensation even if other 
funds with better performance are available at equal or lower costs." 

Thanks again for your thoughtful comments and insights. 

Best, 

Matt Kozora - SEC

Joseph Piacentini

Brian Deese



Chris 
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To: Deese, Brian C.[ @  
@dol .gov]; Langan, Andrew -

OSEC dol.gov]; Wang-Levine, Adam[  
@treasury .gov]; Harris, 

Benjamin ]; Amromin, Gene[ ; 
@treasury.gov]; Marietta-Westberg, Jennifer @sec.gov]; 

Sokobin, Jonathan @sec.gov]; Westbrook, Harvey B. @sec.gov] 
From: Schumer, Jessica E. 
Sent: Wed 10/12/2011 7:46:25 PM 
Importance: Normal 
Subject: Economic Analysis of the Fiduciary Rule 

Hello, 

Brian Deese and Adriana Kugler would like to convene this group next week on October 20 at 2pm to discuss the 
economic analysis of the Fiduciary regulation that DOL's Employee Benefits Security Administration is working on. 
If this time doesn't work for you please let me know at If you are coming from outside 
the EOP please send the following clearance information by COB Friday. 

WAVES: 
Full Name (including middle) 

DOB 

SSN 

Gender 
Country of Birth 

Country of Citizenship 
Current City and State of Residence 

- Jessica 

Jessica Schumer 
Deputy Chief of Staff 
National Economic Council 

Redacted

Redacted Redacted

Redacted

Redacted
Adriana Kugler - DOL

Felton Booker - Treasury

Adam Lavier - Treasury
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To: Kozora, Matthew  
From: Marietta-Westberg, Jennifer 
Sent on behalf of: Schumer, Jessica E. 
Sent: Tue 10/25/201112:15:13 PM 
Importance: Normal 
Subject: FW: [HOLD] Follow Up: Economic Analysis of the Fiduciary Rule 

When: Thursday, October 27, 20111:00 PM-2:00 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada). 
Where: TBD 

Note: The GMT offset above does not reflect daylight saving time adjustments. 

-----Original Appointment----­
From: Schumer, Jessica E.  
Sent: Tuesday, October 25, 2011 12:27 PM 
To: Schumer, Jessica E.; Deese, Brian C.; .Q,J~~~x, Langan, Andrew - OSEC; Wang-
Levine, Adam; Harris, Benjamin; Amromin, Gene; 

~@tl~SYIWlQY; Marietta-Westberg, Jennifer; Sokobin, Jonathan; Westbrook, Harvey B.; 
Kuruvilla, Jason - OSEC; Decressin, Anja - EBSA; Piacentini, Joseph - EBSA; Sackner-Bernstein, Sonya 
(Intern) 
Subject: [HOLD] Follow Up: Economic Analysis of the Fiduciary Rule 
When: Thursday, October 27, 20111:00 PM-2:00 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada). 
Where: TBD 

t

Adriana Kugler

Adam Lavier




